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{Dollars in thousands except for per share dato) Year ended December 31,
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Selected income Stotement Data:

" Net interest income $ 84,427 $ 42,304 $ 49884 $ 35265 § 28,693
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2,626 883 792
Non-interest income™ 191,132 150,317 115,923 79,670 47 849
Non-interest expense™ 112,854 92,391 86,568 54,213 31,953
Net income 137,922 84,656 67,926 52,832 20,231

Cash dividends paid: § 30951 % 22749 % 17,269 % 90675 § 7,199

Net income per common share:

Basic $ 287 % 186 § 155 % 131 § 0.55
Diluted 282 1.85 1.50 1.26 0.53

Operating data:

Loan production $ 4,209,000 $ 3,174,000 $ 2,722,000 $ 2,313,000 $ 1,037,000
Mortgage loan servicing portfolio 10,006,000 8,805,000 7,633,000 6,186,000 4,655,000

Selected financial rafios:

Return on average assets 2.23% 1.66% 1.92% 2.17% 2.19%"
Refurn on average common equity 25.93% 23.03% 21.92% 21.65% 19.29%"

*

Before a cumulative gain-effect of a change in accounting principle of $5.9 million for 2001.
** Before extraordinary noncash loss of $12.3 million on the early extinguishment of debt for 1997.
*** Amortization of servicing assets, previously presented as part of non-interest expense, has been reclassified as non-interest income.
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To serve a diverse and growing market in Puerfo Rico and the U.S. mainland
with superior service and competitive financial products that facilitate:

> Individual home ownership and residential and commercial real estater;.
development through our mortgage banking units and retail bankif
subsidiaries. <

° Savings, the accumulation of wealth and the securing of consumer dndy
commercial credit through our retail banks.

° Investments that meet the financial needs of corporate and institutional ;% ==
clients in the public and private sectors through our NASD licensed bro-
ker-dealer subsidiary.

° Profection of assets by providing insurance products through our insur- e
ance agency.

Our Objectives

° To constantly improve our product line and provide unsurpassed service
to our clients in Puerto Rico and the U.S. mainland.

° To expand our mortgage banking market share in Puerto Rico and the
U.S. mainland.

° To increase our banking business in U.S. markets by entering Hispanic
and other underserved communities.

© To increase our banking business in Puerto Rico by optimizing services
available at existing branches, adding mortgage banking and develop-
ing new full-service facilities.

° To promote crossselling opportunities for Doral Insurance Agency and
our refail banking subsidiaries to our large existing customer base.

© To maintain our financial flexibility and access to funding and capital
markets.

© To adhere to our prudent and consistent financial policies while growing
our equity base.

° To enhance shareholder value.

o To fulfill our responsibility as good corporate citizens, always assisting
the communities we serve.
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More than 100 of
the Fortune 500
Companies operafe

in Puerto Rico.

UAE DYINARIICS ©F
PUERTO RICO

irategically located at the geographic center of the Caribbean Basin, Puerto
Rico is considered an important gateway to the Americas. The nearly four
million people who reside in Puerio Rico enjoy one of the most advanced
economies in all of Latin America, with a GDP of approximately $63 bil
lion that has grown by 31% since 1997

As a Commonwedlth of the United States, Puerto Rico has a sfrong bond with ifs fellow citizens on
the U.S. mainland that is based on a common currency, free access to the U.S. market, and eco-
nomic autonomy, making the island one of the world's premier investment locations.

Major international banking instituions and multinational corporations have chosen the island fo
establish and develop successful operations. Their investments have made Puerfo Rico one of the
most dynamic economies in the Western Hemisphere, with a unique bicultural and bilingual busi-
ness environment that benefits from the stability of operating under the Amencon flag and growing
participation in the global economy.

For example, Puerto Rico has become the pharmaceutical capital of the world with top muttination-
al companies from the United States and Europe producing on the island for worldwide markets.

Pharmaceutical exports have been the driving force of tofal export growth, which reached $38.5
billion in fiscal year 2000. The value of pharmaceuticals exported in that year amounted to $20.7
billion. Although the United States is Puerto Rico's main frading parter, Europe is o growing sec-
ond market, with $2.6 billion in exports, consisting mostly of pharmaceuticals, health care prod-
ucts and electrical machinery.

Scientific instruments, computer hardware and software and other highttechnology industries also
achieve high productivity levels on the island. More than 100 of the Fortune 500 Companies oper-
ate in Puerfo Rico. Outstanding investment incentives and a highly skilled and welleducated work-
force have attracted these companies to Puerto Rico.

Puerto Rico has always been committed 1o education and science. Approximately 58% of all
youths between the ages of 20 and 24 are enrolled in institutions of higher education, more than
in any other area in the world with the exception of the U.S. mainland. Local universities award
almost 5,000 science and engineering degrees each year.

Source: Gavernment Development Bank for Puerto Rico/Puerto Rico Planning Board {data as of fiscal 2001).
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We achieved new
records in
profitability in
every category of
business, and our
stockholders saw
an unprecedented
Increase in the
value of their

investmenfs.

NMIESSACE FROM THIE
ClrlaRNIAN]

he year 2001 was outstanding for Doral Financial Corporation. We

achieved new records in profitability in every category of business, and our

stockholders saw an unprecedented increase in the volue of their invest

menfs. Your management is commitied to confinue our excellent perform-

ance. The support of our expanding numbers of invesiors from around the
world motivates us fo constantly improve our performance as a diversified, growth-oriented financial
services provider with a strong commitment to excellence in customer service and sound balance
sheet management.

Recorp INCOME

This commitment enabled Doral Financial fo fum in historically high growth in net income, which rose
by 63% to $137.9 million in 2001, compared to $84.7 million in the previous year. Similarly, nef
income per share before the cumulative gain effect of a change in accounting principle increased by

52% 10 $2.82 on a fully diluted basis from $1.85 per similar share in 2000.

Net income from banking operations increased an ouistanding 83% and reached $49.3 million in
2001, an important confributing factor fo the record eamings. Banking assets and deposits rose to
$3.7 billion and $1.7 billion, respectively, in 2001, providing o dramatic indication of the greater
ccceptance and market support for ocur growing retail banking franchise. Furthermore, norinterest
income grew 27% in 2001, reaching $191.1 million, and net gains on the sale of morigage loans
and fees increased by 39% to $187.2 million, reflecting our determination fo diversify income sources.

SoLp GROWTH

Total assefts grew by 23% to an unprecedented $6.7 billion for the year ended December 31, 2001.
likewise, stockholder equity increased by 51%, 1o reach an allime high of $762.1 million, follow-
ing record eamings for the year and an offering of common stock that produced net proceeds of
$153.4 million. We were able to continue our established tradition of excellence in financial per-
formance with a return on average commen equity (ROE] of 25.93% and a refurn on average assets
(ROA] of 2.23%. The financial strength of our institution was recognized in 2001 by Moody's
Invesfors Service, which upgraded the investment grade rafing of our senior and subordinated debt.

Doral Financial maintains a policy of regularly sharing our excellent results with stockholders through
the distribution of quarterly dividends, which increased in 2001 for the 12th consecutive vear, going
from $0.10 1o $0.125 per share. In January 2002, the quarterly dividend was further increased by
20% to $0.15 per common share.

297TH PROFITABLE YEAR

Doral Financial's outstanding performance was accomplished in a year of general economic slow-
down that brought inferest rates to their lowest levels in decades. The low inferest rate environment,
however, proved to be particularly beneficial to our position as Puerto Rico's leading residential mort
gage lender,  ranking held for 15 consecutive years, confributing fo an increase in loan production
of 31% in 2001, chter recordssetting growth in 2000. Loan production rase to $4.2 billion in 2001,
up subsiantially from $3.2 billion in the previous year.

The year 2001 was the 29th consecutive year of profitability for Doral Financidl, reaffirming the
soundness of our strategic vision fo structure our core businesses around diversified sources of income

that maximize profits under all economic conditions.

The Federal Reserve's move 1o lower shorterm inferest rates 11 times during 2001 was among the
conditions that favored our operations. Lower interest rates reduced our borrowing costs and con-
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iributed fo the sharp increase in loan production. To maximize the benefit of these favorable frends,
we have extended the maturities of many of our borrowings fo lock in the historic low rates, and have
taken prudent steps to profect the value of our loan servicing assets and the investment portfolio.

Doral Financial is vigerously pursuing ifs strategic plan to continue expanding the role of its banking
subsidiaries, strengthening the morigage loanservicing portfolio, maximizing tax-exempt income from
U.S. government and agency securities, and increasing nonmortgage fee income. At the same time,
we continue fo dominate in the area of morigage lending by providing unsurpassed cusfomer serv-
ice and innovative financial products.

Putrro Rico MARKET

Puerfo Rico is our primary market and represents an exiremely favorable environment for business
growth. The island’s infrastructure, building codes and zoning, social and medical services, edu-
cational system, judicial process, and economic and polifical structure are stable and comparable
fo that of the U.S. mainland. As the population confinues to grow, demand for housing confinues
to exceed the supply, particularly in affordable housing. The value of existing homes followed the
historical frend of consistent appreciation in value due to Puerio Rico’s demographics, shortage in
residential units, and the lack of alternative housing such as renfal apartment units and government
housing.

The govemnment of Puerio Rico has been aggressive in stimulating home ownership and has commitied
itself to support the construction of 50,000 units during the next three years. Also, an additional 50,000
residential units should be built in the same pericd of fime by private developers. As the leading resi-
dential morigage lender on the island, Doral Financial is poised fo bolster s future production with per-
manent financing for the buyers of these unifs. In addition, as the leading FHA/VA lender in Puerto Rico,
we are well posifioned fo contfinue to reap the benefits of tox-exempt government agency securities.

Qur Service CULTURE

Doral Financial is able to maintain its leadership in the indusiry becouse of the skill, dedication, and
nard work of its employees, who are mofivated by a longsstanding corporate culiure that places high
value on unsurpassed customer service. Our specialists are frained 1o respond to the various financial
needs of clients with a diverse mix of products and @ level of personalized service that builds strong
customer loyalty. Furthermore, our services are tailored to the convenience of the customer, who ben-
efits from extended office hours, a highly efficient product delivery process and the application of the
latest technologies, which are all geared fo achieve client safisfaction as rapidly as possible. In addi-
tion, all business units are encouraged to actively cross sell the broad range of products available
under the Doral Financial corporate umbretla for the benefit of our 300,000 existing customers, which
further contributes fo the potential for increased profitability.

MORTGAGE BANKING

As the core of our business, morigage banking is the strong foundation for the success of Doral
Financial and represents the most significant contributing facior o the profitability of operations in
2001. HF Morigage, Centro Hipotecario, SANA, and Doral Morigage are the four flagships of our
morigage business in Puerto Rico. Their outstanding performance throughout the years, and especially
in 2001, have eamed our insfitution its position of leadership as the top residential morigage lender
in the thriving Puerto Rico real esiate market. YWe will continue to build on cur dominant market share.

Total loan originations increased 31% 1o $4.2 billion in 2001, surpassing the $4 billion threshold for
the first fime in our long and distinguished history. The name brand recognition of the morigage bank-
ing units has been remarkable, as generations of Puerto Rican families have grown o rely on Doral
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As of December 31,
2007, Deral Bank-
Puerto Rico had
$3.5 billion in fotal
assets, $1.5 billion
in total deposits,
and shareholders’
equity of
$229 million.

Financial and its subsidiaries to meet their credit needs. To maximize market penetration, during 2001
we added seven morigage production offices in strategic locations throughout the island.

Qur highly visible and dominant position in the market has made it possible to maintain our leader
ship in loan servicing operations as a means of providing a recurring source of non-inferest income.
Surpassing the $10 billion mark in 2001, our servicing porffolio continues to be Puerto Rico's largest.

ReTAlL BANKING

Doral Bank-Puerio Rico has propelied itself info the mainsiream of the banking evolution that is taking
olace on the island and elsewhere. The application of new fechnologies and delivery systems, such
as Intemnet banking, have turned our branches into fullservice financial centers, where o wide array
of financial needs are met by friendly, experienced and reliable service providers.

Founded in 1993, Doral Bank-Puerto Rico has quickly become a leader in the banking community,
and it is now the fasfestgrowing commercial bank in Puerto Rico. Likewise, Doral Bank-New York con-
tinues 1o expand ifs presence in New York City, serving selected communities with services and prod-
ucts tailored to their particular needs. The banking subsidiaries are dedicated to a corporate philos-
ophy that meets the needs of customers through innovative products, extended hours of service, con-
venient locations and o sirong emphasis on excellence in all service arecs.

As of December 31, 2001, Doral Bank-Puerto Rico had $3.5 billion in tofal assets, $1.5 billion in
total deposits, and shareholders” equity of $229 million. The bank contributed approximately $49
million to Doral Financial’s record net income in 2001. The bank, together with all of its operating
units, maintains a sirict credit policy of lending on the basis of secured real estate. In addition, high-
eryielding consumer loans are offered primarily on a carefully controlled basis to creditworthy exist
ing customers of Doral Financial, reinforcing the fullservice concept. Drawing from Doral Financial's
reputation and client base, Doral Bank-Puerto Rico hes also solidified its posifion as one of the pre-
mier residential construction lenders working with the most experienced developers on the island.

Most of the housing developments financed by Doral Bank-Puerto Rico are designed fo fill the signif-
icant shortage in the affordable moderate to middle-income housing market and are undertaken on
a significant presold basis. Doral Bank-Puerto Rico is vital to our strategy of diversifying revenue
sources and providing costeffective funding for morigage products. The bank also serves as a vehi-
cle to cross sell the broad range of products and services available from Dorat Financial.

Doral BankNew York demonsirated significant progress by surpassing growh targets in only its second
fiscal year of operations. The bank was chartered in the fourth quarter of 1999 to fill a void in the bank-
ing services available to communities in mefropolitan New York City that have been underserved by fro-
ditional financial institufions. In 2001, Doral Bank-New York posted a 61% increase in tofal bank assets
to $233 million ond a 66% increase in total deposits to $169.6 million.

INSURANCE AGENCY AND SECURITIES BROKER DEALER

Similarly, with net income of $2.3 million during its first full year of operations, Doral Insurance Agency
exceeded expectations. The infroduction of new insurance products and the ability to effectively cross
sell insurance-related financial services fo our vast existing customer base will substantially contribute
o the further diversification of our income stream in the immediate future.

In 2001 we agreed fo sell the refail brokerage operations of Doral Securities to UBS/PaineVWebber
in order fo concentrate on the more profitable institutional brokerage and investment banking business.
As part of the transaction, which is expected to close during the first quarter of 2002,
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UBS/PaineWebber has agreed to sell invesiment producis in selected branches of Doral Bank-Puerto
Rico. Doral Bank will be entitled to a portion of all the commissions eamed on such sales, which is
anicipated to become a recurring source of fee income. Doral Securities will continue fo provide insti-
iutional investment banking services as well as to assist Doral Financial in the identification of cost-
effective financing dlternatives.

CoMMUNITY [NVOLVEMENT

As an involved and concerned corporate citizen, responsible neighbor and caring friend, Doral
Financial is commitied to improving the quality of life of the communities it serves. Our commitment
extends beyond our dedication to customer service. | reaches out fo support community inifiatives and
programs that care for people in need.

At no time was that commitment more important than in the aftermath of the horrific terrorist atiacks on
the World Trade Center and the crash of American Airlines Flight 587, which devasfated our friends,
neighbors and customers in New York City. We responded to those events with financial support to
several charifies, and our employees have generously volunteered their time and energy fo various
relief efforts.

Our community involvement, however, does not wait for disaster fo sfrike. Through investments, grants,
donations and employee participation, we support community-based organizations, non-profit institu-
tions, sports and cultural inifiatives that provide aliematives and solutions for beter living and also
strengthen family values. Our contributions and personal involvement are reflections of our institution-
al mission to provide the necessary resources to make dreams come frue. We strongly believe that
investing in the cultural, physical and social advancement of our communities is a moral confract we
honor with pride.

A PrOMISING FUTURE

We look forward to 2002 with great enthusiasm as we celebrate Doral Financial's 30th anniversary,
refusing fo rest on our past achievements. Our institufion is well positioned fo face the challenges of
the current economic climate and achieve continued strong growth in all segments of our business.
Doral Financial has historically benefited, even in rising interest rate cycles, when debt consclidation
refinancing increases fo pay off higher levels of consumer debt.

Doral Financial adheres 1o the highest siandards of ethical business conduct in all economic circum-
stances. Historically, we have promoted and maintained sound business practices and infernal con-
trols, followed proper accounting rules, and we are in consfant communication with our independent
accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reviews our quarterly resulls, and we maintain an intemal
audit group, which independently reviews the financial and operational aspects of all Doral Financial
business segmenis. The Infernal Audit Group reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors, composed of three outside directors.

We are committed fo further enhance shareholder value, and management is constantly seeking ways
fo improve productivity and efficiency through new products, infernal reorgonization, and the appli-
cation of technological advances. We would like to express our appreciation for your interest, ongo-
ing support, and investment in Doral Financial Corporation.

Salomén Levis
Chairman of the Beard and Chief Executive Officer
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MORITGAGE BANKING

oral Financicl continues to be the dominant residential morigage lender in

Puerfo Rico with a market share of about 45%, making the mortgoge-bank-

ing units the most significant contributors to our excellent operating per-

formance. As the leader in origination of residential loans, loan sales in the

secondary market, issuance of mortgage-backed securities, and loan serv-
icing, Doral Financial provides the most innovative and competitive products in the Puerfo Rico
real estate market.

lts four mortgage origination units, HF Mortgage Bankers, Doral Mortgage Corporation, SANA
Investment Morigage Bankers, Inc. and Centro Hipotecario de Puerto Rico Inc., cater to a range of
market niches in an environment where demand for housing continues to exceed supply. This seg-
mented market approach, combined with unsurpassed customer service at all levels, allows for fur-
ther market penetration resulling in unprecedented performances vear after year.

The volume of loan production in 2001 reached an alkime high of $4.2 billion, an increase of
31% compared fo the record $3.2 billion set in 2000. Furthermore, the fourth quarter of 2001
recorded the highest loan preduction for any given three-month period in our history, reaching $1.2
billion, an increase of 52% from the $792 million recorded in the fourth quarter of 2000. At the
same fime, stong loan production boosted the servicing portiolio by 14% compared fo 2000.

Puerto Rico housing frends provide a very attractive environment for continued growth in the mort-
gage-banking segment. A 2007 study conducted by Estudios Técnicos, Inc., a Puerto Ricobased
research firm, reports o shorfage of more than 100,000 housing units on the island. While Puerto
Rico's tofal population increased by 8.1% to 3.8 million in the lost decade, according fo the 2000
U.S. Census, the iotal number of households increcsed by an impressive 19.3%. The percentage of
home ownership in Puerfo Rico maintained its high levels at 72.9%. Meanwhile, due fo the short
age of housing and limited land, real estate values continue fo increase yearly.

As population increases, the shortage of affordable housing has prompted the government fo further
stimulate home ownership and to develop a policy that calls for the construction of 50,000 resi-
dential units over the next three years. Meanwhile, private developers are building another 50,000
residential unifs. Toking this info account, we expect morigage preduction fo significantly increase
in 2002, mostly fueled by an increase of tax-exempt HUD-insured loans.

Similarly, demand for morigage refinancing is expected to confinue o be strong, even in a higher-
interest rafe environment, which, based on experience, could actually increase the proportion of refi-
nanced loans. Consumers in Puerio Rico often use refinancing as a means of consolidating debt or
cashing out their equity. The higher borrowing costs for personal, auto, and other types of credit make
the lower mortgage inferest rate a more aftractive solution. In addition, inferest paid on a morigage
loan in Puerto Rico is tax deductible, while interest expense from other non-marigage loans is not.

FHF MORTGAGE BANKERS

The HF Morigege Bankers division specializes in the financing of the purchase of new residential
properties and works closely with Doral Bank-Puerto Rico to provide shortterm construction financ-
ing for new housing developments. HF has become the largest FHA/VA lender on the island and
the leading provider of end loan financing on newly constructed residential units because of ifs expe-
rience in new housing developments and a reputation for excellence in service with developers.
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Doral Morlgage
Corporafion
provides @ wide
range of real
esfale-secured loan
products including
FHA/VA,
conforming ond
non-conforming

loans.

Loan production increased by almost tworfold for HF in 2001, establishing a new record over the
orevious year. Operafing out of 13 branch offices throughout Puerfo Rico, HF Morigage Bankers
expects continued growth in new residential developments, spof loans, and shortterm financing. HF,
which has distinguished itself by infroducing innovative products to the market, will launch a new
Infernet service that clients can access af their own convenience 24 hours a day to originate loans
online and check on the status of their loans. This service will eventually be infroduced at the other
Doral Financial morigage origination unifs.

Doral MORTGAGE CORPORATION

Doral Morigage Corporation provides o wide range of real estate-secured loan products, including
FHA/VA, conforming and non-conforming loans, with an emphasis on consumer loans secured by
first morigages with low balances and strong borrower equity.

These loans provide Deral Financial with an attractive yield during the period they are held prior to
their sale, and are in strong demand among local financial institutions. With 23 offices islandwide,
Doral Mortgage targets the mass market and invests aggressively in yearround marketing cam-
paigns. These campaigns have helped position the Doral name brand as the island’s premiere enti
ty in mortgage lending.

CeNTRO [HIPOTECARIO DE PUERTO RICO

Centro Hipotecario de Puerto Rico also provides an array of FHA/VA, conforming and noncon-
forming loan producis through its three refail origination offices in Puerto Rico. Specidlizing in real
estate broker and personal client relationships, Centro Hipotecario has developed a loyal clientele
that continuously refers new business, resulting in the expansion of ifs strong customer base.

The success of Centro Hipotecario is based on personal service, including the involvement of its top
management in serving customers.

SANA INVESTMENT MORTGAGE BANKERS, INC,

SANA Investment Morigage Bankers, acquired by the Company in 1999, targets the affordable
housing market segment and has grown fo 11 offices throughout the island. SANA has distinguished
itself in the market because of its ability to rapidly process loan applications.

Following its ongoing expansion plans, SANA |nvestment opened two offices during 2001 and
plans to open two new facilities in 2002 to better serve ifs growing customer base. A telemarket-
ing department will be added to SANA's operations in 2002 to strengthen its marketing efforts.
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In 2007 the bank
opened seven
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full-service offices
for @ total of 29
facilities located
throughout fihe
major mefrepolitan
cenfers in

Puerfo Rico.

RETAIL BANKING

oral Bank had an exceptional year in 2001 as if increased ifs net income o
striking 81% to $49 million, compared to $27 million in 2000. This excel
lent growth was the result of atiracting substantial new business fo the bank,
which is the fastest growing commercial bank in Puerto Rico with $3.5 bil-
lion in assefs and $1.5 billion in deposits.

In 20071, the Bank opened seven additional fullservice offices for a fofal of 29 facilities located
throughout Puerto Rico’s major metropolitan centers. As part of ifs strategy 1o increase market share,
Doral Bank plans fo enter the credit card business in 2002, and will further expand ifs branch net-
work by adding ten new branches, mosty Doral Financial Centers.

Inaugurated in 1999, Doral Financial Centers provide a “onesstop shop” financial service facility,
where customers can mest all their financicl needs, including loon and deposit banking products
from Doral Bank, residential morigage loans from one of the Company’s morigage banking units,
insurance products from Doral Insurance, and securities products through UBS/PaineWebber. With
five Doral Financial Centers in Puerio Rico already open, this concept enables the Company fo take
full advantage of cross selling its diverse product line.

The inauguration of Doral Bank Plaza, its new headguarters in Puerto Rico, was another milestone
for Doral Bank in 2007. This impressive building, located in the Hato Rey financial district of San
Juan, is the nerve center for the Company's banking operations.

These operations have grown rapidly since the bank's inception in 1993, because of the established
operafing philosophy: offering innovative quality products, extended office hours, convenient loca-
fions, and unparalleled service. Doral Bank focuses on secured lending and, therefore, ifs level of
credit risk is lower than that of many other competing financial institutions. Doral Bank branches also
serve as payment centers for Doral Financial morigage loan units, which provide an excellent cross-
selling opportunity for the bank to offer its variefy of products.

In 2001, Doral Bank became the first Federal Home Loan Bank of New York member approved
fo participate in the FHLB program to facilitate the financing for low-income families to buy their
first homes.

DorAL BANK LOCATIONS IN PUERTO RICO
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Exceeding
expeciations,
Doral Insurance
Agency finished its
fiirst full year of
operaiions with @

net income of

$2.3 million.

INSURANCE & SECUIRINTES

xceeding expectations, Doral Insurance Agency finished ifs first full year of
operations with a net income of $2.3 million. This impressive launch into an
entirely new line of business was the result of the subsidiary’s ability to suc-
cesstully tap Doral Financial's extensive customer base to effectively sell its
oroducts.

Doral Insurance Agency will increase its presence in Doral Financial Centers, where its licensed rep-
resenfatives can further take advantage of the crossselling opportunities and provide customers with
the convenience of "one-stop shopping” for financial services. We are confident that the insurance
business will continue to develop and further diversify our revenue sources.

In order to concentrate on the most profitable sources of income, Doral Financial decided 1o sell the
Doral Securities retail securities brokerage business in December 2001. The sale to
UBS/PaineWebber is expected 1o close during the first quarter of 2002 and frees Doral Securities
o focus on areas of institutional brokerage and invesiment banking, which are expected to produce
greater profifs.

As part of the tansaction, Doral Financial enfered info an agreement that will permit
UBS/PaineVWebber to sell invesiment products at selected Doral Bank branches. This arrangement
will also allow Doral Financial to earn a portion of the commissions on such sales, without incurring
in the cost of maintaining a refail securifies sales sfaff.

14 DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT
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UL.S. ERANSION

oral Financial subsidiaries in the U.S. mainland include Doral Money

and Doral BankNew York. These subsidiaries have been successful by

focusing on multifamily and other real estate-secured lending in the

moderate-income areas of New York City's five boroughs. These prop-

erties have consistently maintained minimal vacancies and have his-
torically weathered downtums in the economy due to the strong demand for working class housing
and the effects of New York's rent control regulations.

Doral Bank offers @ fresh banking alernative in New York with a friendly, personal approach, com-
pelitive rates, and unsurpassed service. It initiated operations in New York City as a federally char-
tered FDIC-insured savings bank fo provide services to communifies underserved by the traditional
banking system. It emphasizes real estate-secured lending while offering a full range of commercial
and consumer loan products.

Metropolitan New York has a population in excess of 14 million with minorities making up 47.6%
of these residents, a situation that presents an exceptional cpportunity for Doral's U.S. operations.
Doral BankNew York expects solid growth as it continues to penefrate new market segments.

As of 2001, after only two vears in operation, Doral BankNew York had assets of $233 million
and deposits of $169.6 million. The Bank's expansion plans call for opening two branches by the
end of 2002 and an increase in ifs deposit base 1o $250 million.

In addition to its headquarters at 27th Street and Park Avenue South, during the year the bank
opened wo fullservice branches in Washington Heights in Upper Manhatian and Astoria,
Queens. Deposits in these two new branches have already surpassed the $31 million threshold.
Managed by New York talent, the bank’s branches are also staffed with bilingual employees flu-
ent in the predominant languages of the surrounding neighborhoods.

Righthand page: To offer unsurpassed service, Doral BankNew York branches
have extended their hours and open seven days a week.
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Epcar M. CULLMAN, JR.

Jonn L. ErnsT Erraim KiER

A. BREAN MURRAY Harolp B. VicenTE

Davip Levis o Epcar M. Cullman
Director Emeritus L \ Director Emeritus
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CORPORATE
DIRECTORS

SaLomON LEVS"
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Cfficer

Zowa Levis?
President and Chief Operating
Officer

RICHARD F. BoNINI®
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary

EpGAR M. CULLMAN, JR.
President and Chief Executive
Officer of General Cigar
Holdings, Inc.

JoHw L. ERNST
Chairman of the Board and
President of Bloomingdale
Properties, Inc.

Erraim KIER
President A & M Contractors

A, BREAN RAURRAY
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Brean Murray &
Co., Inc.

Harowd D. VICENTE
Partner of

Vicente & Cuebas

law Firm

DIRECTORS EMERITUS
EDGAR M. CULLMAN
Chairman of the Board of Generdl
Cigar Holdings, Inc.

Davip LEVIS
Former Chairman of the Board of

Doral Financial Corporation
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CORPORATE
OFFICERS

SaloMEN LEVIS"
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Zolla LEvIS?
President and
Chief Operating Officer

RicHARD F. BONINI?
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and

Secrefary

MARIO §. LEVIS®

Executive Vice President and

Treasurer

Francisco RIVERO
Executive Vice President
Administration and Business
Development

Freperick €. TEED”
Executive Vice President Banking

FervANDO RIVERA-
MumnicH®

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Assistant Secrefary

RICARDO MELENDEZ
Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer

CrHrISTOPHER © NELL
Vice President
Construction Lending

CarLOS VINA
Vice President

OsCAR APONTE

Vice President of Infernal Audit

SUBSIDIARY
PRESIDENTS

RickarD F. Bonini®
President of Dordl
Money, Inc.

Davip R. Levis
President of HF Mortgage

Epison VELEZ
President of Doral Mortgage
Corporation

Apiiza Levis
President of Cenfro
Hipotecario de

Puerto Rico, Inc.

INGRID SCHMIDT
President of SANA Investment
Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

Jost VIGOREAUX”
President of Doral Bank—
Puerio Rico

ROBERT REINER
President of Doral Bank—
New York

FERNANDO RIVERA-

MAUNICH®
President of Doral Insurance
Agency, Inc.

Juue MICHED
President of Doral
Securities, Inc.

(1) Sclomon Levis clso serves as Chief
Executive Officer and Chaiiman ¢f the
Board of Deral Merigage Corporation,
Doral Bank=F&, Do-al Bank-NY, Centio
Hipotecario de Puerio Rico and Doral
Securities.

12) Zoilo levis also serves us Chairman of
the Board of Doral Insurance Agency, Inc
and & Director of Doral Ba:*rrr:‘% and
Doral Securities

13} Richard Borini aiso serves as ¢ Director of
Doral Morigage Corporarion, Dora! Bank—FR,
Doral Bonl«&{ and Centro Siootecario de
Puerto Rico.

14) Mario S. levis also serves as a Direcior
T h ’
of Doral Securities.

15) Fred Teed ard josé \/\Ecreoux also serve
as Directors of Doral Bank="R

|61 Femnando Rivera Munich also serves as
a Director of Dora! Insiance Agency, Inc

SUBSIDIARY PRESIDENTS

RicHARD F. BONING

Davip R. Levis

EpisoN VELEZ

Amwiza Levis

INGRID SCHMIDT

Jost VIGOREAUX

ROBERT REINER

FERNANDO RIVERA-
MuNICH

Juuio MICHEO
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TRE COMIPANIES OF DORAL

FINANCIAL CORPORATION]

Puerto Rico

DoralL MORTGAGE
CORFORATION

Doral Financial Plaza

1451 FD Roosevelt Avenue

San Juan, Puerto Rico 009202717

HF MORTGAGE BANIKERS
1159 FED. Roosevelt Avenue
Puerto Nuevo, Puerto Rico 00920-2905

CENTRO HIPOTECARIO

DE PUERTO RiICO, INC.

305 FED. Roosevelt Avenue

Hafo Rey, Puerto Rico 00918-4149

SANA INVESTMENT MORTGAGE
BANKERS, INC.

Urb. Caribe

#1569 Alda Street

Edificio Doral Bank, Suite 302

Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico 00926-2712

Doral BanK, PUERTO RICO
279 Ponce de ledn Avenue, 51 floor
Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00918-2003

DoRrAL SECURITIES, INC.
268 Mufoz Rivera Avenue, Suitle 1803
Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00918-2002

Doral IMSURANCE AGENCY, INC.
Doral Financial Plaza

1457 FD Roosevelt Avenue

San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920-2717

DoralL PROPERTIES, INC.
Deral Financial Ploza

1451 FD Roosevelt Avenue

San Juan, Puerto Rico 009202717

Doral INTERNATIONAL, [NC.
268 Ponce de ledn Avenue, Suite 1017
Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00918-2003

New York

DoraL MONEY, INC.
387 Park Avenue South
New York, New York 10016-8810 _

DoraL Bank, FSB, New YoRrK
387 Park Avenue South
New York, New York 10016-8810

Locamions

Doral MORTGAGE
CORPORATION

Pusrro Rico
Arecibo (2 locations)
Bayomén (2 locations)
Caguas (2 locations)
Carolina (2 locations)
Cayey

Fajardo

Guayama

Haio Rey (3 locations)
Humacao

Mayagtez (2 locations)
Ponce

Rio Grande

Rio Piedras

San Juan

Trujillo Alto

Vega Baja

U.S. MaiNLAND
Miami, Florida

HF MORTGAGE BANKERS
Bayamén {2 locations)

Caguas

Catafo

Guaynabo {2 locations)
Hato Rey (2 locations)
Mayaglez

Ponce

Puerto Nuevo

Rio Piedras

Vega Allg

CENTRO HIPOTECARIO
pt PuerTo RICO, INnC.
Bayamén

Hato Rey

Manati

Sana INVESTMENT MORTGAGE

BANKERS, INC.
Bayomén (2 locations)

Caguas
Carolina
Catafio
Los Piedras
Mayagiez
Ponce

Rio Piedras (3 locations}

Doral Bank-PuErto RiCO
Arecibo

Bayamén (3 locations)
Caguas (3 locations)
Carolina

Catao (2 locations)
Cayey

Guaynabo

Hato Rey (4 locations)
Humacao

las Piedras
Mayagiez

Ponce

Puerto Nuevo

Rio Grande

Rio Piedras (3 locations)
San Juan

Trujillo Alto

Vega Alta

Vego Baja

Doral SECURITIES, INC.
Hato Rey

DORAL MONEY, INC.
New York, New York

DoralL Bank-NEw YORK
Park Avenue South, Manhatian, New York

Washington Heights, Manhatian, New York

Astoria, Queens, New York
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STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Market for Regisirant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholder Matters

Doral Financial's Common Stock, $1.00 par value [the
"Common Stock”), is traded on the overthe-counter market
and is quoted on the Nafional Association of Securities
Declers Automated Quotation National Market System {ihe

"NASDAQ National Market") under the symbol “DORL.”

The toble below sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated,
the high and low closing sales prices on the NASDAQ
National Market and the cash dividends declared on the
Common Stock during such periods.

Calendar Price Range Dividends

Year Quarter High Low Per Share
2001 Tst $ 30.000 % 22.438 % 0.100
2nd 34.650 26.060 0.125
3rd 38.800 30.640 0.125
Ath 39.380 30.150 0.125
2000 Tst $ 11812 § 8750 § 0.080
2nd 12.500 10.312 0.100
3rd 16.250 11.250 0.100
Ath 25.562 15562 0.100

As of February 15, 2002, the approximate number of record
holders of Doral Financial's Common Stock was 582, which
does not include beneficial owners whose shares are held in
record names of brokers and nominees. The last sales price
for the Common Stock as quoted on the NASDAQ National
Market on such date was $33.96 per share.

The terms of Doral Financial's 8.35% Non-cumulative Month-
ly Income Preferred Stock, Series B (liquidation preference
$25 per share| and of Doral Financial’s 7% Non-cumulative
Monthly Income Preferred Stock, Series A (liquidation prefer-
ence $50 per share] do not permit the payment of cash divi
dends on Common Stock if dividends on the respective series
of preferred stock are in arrears.

Doral Financials ability to pay dividends in the future is limit
ed by restrictive covenants contained in its debt agreements,
its eamnings, cash resources and capifal needs, general busi-
ness conditions and other factors deemed relevant by Doral
Financial's Board of Directors. Doral Financial is prohibited
under the Indenture for its 7.84% Senior Notes due on 2006
(the “Senior Note Indenture”} from paying dividends on any
capital stock if an event of default exists under such agree-
ment, or if the amount of dividends payable by Doral Finan-
cial together with the aggregate amount of dividends paid
and other capital distributions made since Ociober 1, 1996,
exceed the sum of: {i) 50% of its Consclidated Net Income |as
defined in the Senior Note Indenture), accrued from October
1, 1996, to the end of the quarter ending not less than 45
days prior to the dividend payment date; (i) $15 million; and

liii} the net proceeds of any sale of capital stock subsequent
to October 15, 1996. As of December 31, 2001, Deral
Financial could have paid up to $429.6 million in cash divi-
dends under this restriction. In addition, under other debt
agreements, Doral Financial may be prohibited from paying
dividends if it is in default under such agreements.

Doral Financial's ability to pay dividends may also be restric-
ed by various regulatory requirements and policies of bank
regulaiory agencies having jurisdiction over Doral Financial
and its subsidiaries.

The Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code generally imposes o
10% withholding tax on the amount of any dividends paid by
Doral Financial to individuals, whether residents of Puerto Rico
or not, tiusts, estates, special partnerships and non-resident
foreign corporations and partnerships. Prior to the first divi-
dend disfribution for the taxable year, individuals who are res-
idents of Puerto Rico may elect to be taxed on the dividends
at the regular graduated rates, in which case the special 10%
fax will not be withheld from such year's disiributions.

United States citizens who are not residents of Puerto Rico
may also make such an election except that notwithstanding
the making of such election, @ 10% withnolding will siill be
made on the amount of any dividend disiribution unless the
individual files with Doral Financial's ransfer agent prior to the
first distribution date for the taxable vear, a certificate to the
effect that said individual’s gross income from sources within
Puerto Rico during the taxable year does not exceed $1,300
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@
if single, or $3,000 if married, in which case dividend distri-  The following table sets forth certain selected consolidated
outions will not be subject to Puerto Rico income taxes. financial data for Doral Financial for each of the five years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. This information
United States income tax low permits o credit against United  should be read in conjunction with Doral Financial's Conscli-

States income fox liability, subject to ceriain limiations, for  dated Financial Statements and related notes thereto.
Puerfo Rico income taxes paid or deemed paid with respect fo

such dividends.
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Selected Financial Data
Year ended December 31,

{Doflors in thousands, except for share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Selected Income Statement Data:!"
Interest income $ 356,005 ¢ 325545 % 211,679 $ 150,051 § Q0,131
Inferest expense 271,668 283,241 161,795 114,786 61,438
Net interest income 84,427 42,304 49 884 35,265 28,693
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2,626 883 792
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 79,982 38,226 47,258 34,382 27 Q01
Non-inferest income 191,132 150,317 115,923 79,670 41,849
Nonrinterest expense 112,854 92,391 86,568 54,213 31,953
Income before toxes, cumulative gaineffect of change
in accounting principle and extraordinary item 158,260 06,152 76,613 59,839 37,797
Income taxes 20,338 11,496 8,687 7.007 5,249
Income before cumulative gaineffect of change in
accounting principle and extraordinary item 137,922 84 656 67,926 52,832 32,548
Cumulative gaineffect of
change in accounting principle 5,029 - - - -
Extraordinary item -
non-cash charge on extinguishment of debr - - - - 12,317
“““ ‘ Net income $ 143851 § 84,656 § 67,926 % 52,832 § 20,231
Cash dividends paid $ 30,051 § 22749 § 17,269 § 0975 % 7,199
Per Common Share Data:
Basic:
Income before cumulative gain-effect of change
in accounting principle and extrocrdinary item $ 287 % 1.86 § 1.55 % 131§ 0.89
Cumulative gain-effect of change
in accounting principle 0.13 - - - -
Exiraordinary item - - - - (0.34)
Net income $ 3.00 § 1.86 § 155 % 1.31 % 0.55
Diluted:
Income before cumulative gaineffect of change
in accounting principle and extraordinary item $ 282 § 185 % 1.50 $ 126 % 0.85
Cumulative gaineffect of change
In accounfing principle 0.13 - - ~ -
Extraordinary item - - - ~ [0.32)
Net income $ 205 % 1.85 3 1.50 § 1.26 § 0.53
Dividends declared $ 0475 % 038 § 030 % 023§ 0.20
Book value $ 13.33 % 899 § 746§ 646 % 4.85
Weighted average shares ousstanding: :
Basic 44,794 192 41,887,708 40,428,920 39,941,068 36,680,158
Diluted 45 502,939 42,093,509 42,421,477 410928186 38,728,632
Shares outsianding at end of period 47,810,334 42,393,134 40,428,920 40,428 920 36,794,920

continued next page
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Selected Financial Data (continued)

Year ended December 31,

[Dollars in thousands, except for share dota) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Selected Balance Sheet Data:™"
Merigage loans held for sale $ 1,047,494 $ 1,354,605 $ 1015703 $ 883048 $ 404,672
Securities held for frading 033,328 1,101,938 862,698 606,918 620,288
Securities held to maturity 866,335 1,558,313 1,509,060 190,778 143,534
Securities available for sale 028,179 182,374 66,325 408,888 240,876
loans receivable, net 644,113 308,191 231,184 166,987 133,055
Servicing assels, net 154,340 139,795 109,721 72,568 46,416
Total assets 6,694,283 5,463,386 4,537,343 2,918,113 1,857,789
loans payable 161,101 372,620 353,460 426,704 238,770
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2,573,772 2,275,855 1,927956 1,197,328 838,142
Notes payable 459 543 444,746 461,053 199733 164,934
Deposit accounts 1,669,909 1,303,525 1,010,424 533,113 300,494
Stockholders” equity 762,120 505,710 384,982 269,559 186,955
Operating Datar:
loan production $ 4209000 $ 3,174,000 $ 2,722,000 $ 2,313,000 $ 1,037,000
Morigage loan servicing portfolio 10,006,000 8,805,000 7,633,000 6,186,000 4,655,000
Selected Financial Ratios:
Refurn on Average Assels 2.33% 1.66% 1.92% 217% 1.37%
Return on Average Commeon Equity 27.13% 23.03% 21.92% 21.65% 11.99%
Dividend Payout Ratio for Common Stock 16.10% 20.50% 20.00% 18.25% 37.74%
Average Equity to Average Assets 10.04% 8.49% 10.04% 10.00% 11.39%
Interest Rate Spread 1.38% 0.92% 1.35% 1.64% 2.10%
Net Yield on Average InferestEaming Assets 6.63% 710% 6.86% 7.30% 7 .90%
Net Yield on Average InferestBearing liabilities 5.25% 6.18% 5.51% 5.66% 5.80%

(1] Ceriain reclassifications of prior years’ data have been made to conform to 2007 classifications.

(2] Return on Average Assets, Return on Average Commen Equity and Dividend Payaut Ratio for Common Stack based on income before cumulative gaineffect of a change in
accounting principle for 2001 would have been 2.23%, 25.93% and 16.84%, respectively.
{3} Refturn on Averoge Assefs, Return on Average Common Equity and Dividend Payout Ratio for Common Stock based on income before an extraordinary item for 1997

would have been 2.19%, 19.29% and 23.53%, respectively,

4} Average balances computed on a monthly besis except for year 2001, which is on daily basis except for Doral Securifies.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

The year ended December 31, 2001, was a record
year for Doral Financial. For the year ended December
31, 2001, income before the cumulative gain-effect of a
change in accounting principle was $137.9 million
compared to $84.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000, an increase of 63%. For the year
ended December 31, 2001, Doral Financial’s loan pro-
duction, which includes infernal originations and
ourchases, was $4.2 billion, o new record. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial's morigage servic-
ing portfolio totaled $10 billion. As of December 31,
2001, Doral Financial had consolidated cssets of
approximately $6.7 billion and consolidated stockhold-
ers’ equity of approximately $762.1 million.

24

Critical Accounting Policies

Note 2 to Doral Financial's Consolidated Financicl
Statements contains a summary of the most significant
accounting policies followed by Doral Financial in the
preparation of ifs financial statements. Among the most
significant accounting policies are those relating to the
determination of fair values for Doral Financial's securities
held for trading, including the determination of fair values
for Doral Financial’s portfolio of tax-exempt Puerto Rico
GNMA securities, the interestonly strips {“1Os”) created
as part of Doral Financial's morigage sale and securitiza-
tion activities and the derivatives used by Doral Financial
fo manage ifs inferest rate risk. Because of their preferen-
fial tax status, tax-exempt GNMA securities cannot be
valued only by reference to market quotations for U.S.

DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT




GNMA securities with similar characteristics. Instead,
Doral Financial determines the fair value of tax-exempt
Puerto Rico GINMA securities on the basis of quotations
received by locally based brokerdealers and adjusting
such value for liquidity and other factors, including
prices of U.S. GNMA securities. As described in Note 2
and herein under “Amortization of IOs and Servicing
Assets,” the value of IOs and of derivatives not quoted on
a recognized market are based on market prices for
sales of similar assets and or assumptions that are often
fied to anficipated changes in interest rates and prepay-
ments rates on morigage loans. Significant changes in
interest rates or prepayment rates from those used to
value these assets could require Doral Financial to recog-
nize an impairment fo the value of these assets, hereby
adversely affecting its future results.

Another significant accounting policy related to Doral
Financial's business is the policy related to the recogni-
tion of servicing assets on Doral Financial's balance
sheet in connection with the mortgage servicing rights
retained by Doral Financial as part of its morigage scle
and securitization activities. As described in Note 2 and
under "Amortization of 1Os and Servicing Assefs,” the
refained servicing assefs are recorded on Doral
Financicl’s financial stafements on the basis of prices
paid for comparable morigage servicing rights. The
value of mortgage servicing rights is also highly sensitive
io changes in inferest rates. Declines in inferest rates tend
to reduce the value of servicing rights because they tend
to increase morigage prepayments, thereby reducing the
future stream of cash flows associated with such servicing
assets. Accordingly, large unanticipated declines in inter-
est rates could cause Doral Financial to increase
amortization above scheduled amortization or recognize
cn impairment in the value of its morigage servicing
rights through a charge to earnings.

As discussed above, when Doral Financial sells loans
through either securitization or bulk sales, it assigns a
value to the 10s or mortgagesservicing rights retained by
it in the sale. The fair values assigned fo the IOs and the
servicing assef reduce the carrying basis of the loan sold.
Gain or loss on the sale of a loan is defermined by the
excess of the selling price of the loan over the resulting
carrying basis after reducing it for the allocation of
refained interests.

Interest income is accrued by Doral Financial when
earned. loans held in Doral Financial's banking sub-
sidiaries as well as construction loans are ploced on
non-accrual status when any portion of principal or inter-
est is ninety days past due or earlier if concemn exists as
fo the ultimate collectibility of principal or interest. Doral
Financial’s mortgage banking units continue to accrue
interest, except in the case of construction loans, until a

loan is one year or more past due and concern exists as
to the ultimate collectibility of principal or interest based
on the loan’s loan-tovalue ratio. When a loan is placed
on non-accrual status, all previously accrued and unpaid
inferest is charged against income in the case of Doral
Financial’s banking units but not in the case of its mort-
goge banking units.

Doral Financial maintains a reserve known as an
allowance for loan losses to absorb anticipated loan
losses. The allowance is maintained at a level that Doral
Financial considers to be adequate o absorb losses
oased on a number of factors, including historical loss
experience, current delinquency rates, an assessment of
individual problem loans, an assessment of the value of
underlying collateral and economic conditions. Credit
losses are charged and recoveries are credited to the
allowance. Doral Financiol maintains  a  similar
allowance for possible losses on the disposition of real
esfate owned. Unanticipated increases in the allowances
for loan losses or for real estate owned could adversely
impact Doral Financial’s net income in the future.

loan origination fees, as well as discount points and cer-
foin direct origination costs, are initially recorded as an
adjustment to the cost of the loan and reflected in Doral
Financial's eamings when the loan is sold or securitized
info a mortgage-backed security.

Investors are encouraged to carefully read the following
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, together with Doral
Financial's Consolidated Financial Statements, including
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results of Operations for the Three Years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Doral Financial's results of operations are mainly the
result of:
o its level of loan production and loan sales;
o the relafionship between inferest rates on ifs interest-
bearing assefs and its cost of funds;
the behavior of its morigage servicing assets;
the credit losses related 1o its Joan activities; and
its ability to manage ifs liquidity needs and capital
resources.

These factors are, in turn, orimarily influenced by:

o the level and direction of interest rates;

o the level of demand for mortgage credit; and

o the strength of the economy and housing markets in
Puerto Rico, Doral Financial's principal market.

The components of Doral Financial’s revenues are: (1} net
interest income; (2} net gains on mortgage loan sales
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and fees; (3] servicing income; (4] frading activities; (5)

gain on sale of investment securities; and (6] commis-
sions, fees and cther income.

Net Income

Doral Financial’s net income for the year ended
December 31, 2001 increased to $143.9 million, com-
pared to $84.7 million and $67.9 million for the vears
ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Net income for 2001 included a $5.9 million cumulative
gain-effect of a change in accounting principle, related
to the implemeniation, effective January 1, 2001, of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS”)
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” As part of the implementation of
SFAS No. 133, Doral Financial reclassified $110 mil-
lion of held to maturity securities to available for sale
securities and $130 million fo trading securities. As @
result of this reclassification, in addition to the cumulative
gain-effect in earnings, Doral Financial also recognized
a gain of $1.6 million [net of tax) in other comprehensive
income. Diluted eamings per common share before the
cumulative gaineffect of the change in accounting princi-
ple for 2001 increased by 52% compared to 2000,
from $1.85 for 2000 to $2.82 for 2001,

Consolidated results include the operations of Doral
Financial's banking subsidiaries, which contributed
approximately $49.3 million to Doral Financial's consoli-
dated net income in 2001, compared to $26.9 million
for 2000 and $15.7 million for 1999, and Doral
Securities, Doral Financial's securities brokerdealer unit,
which contributed $2.1 million. $226,000 and $1.3
million, respectively, to consolidated net income for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
Doral Insurance Agency, Doral Financial's insurance
agency subsidiary, which commenced operations on
December 2000, contributed $2.3 million and
$39,000, respectively, to consolidated net income for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,

Doral Financial’s results of operations summarized above
and discussed in further detail below were significantly
impacted by {1} the reduction in shorterm interest rates
experienced during 2001 and (2] the continued growth
and expansion of Doral Financial's operations and inter-
estearning assets.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the excess of inferest earned by
Doral Financial on its interestearning assets over the inter-
est costs incurred on ifs inferestbearing liabilities. Net
inferest income for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999
was $84.4 million, $42.3 million, and $49.9 million,
respectively. The increase in net interest income for the

year 20071 compared fo 2000 is due principally to an

increase in Doral Financial's average inferest-earning
assets, as well as an increase in nef inferest spread and
margin for the period. Average interestearning assefs
grew by 17% from 2000 fo 2001, from $4.6 billion to
$5.4 billion, and by 48% from 1999 to 2000 from
$3.1 billion to $4.6 billion. Doral Financial’s net interest
spread and margin for 2001 were 1.38% and 1.57%,
compared to 0.92% and 0.93% for 2000. The net inter-
est spread and margin were 1.35% and 1.62% for
1999.

The increase in net inferest spread and margin during
20071 was due primarily to the widening of the vield
curve or the tendency of shortterm rates paid by Doral
Financial on its borrowings to decline more in relative
terms than the rates earned by Doral Financial on ifs
loans and securities. The average rote paid by Doral
Financial on its interestbearing liabilities decreased by
93 basis points during 2001 while the average vield
earned on its interestearning assets decreased by only
47 basis points. The decline in shortterm rafes is evi-
denced by the decrease in the average three-month
london Interbank Offered Rate ["LUBORY) from 6.6% in
the fourth quarter of 2000 to 2.1% in the fourth quarter
of 2001. Conversely, the decrease in net interest income
during 2000 compared to 1999 was due to a reduction
in inferest rate spread and margin caused primarily by @
rising interest rate environment experienced during the
first half of 2000. During 2000, the average rate on
Doral Financial’s interestbearing liabilities increased by
67 basis points while the average yield earned on its
inferestearning assets only increased by 24 basis poinfs.

The repurchase agreement lending operations of Doral
Financial’s securities subsidiary tend to reduce Doral
Financial's consolidated nef interestrate spread and mar-
gin because these repurchase agreement fransactions
are collateralized with highly rated markefable securities
and thus entail relatively small interest rate spreads.
Excluding those repurchase agreement transactions,
Doral Financial’s interest rate spread and margin would

have been 1.47% and 1.67% for 2001 and 1.05% and
1.04% for 2000.

The following table presents, for the years indicated,
Doral Financial's average balance sheet, the fofal doflar
amount of inferest earned on ifs average interest-eaming
ossefs and the interest paid on its average interestbear-
ing licbilities expressed both in dollars and rates, and the
netf interest margin and spread. The table has been pre-
pared without taking info consideration the tax effect of
exempt securities. All average balances for 2001 are
based on average daily balances except for Doral
Securities, which are based on month-end balances. For
the years 2000 and 1999, average balances are
based on the average of month-end balances for Doral
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Financial and its non-banking subsidiaries, which Doral — and average daily balances for its banking subsidiaries,
Financial believes approximate average daily balances,  in each case during the years presented.

Teble A - Average Balance Sheet and Summary of Net Interest Income

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average Average  Average Average
Balance _Interest Yield/Rate Balance  Interest Yield/Rate Balance  Interest Yield/Rate
Assets:
[nterest-Earning Assets:
Total loans™ $2,166,090 $ 162,532 7.50% $1,557,097 $ 124,184 798% $1,072.302 § 78,258 7.30%
/\/\ortgoge-BOCked Securities 1,557,937 ©6,839 6.22% 1,135,204 78,075 6.88% 857,267 58,756 6.85%
Investment Securities 1,108,437 70,940 6.40% 1540,89] 101,852 6.61% 891,670 60,235 6.76%

Other InterestEarning Assets® 535357 25,784 4.82% 352,033 21,434 6.09% 263,633 14,430 5.47%
Total InterestEaming
Assets/Inferest Income 5,367,821 $ 356,095 6.63% 4,585225 § 325545 7.10% 3,084,872 § 211679 6.86%
Total NonnterestEarning Assets 809,906 518,681 445758
Total Assets $6,177.727 $5,103,906 $3,530,630

Liabilities and

Stockholders’ Equity:

Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Loans Payable $ 250,277 % 14270  570% $ 447271 $ 34159 764% § 375099 § 24292  6.48%
Repurchase Agreements 2,449,394 121,050  4.94% 2,229,536 136,346  6.12% 1,418,004 72726 5.13%
Deposits 1,483,296 70,399  A75% 1,223,374 62,002  507% 771,801 35784  4A64%
Other Borrowed Funds® 288,049 65949 _ 667% 683,779 50,734 _ 742% 372,466 28,993 7.78%

Total InterestBearing
Lickilifies/Interest Expense 5,171,016 $ 271,668 _ 525% 4,583,960 $ 283,241 618% 2,937,370 $ 161,795 _ 551%

Total NonnierestBearing Liabiliies 386,359 86,688 238,613
Total liabilities 5,557,375 4,670,648 3,175,983
Stockholders” Equity 620,352 433,258 354,647
Total Liabilities
and Stockholders” Equity $6,177.727 $5,103,906 $3,530,630
Net InterestEarning Assets $ 196,805 $ 1,265 $ 147,502
Net Inferest Income on
a NonToxable Equivalent Basis § 84,427 $ 42,304 $ 49,884
Inferest Rale Spread 1.38% 0.92% 1.35%
Interest Rate Margin® 1.57% 0.93% 1.62%
Net Interesttarning Assets Rafio 103.81% 100.03% 105.02%

{1} Average loan balances include the average balance of nor-accruing loars, on which no interest income is recognized.

[2) Consists of money market instruments, reverse repurchcse agreements and deposits in other banks.

{3]  Consists of FHLB-NY advances and nofes payable.

{41 Inferest rate spread represents the difference between Doral Financial's weighted average yield on interestearning assefs and the weighted average rate on inferestbearing
liabilities. Interest rate margin represents net interest income as a perceniage of average inferestearning assefs.
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The following table describes the extent to which
changes in inferest rafes and changes in volume of infer
estearning assets and interestbearing liabilities have
affected Doral Financial's interest income and inferest
expense during the years indicated. For each category

of interesteaming assets and inferestbearing liabilities,
information is provided on changes attributable o (i)

Table B - Net Interes? Income Varignce Analysis

changes in volume {change in volume multiplied by prior
year rafe), (i) changes in rafe (change in rate multiplied
by current year volume), and |iii] fotal change in rate and
volume. The combined effect of changes in both rate
and volume has been allocated in proportion to the
absclute dollar amounts of the changes due to rate and
volume.

2001 compared to 2000 2000 compared to 1999
Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
Due to: Due to:

(Dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest income variance :

Total loans $ 48,598 $ {10,250} $ 38,348 % 35,381 § 10,545 % 45,926

Morigage-backed securities 29,084 (10,320} 18,764 19,049 270 19,319

Investment securities [28,585) (2,327) {30,912} 43,857 {2,240) 41,617

Other inferestearning assets 11,164 (6,814) 4,350 4,839 2,165 7,004
Total interest income variance 60,261 (29.711) 30,550 103,126 10,740 113,866
Inferest expense variance

Loans payable (15,050) (4,839) {19,889) 4 674 5,193 9,867

Repurchase agreements 13,455 (28,751} [15,296) 41,622 21,998 63,620

Deposits 13,178 4,781} 8,397 20,037 5,281 26,218

Other borrowed funds 22,577 [7,362) 15,215 24,233 (2,492) 21,741
Total interest expense variance 34,160 45,733) 11,573) 91,466 29,280 121,446
Net interest income variance $ 26101 $ 16022 § 42,123 § 11,680 $ (19240 $ 7.580)

Interest Income

Total interest income increased from approximately
$211.7 million during 1999, 1o $325.5 million during
2000 and to $356.1 million during 2001. The increase
in interest income is mainly due to the increase in Doral
Financial's total average interestearning ossefs that
increased by approximately $782.6 million during 2001
and by approximately $1.5 billion during 2000.

Inerest income on loans increased by $38.3 million or
31% during 2001 compared to 2000, and by $45.9
million or 5% during 2000 compared to 1999, The
increase during both periods reflected an increase in the
level of loans held by Doral Financial due fo the increased
volume of loan production.

Inferest income on morigage-backed securities increased
by $18.8 million or 24% during 2001, and by $19.3
million or 33% during 2000 compared to 1999. The
increases during these years resulted from an increase in
the average balance of morigoge-backed securities,
which increased from $857.3 million during 1999 to
$1.7 billion during 2000, and 1o $1.6 billion during
2001. The increase in mortgage-backed securities, which
resulted primarily from the securitization of internal loan

production, reflects Doral Financial’s strategy fo continue
fo maximize tax-exempt interest income. Mortgage-
backed securities include Puerfo Rico GNMA securifies
that are tax exempt for Puerto Rico income tax purposes
and U.S. FHIMC and FNMA mortgage-backed securities
and |Os refained as part of Doral Financial morigage sale
and securitization acfivities. The inferest earned on U.S.
morigage-backed securities held by Doral Financial’s inter-
national banking entities organized under Puerto Rico law
is tox exempt to Doral Financial and is not subject to U.S.
income taxation because such enfifies are considered for-
eign corporations for U.S. income tax purposes and are
entitled to the porifolio interest deduction with respect fo
inferest earned on such securifies.

Interest income on investment securities decreased by
$30.9 million or 30% from 2000 o 2001, and
increased $41.6 million or 69% from 1999 to 2000.
The decrease in inferest income from 2000 to 2001 on
investment securities reflects the early redemption of a sig-
nificant amount of debt securities. The increase in interest
income during 2000 was due fo increases in investment
securities held during the period. The average balance of
investment securities was $1.1 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to $1.5 billion and
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$8%1.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

Inferest income on other inferestearning assets increased
by $4.4 million or 20% from 2000 to 2001, compared
fo an increase of $7.0 million or 49% from 1999 to
2000. Other interestearning assefs consist primarity of
money market instruments, overnight deposits, ferm
deposits, and reverse repurchase agreements. The
increase from 2000 to 2001 was due primarily to higher
liquidity and the investment of such liquidity in reverse
repurchase agreements and ferm deposits. The increase
in inferest income from other interestearing assefs reflects
Doral Financial's continued diversification info other busi-
ness segments, including banking, investment and
broker-dealer activities.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense decreased to $271.7 million for
2001, compared to $283.2 million for 2000, a
decrease of 4%, and grew by $121.4 million from 1999
to 2000, an increase of 75%. The decrease in interest
expense for 2001 was due principally to a decrease in
the average cost of borrowings due to the declining infer-
est rate environment experienced during 2001. The
increase in inferest expense for 2000 was due primarily
to the growth in the average amount of interestbearing
liabilities, which funded the growth in interestearning
assefls, and to the increase in shortterm interest rates dur-
ing the first half of the year. Average interestbearing
liabilities increased to $5.2 billion at an average cost of
5.25% for the year ended December 31, 2001, com-
pared to $4.6 billion of an average cost of 6.18% for the
vear ended December 31, 2000, and $2.9 billion at an
average cost of 5.51% for the year ended December 31,
1999.

Inferest expense related to loans payable amounted to
$14.3 million for 2001, compared to $34.2 million for
2000, a decrease of 58%. From 1999 to 2000 it
increased by $9.9 million or 41%. The decrease in inter
est expense on loans payable for 2001 was principally
due to the decrease in the average amount of loans
payable as well as the decrease on the rates paid by
Doral Financial on its warehousing lines of credit. The
average balance of loans payable for 2001 was
$250.3 million at an average cost of 5.70%, compared
to $447 .3 million at an average cosi of 7.64% for 2000
and $375.1 million af an average cost of 6.48% for
1999,

Inferest expense related to securities sold under agree-
ments fo repurchase decreased by $15.3 million or 11%
during 2001 compared to 2000, and increased $63.6
million or 87% during 2000 compared o 1999, The
decrease during 2001 reflected increased borrowings to

finance morigoge-backed securities and other investment
securifies that were offset by lower borrowing costs. The
average balance of borrowings under repurchase agree-
ments for 2001 was $2.5 billion at an average cost of
4 9%, compared fo $2.2 billion af an average cost of
6.12% for 2000 and $1.4 billion at an average cost of
5.13% for 1999.

Inferest expense on deposits increased by $8.4 million or
14% during 2001 compared to 2000, and increased
$26.2 million or 73% during 2000 compared o 1999,
The increase in inferest expense on deposits reflects the
increase in deposits held at Doral Financial’s banking sub-
sidiaries, which average balances increased to $1.5
billion for 20071, from $1.2 billion for 2000 and $772
million for 1999, The increase in deposits reflects the
expansion of Doral Financial’s retail bank branch network
which increased to 32 branches as of December 31,
2001, compared fo 23 branches as of December 31,
2000. The average interest cost of deposits was 4.75%
during 2001, 5.07% during 2000 and 4.64% during
1999.

Inferest expense on other borrowed funds increased by
$15.2 million or 30% during 2001 compared to 2000
and increased $21.7 million or 75% during 2000 com-
pared to 1999 Interest expense on other borrowed funds
includes various term notes issued by Doral Bank-PR, $75
million senior notes due October 10, 2006, $329 mil
lion in term notes maturing between 2004 and 2016,
and advances from the FHLB-NY, as well as various other
borrowings.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is charged to eamings to bring
the fofal allowance for loan losses o a level considered
appropriate by management based on Doral Financial's
loss experience, current delinquency rates, known and
inherent risk in the loan portfclio, an assessment of individ-
ual problem loans, the estimated value and equity of any
underlying collateral, and an assessment of current eco-
nomic conditions. While management believes that the
current provision for loan losses is sufficient, future additions
o the allowance for loan losses could be necessary if eco-
nomic conditions change or if credit losses increase
substantially from the expectations used by Doral Financial
in determining the allowance for loan losses. Unanticipated
increases in the allowance for loan losses could result in
reductions in Doral Financial's net income.

Doral Financial made provisions fo its allowance for
loan losses of $4.4 million, $4.1 million and $2.6 mil-
lion for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. The provision increased by
$300,000 from 2000 to 2001 and by $1.5 million
from 1999 to 2000. The increase from 2000 to 2001
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is primarily related to an increase in the size of Doral
Financial’s loan portfolio. The increase from 1999 1o
2000 reflects an increase in the size of the loan porifo-
lio as well as an increase in the number of construction
loans, commercial real estate and other commercial
loans that carry greater credit risk.

Non-Inferest Income

Net Gains on Morigage Lloan Sales and Fees. Net gains
on mortgage loan sales and fees increased by 39% dur-
ing 2001 and by 68% from 1999 to 2000. The
increases for 2001 and 2000 were related to recording
of higher gains on such sales related primarily to the
recognition of 1Os refained in connection with mortgage
loan sales. Refer to "Amortization of IOs and Servicing
Assets” for a discussion of how the recognition of servic-
ing ossefs and IOs in connection with morigage loan
sales results in the recognition of income on Doral
Financial’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

loan sales were $2.2 billion for 2001, compared 1o
$2.4 billion for 2000 and $1.4 billion for 1999, Doral
Financial recognized IOs as part of its sales activities of
$147.4 million for 2001, compared to $72.7 million for
2000 and $46.1 million for 1999, During 2001, Doral
Financial also recorded $38.2 million in connection with
the recognition of mortgage servicing assets as part of ifs
loan sale and securitization activities, compared fo
$41.7 million for 2000 and $22.5 million for 1999.
loan origination fees were $64.9 million for 2001 com-
oared to $51.4 million for 2000 and $53.7 million for
1999.

Net Servicing Income. Servicing income represents rev-
enues earned for administering mortgage loans. The main

component of Doral Financial's servicing income is loan

Table € - Components of Servicing Income

servicing fees, which depend on the type of mortgage
loan being serviced and generally range from 0.25% to
0.50% of the declining outstanding principal amount of
the serviced loan. Doral Financial's weighted average
servicing fee for 2001 and 2000 was 0.33% compared
to 0.37% tor 1999.

Late fees and other servicing related fees such as prepay-
ment fees are clso included as a component of servicing
income. late fees and other servicing related fees were
$6.6 million for 2001, compared to $5.2 million in
2000 and $4.7 million in 1999.

Servicing income net of amortization decreased by 97%
from 2000 1o 2001 and by 13% from 1999 to 2000. The
decreases for 2000 and 2001 were the result of increased
amortization of mortgage servicing assefs. Increased amor-
tization offset the increase in gross servicing fees of 14% for
2001 and 6% for 2000 produced by increases in the size
of the servicing portfolio. The increase in amorfization was
the result of a larger servicing portfolio and, in the case of
2001, an increase in unscheduled amortization and
impairment related to increased prepayment estimates due
fo declining inferest rates. Amortization of servicing assets
was $29.7 million, $14.3 million and $11.0 million for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Doral Financial recognized unscheduled amor-
fization and impairment of $8.8 million during 2001 due
to the increase in prepayment esfimates associated with
falling interest rates. Doral Financial's morigage servicing
portfolio was approximately $10.0 billion at December
31, 2001, compared fo $8.8 billion af December 31,
2000 and $7.6 billion at December 31, 1999,

The components of net servicing income are shown
below:

Year ended December 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Servicing fees $ 23,507 § 21,248 % 20,227
Late charges 5875 4,949 4,510
Other 735 221 199
Servicing income, gross 30,117 26,418 24,936
Amortization of servicing assets:
Scheduled [20,884) (14,268} {10,988}
Unscheduled (8,844} - -
Servicing income, net $ 389 § 12,150 §$ 13,948

30 DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT




Trading Activities. Trading activities includes all gains or
losses, whether realized or unrealized, in the market
value of Doral Financial's securities held for trading and
its derivative instruments used for inferest rate manage-
ment purposes. For the purposes of determining
unrecognized gains or losses, Doral Financial values its
frading securities and derivatives by reference to quoted
market prices for instruments traded on recognized mar-
kets. For instruments not traded on a recognized market,
Doral Financial generally determines fair value by refer-
ence to quoted market prices for comparable instruments.
In the case of Puerto Rico tax-exempt GNMA securities,
Doral Financial values these assets by reference to quo-
tations received from local broker-dealers after
adjusting such amount for market factors such as liquid-
ity and the price for U.S. GNMA securities. Doral
Financial also uses valuation models to estimate fair val-
ues based on assumptions regarding future cash flows.
See "Amortization of 10s and Servicing Assets” for an
explanation as to the determination of fair values for IOs,
which are included as securities held for trading, and
"Interest Rate Risk Management - Derivatives” for a more

Table D - Components of Trading Activities

detailed discussion regarding the defermination of fair
values of derivatives used for inferest rate management
purposes.

The value of Deral Financial’s frading securities and deriv-
atives are generally very sensitive fo inferest rate changes
and the reporied fair values of ceriain of these assets such
as [Os are based on assumptions regarding the direction
of interest rates and prepayment rates on mortgage loans.
As a result, unaniicipafed changes in inferest rafes and
prepayment rales for morigage loans can result in sub-
stantial volafility in the components of the trading account.
As described under “Interest Rate Risk Management,”
Dorc! Financial attempts to mitigate the risk to the value of
its trading securities by entering info hedging transactions
involving the purchase of derivatives such as options and
future confracts. These hedging positions are designed to
nelp compensate for losses in the value of trading securi-
ties through gains in the derivative positions.

Set forth below is a summary of the components of gains
and losses from frading activities:

Years ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Net realized gains and {losses] on sales of trading securities $ 46 % (6.8 % 97
Nef unrealized gains and (losses) on frading securities {13.8) 55 (0.1
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments 10.6) (8.1} 3.3
Total $ 19.8)' 9.4) $ 12.9

Gain on Sale of Invesiment Securities. Gain on sale of
investment securities represents the impact on Doral
Financial's income of transactions involving the sale of
securities available for sale. This component of earnings
increased by 58% from 2000 to 2001, and increased
10% from 1999 to 2000. Sales of securities available for
sale were $2.6 billion in 2001, compered to $552.8
million in 2000 and $437.3 million in 1999.

Commissions, fees and Other Income. Cther non-inferest

Table E - Fees and Commissions

income, commissions and fees increased by 82% in
2001 compared to 2000, increasing from $9.9 million
to $18.0 million, and by 71% in 2000 compared to
1999, increasing from $5.8 million to $9.9 million. The
increase is primarily related 1o the volume of commissions
and fees earmed by Doral Financial's banking, broker
dealer and insurance agency subsidiaries.

Set forth below is a summary of Doral Financial’s principal
sources of fees and commissions.

Year ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Deposit and other retail banking fees $ 4,464 % 2,788 % 1,357
Securities fees and commissions 4,615 3,800 3,068
Insurance fees and commissions 4,375 144 -
Other Income 4,523 3,129 1,384
Total $ 176977 ¢ 9861 § 5,809
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Doral Financial's fees and commissions have increased
steadily as Doral Financial's banking subsidiaries continue
to increase their retail branch network and as Doral
Financial continues to diversify its sources of revenues by
generating additional securities fees and generating fees
and commissions from insurance agency acfivities.

During December 2001, Doral Financial agreed fo sell its
refail  securities  business  to  UBS/PaineWebber
Incorporated of Puerto Rico {"UBS"). This transaction is
expected to close during the first quarter of 2002.
Following completion of the transaction, Doral Securities,
Doral Financial's securities subsidiary, will confinue to offer
institutional brokerage and investment banking services.
For additional information regarding this transaction, refer
fo “Operating Segments — Broker-dealer Operations.”

Amortization of [0s and Servicing Assels

Doral Financial creates IOs in connection with the sale of
mortgage loans in bulk. See Note 2 of Doral Financial’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information
regarding the accounting treatment of IOs. I1Os are created
on the sale of mortgage loans with servicing refained and
represent the estimated present value of the excess of the
weighted-average coupon on the loans sold over the sum
of: (i} the passthrough interest paid fo the investor and |ii}
normal servicing fee, based on the servicing fee permitied
by FNMA and FHWMC, after adjusting such amount for
expected losses and prepayments. The passthrough inter-
est payable fo the investor may be a fixed rate or a floating
rafe generally based on a spread over the three-month
LIBOR rate.The amount of the IOs is recognized as on
adjustment to the carrying basis of the loans and is record-
ed at the time of sale of the related loans. The effect of this
freatment is fo recognize the value of the |Os as income at
the time of sale, even though the cash received by Doral
Financial with respect to such [Os is received over the life of
the related loans. To compute the value of the I0s, Doral
Financial multiplies the interest spread it is entifled to refain
on the loans sold by the principal balance of the morigage
oool being sold. The resulting product is then multiplied by
a market factor which Doral Financial obtains from an unre-
lated financial institution that obtains the factor by reference
fo infernal valuation models that incorporate assumptions
regarding discount rates and mortgage prepayment rates.
The market factor used by Doral Financial to value 10s
ranged from 3.75% to 5.5% during 2001 and 4.5% to
5.5% during 2000. While Doral Financial has from time to
fime sold IOs in private scles, there does not currently exist
a liquid market for the purchase and sale of 1Cs.

The value assigned to the IOs reduces the basis of the
related mortgage loan sold ond thereby results in
increased "Net Gain on Mortgage Lloan Sales and Fees”
at the time of sale. Doral Financial recognized [Os of
approximately $141.4 million for 2001, compared to

$72.7 million and $46.1 million in 2000 and 1999,
respectively. During 2001, Doral Financial was generally
able to recognize higher values for its 10s because the
orevailing inferest passthrough rates paid to investors
tended to decline more than the weighted average infer
est rates of the loans {generally non-conforming loans)
sold, thereby increasing the interest rate spread payable
to Doral Financial over the expected life of the 1Os.

The initial recorded value of IOs is amortized over the
expected life of the asset, and the amortization is record-
ed as a reduction of interest income. The amortization of
|Os is based on the amount and timing of estimated future
cash flows to be received with respect to the 1Os.
Throughout the life of the 1Os, Doral Financial continues to
monitor changes in interest rates fo defermine whether the
continued use of the market factor selected fo value the
IOs is still appropriate in fight of changes in market condi-
tions. It also attempts to corroborate the value assigned to
the 1Os through use of valuation models that incorporate
assumptions regarding the direction of interest rates and
orepayment rates. To the extent changes in interest rafes
or prepayment rates so warrant, Doral Financial will
increase or decrease the recorded value of the IOs and
increase or decrease the level of amortization.
Amortization of |Os for each of the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, was approxi-
mately $31.9 million, $13.6 million and $6.9 million,
respectively. The increase in the amortization for 2001
compared to 2000 and 1999 is due fo the increase in
the amount of 1Os as well as increased amortization result
ing from increased mortgage prepayment rotes tied fo
decreases in interest rates. The carrying amount of the 10s
is reflected in Doral Financial's Consolidated Statements
of Condition as a component of “Securities held for trad-
ing.” As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the
carrying amount of 1Os and other residual interest
refained in securitization transactions recorded on Doral
Financial’'s Consolidated Financiol Statements was
$236.5 million, $158.0 million and $106.4 million,

respectively.

Beginning with the second quarter of 1995, whenever
Doral Financial sells a morigage loan it allocates the cost
of the loan between the loon and the related mortgage
servicing right [the “servicing asset” or "morfgage servic-
ing right”} based on their relative fair values. The servicing
asset represents the present value of the servicing fees, net
of estimated servicing costs, expected to be received on
the loan over the expected term of the loan. Doral
Financial determines the fair value of its servicing assefs
by reference to prices paid by third parties in market
transactions for similar morigage servicing rights. During
2001 and 2000, the market prices used to value Doral
Financial's servicing assets varied from 1.5% of the princi-
pal amount of the loans subject to the servicing rights fo
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2.3% with GNMA, FNMA and FHIMC servicing rights
generally having higher prices than servicing rights for
non-conforming loans. In addition, the value of Doral
Financial's FNMA, FHIMC and GNMA mortgage servic-
ing portfolio is evaluated on a periodic basis by an
independent third party.

The value of the servicing asset assigned fo a morigage
loan reduces the basis of the related mortgage loan and
thereby results in increased “Net Gain on Mortgage Loan
Sales and Fees” at the time of sale. During the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, Doral
Financial recognized servicing assets of $38.3 million,
$36.5 million and $45.0 million, respectively, related to
the recognition of mortgage servicing rights in connection
with the sale of internally originated loans. Servicing
assets purchased in bulk from third parties are initially
recorded on Doral Financial's financial statement at the
amount paid for such assets. The unamortized balance of
the servicing asset is reflected on Doral Financial’s
Consolidated Statements of Financicl Condition. No serv-
icing assets have been recognized for the portion of Doral
Financial’s mortgage servicing portfolio consisting of
loans internally originated by Doral Financial prior to the
adoption of SFAS No. 122 amounting to approximately
$627 .8 million.

Table F - Capitalization of Merigege Servicing Assels

[Dollars in thousands)

Doral Financial’s servicing assets are amortized in propor-
fion to, and over the period of, estimated servicing
income. Amortization of servicing assefs is recorded as a
reduction of servicing income in Doral Financial’s
Consolidated Statements of Income. As in the case of 1Os,
Doral Financial monitors changes in interest rates and pre-
payment rates and adjusts the amount of amortization or
records an impairment loss to reflect changes in prepay-
ment rates. During 2001, total amortization of servicing
assets, including unscheduled amortization and impair-
ment, amounted to $29.7 million versus $14.3 million for
2000 and $11.0 million for 1999.

Doral Financial's servicing assefs are also evaluated for
impairment. Impairment is recognized whenever the pre-
payment pattern of a particular mortgage pool indicates
that the fair value of the related servicing assefs is less
than its carrying amount. Impairment is recognized by
charging such excess fo income. In determining impair-
ment, Doral Financial sfratifies its servicing assets based
on their predominant risk characteristics, which Doral
Financial has determined fo be the type of loans [conven-
fional, conforming and non-conforming) and interest rafes.

The following table shows the changes in Doral

Financial's mortgage servicing assets for each of the years
shown:

Year ended December 31,

Balance at beginning of period
Capitalization of rights
Rights sold
Amortization:
Scheduled
Unscheduled (including impairment]

Balance af end of period

Doral Financial believes that the assumptions it uses to
value its |Os and servicing assefs are reasonable. These
assumptions are based on hisiorical experience and the
use of infernal valuation medels. Increases in prepayment
rates or credit losses over anficipated levels, however,
could adversely affect Doral Financial’s results of opera-
tions and liquidity by increasing the amortization rates for

2001 2000 1999

$ 139795 $ 109721 $ 72,568
44,273 44,342 48,148

- - 7]

(20,884]  (14,268] (10,988
(8,844) - -

$ 154340 § 139795 § 109,721

servicing assets and |1Os, as well as requiring Doral
Financial to recognize an impairment against income
over and above scheduled amortization. Please refer to
Note 12 to Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial
Statements for certain hypothetical examples of the possi-
ble impact that increases in prepayment rates could have
on the value of Doral Financial’s IOs and servicing assets.
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Non-Interest Expense

Total nonrinterest expense increased by 22% during 2001
expense is provided below.

Table G - Non-Interest Expense

, compared to 7% during 2000. A summary of noninterest

Year ended December 371,

[Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Compensation and employee benefits $ 47759 % 40514 § 44,838
Taxes, other than payroll and income taxes 4,423 3,974 2,610
Advertising 9,379 791 5,875
Professional services 5,804 4,549 5473
Communication and information systems 10,248 7,824 6,573
Occupancy and other office expenses 17,170 14,060 10,849
Depreciation and amortization 10,325 7179 4,534
Other 7,746 6,380 5,816
Total non-interest expense $ 112854 % 22,391 § 86,568

Compensation and employee benefits increased to
$47.8 million for 2001, compared to $40.5 million for
2000 and $44.8 million for 1999, A significant portion
of the increase was related primarily to increased employ-
ment due to continuing retail bank branch expansion and
o the higher volume of loan originations and a larger
servicing portfolio. Commission expense relating to secu-
rities transactions also increased as Doral Financial
increased its refail securities sales force during the period.
Fulltime employees at December 31, 2001 were 1,875,
compared fo 1,467 and 1,444 as of December 31,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Advertising expense increased to $9.4 million in 2001
from $7.9 million in 2000 and $5.9 million in 1999,
The increases for 2001 and 2000 were primarily due to
additional costs associated with advertising campaigns
for loan and deposit products.

Professional fees for 2001 were $5.8 million compared
to $4.5 million for 2000 and $5.5 million for 1999. The
increase for 2001 was primarily due to legal, account-
ing, security and consulting fees associated with the
continued expansion of Doral Financial’s business.

Communication and information systems expense was
$10.2 million in 2007, compared to $7.8 million in
2000 and $6.6 million in 1999, The increases for 2001
and 2000 reflect increased expenses in telephone, data
lines, outsourced data processing and network fees asso-
ciated with an expanding retail branch network and an
increased customer base.

Occupancy and ofher office expenses were $17.2 mil-
lion in 2001, compared to $14.1 million in 2000 and
$10.8 million in 1999. The increases during 2001 and

2000 were primarily due to higher rent resulting from
additional leases and increased officerelated expenses
such as printing and sfationary and office equipment leas:
es associated with Doral Financial's ongoing branch
network expansion program and increased customer
base.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $10.3 mil-
lion in 2001, compared to $7.2 million in 2000 and
$4.5 million in 1999, The increase in depreciation was
principally related to the increase in leasehold improve-
ments and the purchase of office fumiture and equipment
as well os software and hardware related to the
Company's growth and systems upgrade.

Other expense increased to $7.7 million in 2001, com-
pared to $6.4 million in 2000 and $5.8 million in
1999. The increases for 2001 and 2000 were primarily
related fo increases in mortgage loan originations related
expenses, mailing, cusiodial fees and other expenses.

Income Taxes

Income taxes include Puerto Rico income taxes as well as
applicable federal and state taxes. As a Puerto Rico cor-
poration, Doral Financial is generally only required to
pay federal income tax with respect fo its income derived
from the active conduct of a trade or business in the
United States [excluding Puerto Rico) and certain invest-
ment income derived from U.S. assets. The maximum
statutory corporate income tax rate in Puerto Rico is 39%.
For 2001, the elfective income tax rate for Doral
Financial was 12.9%, compared to 12.0% for 2000
and 11.3% for 1999, The lower effective tax rates {com-
pared to the maximum statutory rate} were primarily the
result of the tax exemption enjoyed by Doral Financial on
interest income derived from certain FHA and VA mort-
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gage loans secured by properties located in Puerto Rico
and on GNMA securities backed by such morigage
loans. Doral Financial also invests in U.S. Treasury and
agency securities that are exempt from Puerto Rico
income faxation and are not subject to federal income
taxation because of the portfolio interest deduction to
which Doral Financial is entitled as a foreign corpora-
tion. In addition, its international banking entities
organized in Puerto Rico may invest in various U.S. secu-
rities, the income on which is not subject to Puerto Rico or
federal income taxes. Net income tax savings to Doral
Financial afiributable to tax-exempt income amounted to
approximately $38.2 million, $18.3 million and $13.8
million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively. See Note 20 to Doral
Financial's Consolidated Financial Statements for a rec-
onciliction of the provision for income iaxes to the

Table H - Operating Segments

amount computed by applying the applicable Puerto
Rico statutory tax rafes to income before faxes.

Operafing Segments

Doral Financial manages its business with reference to
four operating segments: mortgage banking, banking
{including thrift operations), brokerdealer operations and
insurance agency activities, which commenced in
December 2000. Refer to Note 31 of Doral Financial’s
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for sum-
marized financial information for these operating
segments. The entfire amount of interest expense related to
debt incurred at the parent company level is allocated to
the mortgage banking segment.

The net income, net interest income (loss] and nonvinterest
income of each segment is summarized below.

Year ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Net income

Reportable segments:

Mortgage banking $ 96,744 % 72,565 § 52,009
Banking - 49332 26,889 15737
Brokerdealer 2,073 226 1,307
Insurance 2,287 3¢ -
Consolidating eliminations _[6,583) {15,063) 11,127
Consolidated net income $ 143,851 § 84656 § 67,926
Net interest income (loss)

Reportable segmenfs:

Mortgage banking $ 23853 % (7.7400% 17,536
Banking 60,391 47,133 29,110
Broker-dealer 2,486 2,164 2,366
Insurance 572 - -
Consolidating eliminations (2,875) 747 872
Consolidated net interest income $ 84427 § 42304 $ 49,884
Nen-interest income

Reporiable segments:

Morigage banking $ 145164 § 142715 $ 101,866
Banking 36,788 16,230 9,220
Broker-dealer 8,859 7,038 6,838
Insurance 4057 144 -
Consolidating eliminations (3,736) (15,810) (2,001)
Consolidated norvinterest income $ 191,132 § 150,317 $ 115923

Mortgage Banking. This segment includes a wide range of
activities, including the origination, sale and securitization
of mortgage loans, the holding of mortgage-backed securi-
ties and other invesiment securities for sale or investment,
and the origination of construction loans and morigage

loans secured by incomeproducing real estate or unim-
proved land. The mortgage banking business is carried out
primarily in Puerio Rico, with less significant activities in
Florida and New York. Net interest income was $23.9 mik
lion in 2001, and $17.5 million in 1999, whereas the unit
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experienced a net interest loss of $7.7 million in 2000. The
increase in net interest income for 2001 was due to
increased interest spread and margin experienced during
the year as a result of declining interest rates. Conversely,
the decrease in nef interest income for 2000 was due fo
decreased inferest rate spread and margin experienced
during 2000. Inferest rate spread and margin for the mort-
gage banking segment for 2001 was 1.15% and 1.17%,
respectively, compared fo (0.69/% and 0.12% for 2000.

Noninterest income was $145.2 million, $142.7 million
and $101.9 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
ively. The increases during these years were related to
increases on gains on morigage loans related to a greater
volume of sales tied to increased morigage production and
higher gains on such sales. Morigage originations for this
segment were $2.7 billion for 2001, compared o $2.3
billion for 2000 and $2.3 billion for 1999. loan sales
were $2.2 billion for 2001, compared o $2.4 billion for
2000 and $1.4 billion for 1999.

Banking. The banking segment includes Doral Financial's
commercial banking operations in Puerto Rico currently
operating through 29 retail bank branches and ifs thrift
operations in the New York City metropolitan area current
ly operating through three refail branches. Doral Financial’s
banking subsidiaries offer a variety of loan and deposit
products, with emphasis on residential, construction and
commercial real estate mortgage loan products. Doral
Financial’s banking subsidiaries have entered info master
loan production agreements with its morigage banking
affiliates whereby the mortgage banking units help the
banking subsidiaries originate loans by advertising to the
general public and providing ofher origination and setle-
ment services. These arrangements result in reduced
expenses for Doral Financicl by avoiding the costs of main-
faining duplicative origination sysfems.

Net interest income for the banking segment was $60.3
million for 2001, compared to $47.1 million for 2000
and $17.5 million for 1999, The increase in net interest
income for 2001 and 2000 resulted from improved inferest
rate spreads and margins as well as continued increases in
the amount of interesteaming assets. The interest rate
spread and margin for the banking segment for 2001 were
2.25% and 2.28% compared to 2.05% and 1.86% for
2000. Total assets of the banking segment were $3.7 bil-
lion for 2001, compared to $2.7 billion for 2000 and
$1.9 billion for 1999,

Norrinterest income increased to $36.8 million in 2001,
compared to $16.2 million in 2000 and $9.2 million in
1999. The increases reflected increased gains on sales of
mortgage loans tied to the increased volume of foan sales
and the recognifion of higher gains on such sales. Gains on
mortgage loan sales and fees for this segment were $20.1

million in 2001, compared to $12.2 million in 2000.
Banking fees and commissions also increased considerably
during the period, increasing from $1.4 million in 1999 1o
$2.8 million in 2000 and $4.5 million in 2001.

Brokerdealer Operations. This segment comresponds fo the
operations of Doral Financial’s brokerdealer subsidiary,
Doral Securities, Inc., which is headguartered in San Juan,
Puerto Rico. Doral Securities maintains disfinct retail and
institutional operations. The retail division is primarily
engaged in the sale of securities to retail customers while
the institutional division sells securities to institutional cus-
fomers, provides investment banking services and operates
a repurchase lending operation involving shorterm exten-
sions of credit secured by highly liquid and marketcble
securities.

Net interest income was $2.5 million in 2001, compared
to $2.2 million in 2000 and $2.4 million in 1999. The
increase for 2001 was related to increased spreads on the
repurchase lending operations. The interest rate spread and
margin for 2001 were 0.44% and 0.53%, respectively,
compared fo 0.24% and 0.30% for 2000.

Non-interest income was $8.9 million for 20071, compared
to $7.0 million for 2000 and $6.8 million for 1999, The
increase during 2001 was primarily related to increases in
trading profits and investment banking fees. Trading profits
increased from $3.2 million to $4.2 million and investment
oanking and other fees increased from $2.1 million to
$4.0 million. Commissions decreased from $1.7 million in
2000 to $651,000 in 2001, primarily related to reduced
securifies fransactions due fo the poor performance experi-
enced by the stock markefs during this period.

In December 2001, Doral Financicl entered into an agree-
ment with UBS/PaineWebber Incorporated of Puerto Rico
["UBS") 1o sell its retail securities division. This transaction is
expected to close during the first quarter of 2002. As part
of the transaction, UBS agreed to provide retail securities
services in selected Doral Financial bank branch locations
and to pay Doral Financial o portion of all commissions
eamed with respect o sales of securities at these locations.
UBS has also agreed to pay Doral Financial a continuing
fee over a fouryear period computed on the amount of
retail brokerage assets transferred as part of the transaction
that are maintained with UBS during this period. Doral
Financial believes that the aggregate impact of the reduc-
fion of expenses related fo eliminating a retail brokerage
staff and the amounts payable by UBS to Doral Financial
will more than compensate for any reduction in brokerage
commissions affributable fo the elimination of the refail secu-
rities division.

Insurance Agency. This segment commenced operations in
Puerto Rico in December 2000. Doral Insurance Agency
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sells hazard, life and disability insurance, as well as other forms of insurance, primarily to Doral Financial’s base of mort-
gage customers. During 2001, it had net interest income of $572,000 and nonrinterest income mainly composed of
insurance fees and commissions of $4.1 million.

Balance Sheet and Operating Data Analysis

Lloan Production

loan production includes loans internally originated by Doral Financial as well as loans purchased from third parties.
Purchases of mortgage loans from third parties were $1.3 billion, $1.7 billion and $529.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The following table sefs forth the number and dollar amount of

Doral Financial's loan production for the years indicated:

Table | - logn Production

Year ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except for average initial loan balance) 2001 2000 1999

FHA/VA mortgage loans

Number of loans 5,887 6,893 8,794
Volume of loans $ 516,597 § 0628200 § 722,969
Percent of total volume 12% 20% 27%

Conventional conforming mortgage loans

Number of loans 12,272 8,227 10,172
Volume of loans $ 1,500,536 § 535007 § 769,838
Percent of total volume 38% 17% 28%

Conventional non-conforming morigage loanst

Number of loans 21,568 16,494 11,852

Volume of loans $1,594,118 $ 1408709 $§ 818,556

Percent of total volume 38% 44% 30%
Other®

Number of loans 1,588 1,374 1,783

Volume of loans $ 508,035 % 601,740 $ 410,756

Percent of total volume 12% 19% 15%
Total loans

Number of loans 41,315 32,088 32,601

Volume of loans ' $ 4,209,286 $ 3,173,746 $ 2,722,119
Average initial loan balance $§ 101,883 % 06,209 § 83,498

(1 Includes $55 million, $67 million and $26 million in second morigages for the yeers ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

[2) Includes $141 million, $55 million and $42 million in home equity or personal loans secured by real estate mortgages up to $40,000 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(3] Consists of construction loans on residential projects, morigage loans secured by multifamily and commercial properties as well as other commercial, land, and consumer
loans.

A substantial portion of Doral Financial’s total mortgage loan originations has consistently been composed of refi-
nanced loans. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, refinanced loans represented
approximately 56%, 38% and 61%, respectively, of the total dollar volume of morigage loans originated by Doral
Financial (excluding loans purchased from third parties). Doral Financial’s future results could be adversely affected by
a significant increase in mortgage inferest rates that may reduce refinancing activity. However, based on historical
experience, Doral Financial believes that refinancing activity is less sensitive to inferest rate changes in Puerto Rico than
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in the mainland United States because a significant number of refinanced loans are made for debt consclidation pur-
poses and because inferest cost on mortgage loans is tax deductible for borrowers.

Loan Origination Channels

In Puerfo Rico, Doral Financial relies primarily on its extensive refall mortigage banking and bank branch network to
originate loans. It supplements these originations with wholesale purchases from cother financial institutions. Purchases
from Puerto Rico insfitutions generally consist of FHA and VA loans, while purchases from mainland-based entities gen-
erally consist of conventional loans that qualify for the guarantee or sale programs of FNMA or FHWMC. Doral Financial
also originates consumer, commercial, consfruction and land loans. In Puerto Rico, Doral Financial maintains a spe-
ciclized unit that works closely with home builders and originates mortgage loans fo finance the acquisition of homes
in new residential developments.

Doral Financial customarily sells or securitizes into mortgage-backed securities substantially all the loans it originates,
except for cerfain consumer, commercial, construction, land, and commercial real estate loans which are held for

investment and classified as loans receivable. See “loans Receivaple.”

The following table sets forth the sources of Doral Financial's loan production as a percentage of total loan originations
for the years indicated:

Table J - Loan Origination Sources

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Puerto Rico US. Total Puerto Rico Us. Total Total

Retail 55% - 55% 47% - 47% 52%
Wholesale'™ 30% 1% 31% 33% 1% 34% 25%
New Housing Developments 8% 1% 9% 12% - 12% 8%
Multi-family - 1% 1% - 2% 2% 5%
Other? 3% 1% 4% 5% - 5% 10%

(1) Refers to purchases of morigage loans from other financial institutions. Puerto Rico wholesale purchases include U.S. mortgage loans purchased by Doral Financial's Puerto
Rico based mortgage units.

[2) Refers to commercial, construction, land, and consumer toans originated through Doral BankPR and other specialized units.

Morigage Loan Servicing _

Doral Financial's principal source of servicing rights has fraditionally been its own mortgage loan production. However,
during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, Doral Financial purchased servicing rights to approximately
$388.4 million and $184.3 million, respectively, in principal amount of mortgage loans. Doral Financial intends to
confinue growing its mortgage servicing porifolio primarily through infernal loan originations and wholesale purchases
of morigage loans. It will, however, continue fo seek o supplement these purchases with bulk purchases of servicing
rights from third parties.

The following table sefs forth certain information regarding the fotal mortgage loan servicing portfolio of Doral Financial
for the years indicated:
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Table K - Merigage Loan Servicing

Year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except for average size of loans prepaid) 2001 2000 1999
Cemposition ef Servicing Perifelic ot Year End:

GNMA $ 3,244,280 $ 3,140,493 $ 2,685,008
FHUMC /FNMA 2,652,781 2,332,116 2195977
Doral Financial grantor trusts 64,927 86,766 109,615
Other conventional morigage loans'™ 4,044,383 _3,245331 _ 2,642, 58]

Total servicing portfolio

Servicing Perifalic Activity:

$10,006,380 § 8,804,706 $ 7,633,181

Beginning servicing porifolio $ 8,804,706 $ 7,633,181 $ 6,186,059
Add: :

loans funded and purchased® 2,610,308 2,723,399 2,385,162

Bulk servicing acquired 388,401 184,251 238,265
less:

Sewvicing transferred and loans purchased serviced by others 138,548 688,536 -

Run-off® 1,658,487 1,047,589 1,176,305
Ending servicing portfolio $10,006,380 $ 8,804,706 $ 7,633,181
Selected Data Regerding Morigage Loans Serviced:
Number of loans 135,111 128,090 115,691
Weighted average interest rate 7.61% 7.77% 7.60%
Weighted average remaining maturity (months] 253 253 251
Weighted average servicing fee rafe 0.3292% 0.3342% 0.3741%
Average servicing porffolio $ 9,436,108 $ 8,271,683 § 7,226,939
Principal prepayments $ 1,333,000 § 587,000 $ 709,000
Prepayments average portfolio 14% 7% 10%
Average size of loans prepaid $ 70689 % 50,192 & 51,400
Servicing assefs $ 154340 § 139795 § 109,721
Delinquent Morigage Loans and Pending Foreclosures ot Year End:
60-89 days past due 1.31% 1.44% 1.32%
Q0 days or more past due 2.12% 2.44% 1.86%
Total delinquencies excluding foreclosures 3.43% 3.88% 3.18%
Foreclosures pending 1.41% 1.01% 1.14%

{1} Includes $1.4 billion, $867 million and $1.1 billion of loans owned by the Company at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, which represented 14%,
10% and 15%, respectively, of the fofal servicing porffolio as of such dates.

(2) Excludes approximately $1.6 billion, $450 million and $337 million of commercial, consumer, construction and other loans not included in the Company’s morigage serv-
icing portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(3] Runoff refers o regular amortization of loans, prepayments and foreclosures.

Most of the mortgage loans in Doral Financial's servicing portfolio are secured by single {onetofour] family residences
secured by real estate located in Puerio Rico. At December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, less than 5%, 7% and 6%,
respeciively, of Doral Financial's morigage servicing portfolio was related to mortgages secured by real property locat
ed outside Puerfo Rico.

The amount of principal prepayments on morigage loans serviced by Doral Financial was $1.3 billion, $587 million
and $709 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. This represented approx-
imately 14%, 7% and 10%, respectively, of the average principal amount of mortgage loans serviced during those
periods. Doral Financial strives to reduce the sensitivity of its servicing income to increases in prepayment rates through
a strong refail origination network that historically has been successful in increasing or maintaining the size of Doral
Financial's servicing portfolio even during periods of high prepayments.
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Mertgage Lloans Held for Sale

Substantially all of the residential mortgage loans originat
ed by Doral Financial are classified as held for sale
because it intends fo sell these loans in the ordinary
course of its mortgage banking and banking business.
Mortgage loans held for sale are carried on Doral
Financial's balance sheet at the lower of net cost or mar-
ket on an aggregate portfolio basis. Market values are
determined by reference 1o market prices for comparable
mortgage loans. The amount by which costs exceed mar-
ket value, if any, is accounted for as a loss during the
pericd in which the change in valuation occurs. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial owned approxi-
mately $1.9 billion in mortgage loans held for sale, of
which approximately $1.6 billion consisted of residential
mortgage loans. Given traditional consumer preferences
in Puerto Rico, subsfantially all of Doral Financial’s resi-
dentiol mortgage loans held for sale are fixed-rate loans.
Note 8 to Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial
Statements contains addifional information with respect to
Doral Financial's portfolio of mortgage loans held for sale.

Table L - Loans Receivable, Net

Loans Receivable

Doral Financial originates mortgage loans secured by
income-producing residential and commercial properties,
construction loans, land loans and other commercial and
consumer loans that are held for investment and classified
as loans receivable. Subsfantially all of Doral Financial’s
loans receivable represent loans made to entfifies or individ-
uals located in Puerto Rico.

The maximum aggregate amount of unsecured loans that
Doral Bank-PR could make to a single borrower under Puerto
Rico banking regulations as of December 31, 2001, was
approximately $29.1 million. Puerto Rico banking regula-
fions permit larger loans to a single borrower to the extent
secured by qudlifying collateral. The maximum aggregate
amount of loans that Doral Bank-NY could make to a single
borrower under OTS banking regulations as of December
31, 2001, was $4.5 million. Doral Financial’s largest out
standing indebtedness to a single borrower or group of
related borrowers as of December 31, 2001 was $57.9
million.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding
Doral Financial’s loans receivable as of the dates indicated:

As of December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Construction loans $368,961 55% $238,393 54% $114,853 41% $ 72,081 33% $ 9927 7%
Residential mortgage loans 63,546 9% 74,862 17% 70,659 26% 80,902 37% 87,037 &5%
Commercial real estate 72397 11% 38,353 9% 32,383 12% 16,443 8% 19,036 14%
Consumer secured by real estate 870 0% 2,107 1% 3,317 1% 5,005 2% 7,828 &%
Consumer - other 39,109 6% 16,652 4% 11,629 4% 6,290 3% 2,328 2%
Commercial noneal estate 67,891 10% 32,501 7% 16,089 6% 11,05 5% 3,461 2%
Loans on saving deposits 10,523 2% 10,836 2% 7,793 3% 3,676 2% 3,513 3%
land secured 46,602 7% 26935 6% 19927 7% 21418 10% 1,488 1%
Loans receivable, gross 669 899 100% 440,639 100% 277550 100% 216,866 100% 134,618 100%
less:
Undisbursed portion of loans in
process 110,302} (35,134) [40,571) (47 .575) -
Unearned interest and deferred
loan fees, net (2,484 (2.476) (3,655) (648) 1322
Allowance for loan losses'"! 6,000) 4,838) 2,140} 1,656 1,241}
25,786 42 448) 46,366) A9 879 1,563]
Loans receivable, net $644.113 $398,191 $231,184 $166,987 $133,055

{1} Does not include $6.5 million, $4.5 million, $4.0 million, $3.5 million and $1.6 million of allowance for loan losses allocated to morgage loans held for sale as of

December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2001, regarding the dollar amount of Doral
Financial’s loans receivable portfolio based on the remaining confractual maturity. Expected maturities may differ from
coniractual maturities because of prepayments and other market factors. Lloans having no sfated schedule of repay-
ments and no stated maturity are reported as due in one year or less.
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Table M - Loans Receivable by Confracival Maturities

As of December 31, 2001

1 year Tt0b Over 5

(Dollars in thousands) or less years years Total
Construction loans $ 38,707 $ 328,379 § 1,875 § 368,961
Residential morigage loans 29,518 6,594 27,434 63,546
Commercial real estate 26,221 45073 1,103 72,397
Consumer - secured by real esiate 4 866 ~ 870
Consumer - other 22,557 16,274 278 39,109
Commercial nonreal estate 38,410 14,158 15,323 67 891
Loans on saving deposits 6,314 4 209 ~ 10,523
land secured 17,252 23.8]2 5,538 46,602

Loans receivable, gross $ 178983 § 439365 § 51,551 § 669,899

Scheduled contractual amortization of loans receivable does not reflect the expected life of Doral Financial’s foans
receivable portfolio. The average life of these loans is substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepay-
ments and, with respect to conventional mortgege loans, due-on-sale clauses, which give Doral Financial the right to
declare a conventional mortgage loan immediately due and payable in the event, among other things, that the bor-
rower sells the real property subject to the morigage and the loan is not repaid. The average life of mortgage loans
fends fo increase when current morigage loan rates are higher than rates on existing morigage loans and, conversely,
decrease when current mortgage loan rates are lower than rates on existing mortgage loans. Under the latter circum-
sfonce, the weighted average vyield on loans decreases as higher vielding loans are repaid or refinanced at lower
rates.

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of total loans receivable at December 31, 2001, as shown in the pre-
ceding table, which have fixed interest rates or which have floating or adjustable inferest rates.

Table N - loans Receivable by Fixed and Floating Rates

Floating or
adjustable-
{Dollars in thousands) Fixed-rate rate Total
Construction loans $ 51653 % 317,308 § 368,96
Residential morigage loans 40,162 23,384 63,546
Commercial real estate 33,929 38,468 72,397
Consumer - secured by real estate 870 - 870
Consumer - other 35,561 3,548 39,109
Commercial nonreal estate 31,962 35,929 67,891
Loans on saving deposits 10,523 - 10,523
land secured 2,525 44 077 46,602
Loans receivable, gross $ 207,185 § 462714 § 669,899

Doral Financial criginates adjustable and fixed interestrate loans. Unlike its portfolio of residential mortgage loans held
for sale, a substantial portion of Doral Financial’s construction and land loans, morigage loans secured by commercial
properties and other commercial loans classified as loans receivable carry adjustable rates. At December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, approximately 69%, 67% and 56%, respectively, of Doral Financial's gross loans receivable were
adjustable rate loans. The increase in adjustable rate loans experienced during 2001 and 2000 was mainly the result
cf higher production in loans for construction development projects and land loans. The adjustable rate loans hove
interest rate adjustment limitations and are generally tied to the prime rate and often provide for a maximum and mini-
mum rate beyond which the applicable interest rate will not fluciuate. Future market factors may affect the correlation of
the inferest rafe adjustment with the rafe Doral Financial pays on the different funding sources used fo finance these
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loans. Substantially all construction, commercial and land
loans held by Doral Financial are adjustable rate loans
maturing within 36 months.

Credit Risks Reloted to Loan Activities

With respect to morigage loans originated for sale as part
of Doral Financial's morigage banking business, Doral
Financial is generally at risk for any morigage loan default
from the time Doral Financial originates the mortgage loan
until the time it sells the loan or packages it into a mort
gagebacked security. With respect to FHA loans, the
Company is fully insured as to principal by the FHA
against foreclosure loss. VA loans are guaranteed up fo
25% to 50% of the principal amount of the loan subject to
a maximum, ranging from $22,500 to $50,750. loan-
tovalue ratios for residential mortgage loans generally do
not exceed 80% {85% for qualifying home purchase trans:
actions through Doral BankPR) unless private mortgage
insurance is obtained.

loans that do not qualify for the insurance or guarantee
programs of FHA and VA, or the sale or exchange pro-
grams of FNMA or FHIMC, referred to as “non-conforming
loans,” as well as loans secured by multifamily apartment
buildings, are offen sold to investars on a full or parfial
recourse basis. In such cases, Doral Financial retains all
or part of the credit risk associated with such loans after
sale. Doral Financial's contingent obligations with respect
fo such recourse provisions are nof reflected on Doral
Financial's Consolidated Financial Stafements, except for
the reserve referred 1o below. As of December 31, 2001,
the outstanding principal amount in loans that had been
sold subject fo recourse, partial recourse or put-back
arrangements was approximately $2.1 billion and the
maximum principal amount of loans that Doral Financial
could have been required fo repurchase if all loans sub-
ject to recourse defaulted or if the buyers exercised their
putback options was $1.0 billion. As of December 31,
20071, Doral Financial maintained a reserve of $2.2 mil-
lion ($1.7 million for 2000 for potential losses from such
recourse arrangements, which is included in “Accrued
expenses and other liabilities” as a component of Doral
Financiol's  Consolidated  Financial  Statements.
Historically, losses on recourse obligations have not been
significant. During 2001, Doral Financial recognized net
credit losses of approximately $584,000 on the loans it
was required to repurchase pursuant to recourse provi-
sions. As of December 31, 2001, cpproximately $81.5
million or 4% of the principal amount of loans sold with
recourse were 60 days or more past due.

Doral Financial is also subject to credit risk with respect to
its porffolio of loans receivable. Loans receivable repre-
sent loans that Doral Financicl holds for investment and,
therefore, Doral Financial is at risk for the term of the loan.
loans secured by income-producing residential and com-

mercial properties involve greater credit risk because they
are larger in size and more risk is concentrated in a single
borrower. The properties securing these loans are also
more difficult to dispose of in case of foreclosure.

Doral Financial manages credit risk by maintaining sound
underwriting standards, monitoring the quality of the loan
portfolio, assessing reserves and loan concentrations,
recruiting qualified credit officers, implementing and moni-
toring lending policies and collateral requirements, and
instituting procedures fo ensure compliance with laws and
regulations. Doral Financial’s collateral requirements for
loans depend on the financial strength of the borrower and
the type of loan involved. Acceptable collateral principally
includes cash, deposit and investment accounts and real
estate, and, to a lesser extent, liens on accounts receivable,
leases receivable, invenfory ond personal property. In the
case of non-conforming loans sold subject to recourse,
Doral Financial also generally requires lower loantovalue
ratios to protect itself from possible losses on foreclosure.

Because most of Doral Financial’s loans are made fo bor-
rowers located in Puerto Rico and secured by properties
located in Puerto Rico, Doral Financial is subject to
greater credit risks tied to adverse economic, political or
business developments and natural hazards, such as hurri-
canes, that may affect the island. For example, if Puerto
Rico’s real estate market were o experience an overall
decline in property values, Doral Financial's rates of loss
on foreclosures would probably increase.

Non-performing Assels and Allowance for Loan Losses

Non-performing assets |“NPAs") consist of loans held for
sale past due Q0 days and still accruing, loans on a non-
accrual basis and other real estate owned. loans
generated by Doral Financial's banking subsidiaries and
construction loans generated by the morigage banking
unifs are placed on a non-accrual basis after 90 days or
more past due, at which point a reserve for all unpaid
interest previously accrued is established. Interest income is
recognized when the loan is no longer 90 days or more
delinquent and collectibility is reasonably assured. For the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998
and 1997, Doral Financicl would have recognized
$1,995,000, $911,000, $393,000, $335,000, and
$201,000, respectively, in additiona! interest income had
all delinquent loans owned by Doral Financial's banking
and mortgage banking units been accounted for on an
accrual basis. Beginning in 2001, mortgage loans held
for sale by Doral Financial's morigage banking units are
placed on a non-accrual basis after they have been delin-
quent for more than one year if concern exisfs as fo ultimate
collectibility based on the loanto-value ratio. Prior to
2001, Doral Financial did not place morigage loans held
for sale in its morigage banking units on a non-accrual
basis following default. Doral Financial believes that its
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non-accrual policy for mortgage loans held for sale in its mortgage banking units is reasonable because these loans are
adequately secured by real estate, have a low loantovalue ratio, and the amounts due on the loans are generally recov-
ered through the sale of the property affer foreclosure or negotiated sefflements with borrowers.

The following table sefs forth information with respect fo Doral Financial's non-accrual loans, other real estate owned
["OREQ") and other non-performing assets as of the dates indicoted. Doral Financial did not have any troubled debt

resiructuring as of any of the years presented.

Table © - Non-Performing Assets

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Mortgage bonking business:
Nonraccrual loans:
Construction Loans $ 705 § 1,155 % -3 -5 -
Residenfial morigage loans 3,742 - - - -
loans heldforsale post due 90 days and sl
accruing” 55,966 53,288 44,030 49,201 41,793
OREO 7,924 5,936 3,834 2,087 3,025
Other non-performing assefs - - - 1,011 1,597
Total NPAs of mortgage banking business 68,337 60,379 47 864 53,199 46,415
Other lending activities through banking subsidiaries:
Non-accrual loans:
Construction loans 1,184 1,029 - 183 -
Residential morigage loans 5,276 4,965 3,731 2,382 1,623
Commercial real estate foans 1,359 1,300 567 770 775
Consumer loans 463 312 205 241 64
Commercial non-real estate loans 710 301 - Q5 -
land loans 70 - - - -
Total non-accrual loans 9,062 7,997 4,503 3,671 2,462
OREO 490 322 76 - -
Total NPAs of banking subsidiaries 2,552 8,319 4,579 3,671 2,462
Total NPAs of Doral Financial {consolidated] $ 77889 & 68698 $ 52443 $ 56870 & 48877
Total NPAs of banking subsidiaries as a percentage
of their loans receivable, net and OREQ 1.58% 2.31% 2.53% 2.88% 1.85%
Total NPAs of Doral Financial s a percentage of
consolidated total assets 1.16% 1.26% 1.16% 1.95% 2.63%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total
Non-performing locns af end of period
(consolidated) 17.95% 15.03% 12.64% Q77% 6.48%

(1) Does not include approximately $12.7 million, $26.5 million, $26.1 million, $6.5 million and $807,000 of 90 days past due FHA/VA loans for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, which are not considered non-performing assefs by Doral Financial becouse the principal balance of
these loans is insured or guaranteed under applicable FHA and VA programs and interest is, in most cases, fully recovered in foreclosure procedures.
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Doral Financial believes that the value of the OREO reflected on ifs financial statements represents a reasonable esti-

mate of the properties’ fair values, net of cost of disposition. The fair value of the OREC is normally determined
annually on the basis of periodic appraisals prepared by licensed real estate appraisers.

The following table summarizes certain information regarding Doral Financial's allowance for loan losses and losses on
OREQ, for both Doral Financial’s banking and mortgage banking businesses for the periods indicated.

Table P - Allowance for Loan Losses eand OREO
As of December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Allowance for OREO Losses:
Balance ot beginning of period $ 1,530 § 210 $ 1,011 % 676§ 356
Provision for losses 969 765 620 1,402 787
losses charged fo the allowance {1,134} {145] 721} (1,067) (467}
Balance af end of period $ 1,365 § 1,530 § Q10 § 1,011 § 676
Allowance for loan Losses:!"
Balance at beginning of period $ 9387 § 6,136 % 5166 % 2,866 % 2,152
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2,626 883 792
Chargeoffs:
Mertgage loans held for sale (584) (201} (1,480] - -
Construction loans - - - - -
Residential morigage loans - [24) - - -
Commercial real estate loans - - - - -
Consumer loans (694) [529) {477} 127) {124}
Commercial nonreal estate loans 91 {239 (17} - -
Other 42) 122} (40]

Total Charge-offs

(1,411) 1,115) 2,014

127) 124]

Recoveries: :
Mortgage foans held for sale - 14 204 - -
Construction loans - - - - -
Residential mortgage loans - 1083 - - -
Commercial real estate loans - - - - -
Consumer loans 161 115 64 76 46
Commercial non-real estate loans 37 50 - - -
Other - 6 - - -
Total recoveries 198 288 358 76 46
Net charge-offs 11,213) (82/) [1,658] [51) {78)
Other (147) - - 1,468 -
Balance at end of period $ 12472 % 9387 § 6136 § 5166 § 2,866

Allowance for loan losses as a percenioge of total

loans oufstanding at the end of pericd 0.48% 0.54% 0.49% 0.49% 0.53%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average fotal loans 0.06% 0.05% 0.15% 0.01% 0.02%

[} Relates to morigage loans held for sale and loans receivable held for invesiment.
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The following table sets forth information conceming the allocation of Doral Financial's allowance for loan losses by
loan category as of the dates indicated:

Table @ - Allocation of Allowance for Loon Lesses

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Amount  Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Mortgage loans held for sale $ 6,472 519% $ 4549 485% § 3996 651% $ 3510 679% § 1625 567%

Loans receivable, net

Conslruction 3,305 2065% 2,617 279% 885 14.4% 117 2.3% 51 1.8%
Residential morigage loans 569 46% 822 8.8% 545 B9% 1,225  23.8% 990  34.5%
Commercial real estate 648 5.2% 421 4.4% 250 41% 81 1.6% 101 3.5%
Consumer - secured by mortgage 8 0.1% 23 0.2% 25 0.4% 25 0.5% 42 1.5%
Consumer - other 350 2.8% 183 1.9% Q0 1.5% 3 0.6% 12 0.4%
Commercial nonreal esiate 608 4.9% 357 3.8% 131 2.1% 54 1.0% 18 0.6%
Loans on saving deposils 94 0.8% 119 1.3% &0 1.0% 18 0.3% 19 0.7%
Lland secured 418 3.2% 206 3.2% 154 2.5% 105 2.0% 8 0.3%
Total $ 12472 1000% $§ 9387 1000% § 6,136 100.0% $§ 5166 1000% $ 2866 1000%

The allowance for loan losses was $12.5 million at
December 31, 2001, compared to $2.4 million at
December 31, 2000 and $6.1 million as of December
31, 1999. The increase in the allowance for 2001 was
primarily a result of a larger loan portfolio as well as an
increase in the amount of construction, commercial real
estate and other commercial loans that carry greater
credit risk.

The percentage of the allowance for loan losses to non-
performing loans will not remain constant due to the
nature of Doral Financial’s portfolio of loans that are pri-
marily collateralized by real estate. The collatera! for
each non-performing mortgage loan is analyzed to defer
mine potential loss exposure, and, in conjunciion with
other factors, this loss exposure contributes fo the overall
assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses. On an ongoing basis, management monitors the
loan portfolio and evaluates the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses. In determining the adegquacy
of the allowance for loan losses, management considers
such factors as historical loan loss experience, known
problem loans, evaluations made by bank regulatory
authorities, assessment of economic conditions, and
other appropriate data fo identify the risks in the loan
portfolio. Residential mortgage loans and consumer
loans are generally evaluated as a group of homoge-
neous loans while past due construction and commercial
loans are evaluated for impairment individually, general
ly based on the fair values of the collateral. Loans
deemed by management to be uncollectible are charged
to the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries on loans pre-
viously charged-off are credited 1o the allowance.
Provisions for loan losses are charged to expense and

credited fo the allowance in amounts deemed appropri-
ate by management based upon its evaluation of the
known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. While
management believes that the current allowance for loan
losses is sufficient, future additions to the allowance may
be necessary if economic conditions change subsiantial-
ly from the expectations used by Doral Financial in
determining the allowance for loan losses.

Invesiment and Troding Activities

As part of its morigage securitization activities, Doral
Financial is involved in the purchase and sale of mort
gage-backed securities held for frading. At December 31,
2001, Doral Financial held securities for frading with a
fair market value of $993.3 million, approximately
$692.4 million of which consisted of Puerto Rico tax-
exempt GNMA securities. These tax-exempt securities are
generally held by Doral Financial for longer periods prior
to sale in order to maximize the taxexempt interest
received thereon. Securities held for trading are reflected
on Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial Statements ot
their fair market value with resuliing gains or losses includ-
ed as part of trading activities. The fair values of Dorcl
Financial's taxexempt GNMA securities are based on
quofations obtained from local brokerdealers after adjust-
ing such amounts for such factors as liquidity and the
prices of U.S. GNMAs. Refer to "Nonnterest Income -
Trading Activities” for additional information on how Doral
Financial determines the fair values of ifs frading securities.

As part of ifs strategy fo maximize net interest income,
Doral Financial also invests in securities that are classified
as available for sale or held to maturity. As of December

31, 2001, Doral Financial held $928.2 million of
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investment securities that were classified as available for
sale and reported af fair value based on quoted market
prices, with unrealized gains or losses included in stock-
holders' equity and reported as “Accumulcted other
comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes,” in Doral
Financial's Consolidated Financial Statements. At

December 31, 2001, Doral Financial had unrealized
losses in other comprehensive income of $12.3 million,
compared to unrealized gains of $2.9 million at
December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2007, Dord!
Financial held approximately $866.3 million in securities
that are classified as held fo maturity.

The following table summarizes Doral Financial's securities holdings as of December 31, 2001.

Table R - Investment Securities

Held for Available Held to

{Dollars in thousands) Trading for Sale Maturity
Morigage-backed securities $ 740797 $ 481834 $ 124218
Interestonly strips 236,408 - -
U.S. Treasury and agency securifies 320 446,345 723,442
Puerfo Rico government obligations 4,728 - 10,305
Derivatives and swap agreements 1,534 - -
Cther Q481 - 8,370
Total § 993328 § 928179 § 866,335

For additional information regarding the composition of
Doral Financial’s investment securities, please refer to
Notes 5, & and 7 of Doral Financial's Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Copital Resources

Doral Financial has an ongoing need for capital to
finance its lending, servicing and investing activities.
Doral Financial’s cash requirements arise from loan orig-
inations and purchases, repayments of debt upon
maturity, purchases and holdings of securities, payments
of operating and interest expenses and servicing
advances and loan repurchases pursuant to warranty or
recourse provisions.

Servicing agreements relating fo the morigage-backed
securities programs of FNMA, FHIMC and GNMA, as
well as contractual arrangements with other investors,
require Doral Financial to advance funds to make sched-
uled payments of principal, interest, taxes and
insurance, it such payments have not been received
from the borrowers. While Doral Financial generally
recovers funds advanced pursuant to these arrange-
ments within 30 days, it must absorb the cost of the
funds it advances during the time the advance is out-
standing. During each of the vears ended December
31, 2001 and 2000, the monthly average amount of
funds advanced by Doral Financial under such servicing
agreements was approximately $9.6 million. To the
extent the mortgage loans underlying Doral Financiol's
servicing porifolio experience increased delinquencies,
Doral Financial would be required to dedicate addition-
al cash resources to comply with its obligation to

advance funds as well as incur additional administrative
costs related to increases in collection efforts.

When Doral Financial sells morigage loans to third par-
ties it generally makes customary representations and
warranties regording the characteristics of the loans sold.
To the extent Doral Financial breaches any of these war-
ranties, investors are generally entitled to obligate Doral
Financial to repurchase the loan subject of the breach.

In addition to its servicing and warranty obligations,
Doral Financial's loan sale activities include the sale of
non-conforming mortgage loans subject to recourse
arrangements that generally obligate Doral Financial to
repurchase the loans if the loans are 90 days or more
past due or otherwise in default. To the extent the delin-
quency ratios of the loons sold subject to recourse or
put-back arrangements is greater than anticipated and
Doral Financial is required to repurchase more loans
than anticipated, Doral Financial's liquidity requirements
would be increased. See "Credit Risks Related to Loan
Activities” for additional information on these arrange-
ments.

Doral Financial’s primary sources of liquidity are sales in
the secondary mortgage market of the loans it originates
and purchases, shortterm borrowings under warehouse,
gestation and repurchase agreement lines of credit
secured by pledges of its loans and mortgage-backed
securities and revenues from operations. Doral Financial
also obtains liquidity in the capital markets through the
sale of its debt and equity securities. Doral Financial's
banking subsidiaries also rely on deposits, borrowings
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from the FHLB-NY as well as term notes backed by let
ters of credit of the FHIB-NY.

The table below shows Doral Financial's sources of bor-
rowings and the related average interest rate as of

Table $ - Sources of Borrowings:

December 31, 200 Tand 2000. Refer to Notes 14 and
15 to Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding Doral
Financial's repurchase agreements and warehouse lines
of credit.

As of December 31

[Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000
Amount Average Amount Average
Qutstanding Rate Qutstanding Rate

Repurchase Agreements $ 2,573,772 4.00% $ 2,275,855 6.32%
Loans Payable 161,101 3.67% 372,620 7.46%
Deposits 1,669,209 3.65% 1,303,525 5.50%
Notes Payable 459,543 7.98% 444,746 8.01%
Advances from FHLB 687,500 4.80% 389,000 5.95%

Doral financial is dependent upon its ability fo access
warehouse, gestation and repurchase facilities, in addi-
fion fo its ability fo continve fo pool and sell loans in the
secondary mortgage market. It borrows money under
warehousing lines of credit fo fund its mortgage loan orig-
inations and repays the borrowing as the mortgages are
sold or securiized. The warehousing lines of credit then
become available for additional borrowings. Included
among Doral Financial’s warehousing line of credit facili-
fies are gestation or pressale facilities that permit Doral
Financial to obtain more favorable rates once mortgage
loans are in the process of securitization but prior to the
actual issuance of the mortgage-backed securities, as well
as to finance such morigage-backed securities upon their
issuance. Doral Financial has several warehousing, gesto-
tion and repurchase agreements lines of credit totaling
$6.8 billion as of December 31, 2001, of which $2.7
billion was outstanding under these facilities at year end.
Of the aggregate amount of funding available under
Doral Financial's warehouse and repurchase lines of cred-
it, approximately $2.1 billion represent committed lines
under which the lender is committed to advance funds
subject to compliance by Doral Financial with various
conditions. The remaining funding was available under
uncommitted lines pursuant to which advances are made
at the discretion of the lender.

Doral Financial's commitied lines of credii generally
require Doral Financial to comply with various financial
covenants and ratios. Failure to comply with any of these
covenants permits the lender to require immediate repay-
ment of all amounts previously advanced and to stop
making any further advances to Doral Financial. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial was in compliance
with all such financial covenants and ratios. Doral
Financial has two credit facilities with an aggregate cred-

it availability of $1.0 billion, of which approximately
$203 million was outstanding as of December 31,
2001, that permit the lender to require Doral Financial to
repay all outstanding advances and refuse to make further
credit advances if Doral Financial’s senior unsecured debt
is rated Ba2 or lower by Moody's Investors Service
["Moody's") or BB or lower by Standard & Poor’s Rating
Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies
("S&P"). Doral financials senior unsecured debt oblige-
tions are currently rated Baa?2 by Moody's and BBB- by
S&P

Doral Financial's investment grade credit ratings on its
debt securities have allowed it to obtain liquidity in the
capital markets through public and private offerings of its
debt securities. To the extent Doral Financial's credit rat-
ings on ifs debt securities were to fall below investment
grade, Doral Financial's ability to obtain fiquidity through
the capital markets would be materially adversely affect-
ed. A decrease in Doral Financial's credit ratings could
also make it more difficult for it to sell non-conforming
loans subject to recourse provisions since the purchasers
of loans subject to recourse provisions rely in part on the
credit of Doral Financicl when purchasing such loans. A
decrease in recourse sales could adversely affect the lig-
uidity of Doral Financial because the secondary market
for non-conforming loans is not as liquid as the secondary
market for Joans that qualify for the sale or guarantee pro-
grams of FHA, VA, FNMA and FHIMC. A decrease in
Doral Financial’s credit ratings could also adversely affect
its liquidity because lending insfitutions may be less
inclined to renew or enter into new lending arrangements
with Doral Financial. A ratings downgrade would also
adversely affect liquidity because counterparties o repur-
chase agreements used for funding loan origination
activities or to derivative contracts used for interest rafe risk
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management purposes could increase the applicable mar-
gin requirements under such agreements.

Under Doral Financial’s repurchase lines of credit and
derivative contracts, Doral Financial is required to deposit
cash or qualifying securities to meet margin requirements.
To the extent that the value of securities previously pledged
as collateral decline because of changes in interest rates,
Doral Financial will be required to deposit additional cash
or securities to meet its margin requirements, thereby
adversely affecting ifs liguidity.

A considerable amount of Doral Financial’s liquidity s
derived from the sale of morigage loans in the secondary
mortgage market. The U.S. (including Puerio Rico) sec-
ondary mortgage market is the most liquid in the world in
large port because of the sale or guarantee programs
maintoined by FHA, VA, HUD, FNMA and FHIMC. To
the extent these programs were curtailed or the standard
for insuring or selling loans under such programs were
materially increased or for any reason Doral Financial
foiled to qualify for such programs, Doral Financial's abili-

ty to sell mortgage loans and consequently ifs liquidity
would be materially adversely affected.

Doral Financial maintains o considerable invesiment in
morigage-servicing assets and 1Os generated as part of
its morigage sale activities. While the servicing assets
and 1Os are recorded at the fime of sale of the related
morigage loans, the cash reloted to such refained interest
is received over the life of the asset and, therefore, does
not provide immediate liquidity that is available to Doral
Financial to fund ifs operations or to pay dividends.

Doral Financial's banking subsidiaries obtain funding for
their lending activities through the receipt of deposits,
FHLB-NY advances and from other borrowings, such as
term notes backed by FHIB-NY letters of credit. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial’s banking sub-
sidiaries held approximately $1.7 billion in deposits at a
weighted-average interest rate of 3.65%. For additional
information regarding deposit accounts and FHLB-NY
advances see Notes 16 and 18 to Doral Financial’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table presents the average balance and the average rate paid on each deposit type for the years

indicated.

Table T - Average Deposit Balance

Year ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Certificates of deposit $ 904,910 487% $ 835762 631% § 481,265 5.84%
Regular passbook savings 101,038 4.33% 63,560 4.73% 51,605 4.57%
NOW Accounts 209,486 2.80% 191,381 4.62% 106,502 4 .65%
Non-inferest bearing V77,862 - 132,671 - 132,429 -
Total deposits $1,483,2%96 4.75% $ 1,223,374 5.07% § 771,801 4.64%

The following table sets forth the maturities of certificates of deposit having principal amounts of $100,000 or more at

December 31, 2001.

Table U - Peposit Maturities

[Dollars in thousands)

Amount

Certificates of deposit maturing
Three months o less
Over three through six months
Over six through twelve months
Over twelve months
Total

$ 132,742
108,578
124,588
273,432

$ 639,340
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As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, Doral Financial's
banking subsidiaries had approximately $418.1 million
and $324.4 million, respectively, in brokered deposits
obtained through broker-declers. Doral Finoncial uses
such deposits as a source of longterm funds. Brokered
deposiis are generally considered a less stable source of
funding than core deposits obtained through retail bank
branches. Investors that invest in brokered deposits are
generally very sensitive fo inferest rafes and will generally
move funds from one instifution o another based on minor
differences in rates offered on deposis.

Doral Financial’s banking subsidiaries, as mempers of the
FHLB-NY, have access to collateralized borrowings from
the FHIB-NY up to a maximum of 30% of tofal assets.
Advances and reimbursement obligations with respect to
letiers of credit must be secured by qualifying assets with a
market value of 110% of the advances or reimbursement
obligations. At December 31, 2001, Doral Financial's
banking subsidiaries had $687.5 million in outstanding
advances from the FHLB-NY af o weighted average inter-
est rate cost of 4.80%. See Note 18 to Doral Financial’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional informa-
fion regarding such advances. In the past, Doral Bank
has also raised funds by selling its term notes secured by
FHIB-NY letters of credit to private investors.

Teble V - Regulatory Capital Reties

Doral Financial expects that it will continue to have ode-
quate liquidity, financing arrangements and capital
resources fo finance its operations. Doral Finoncial will
continue fo explore alternative and supplementary meth-
ods of financing ifs operations, including both debt and
equity financing. There can be no assurance, however,
that Doral Financial will be successful in consummating
any such fransactions.

Regulatory Capital Ratios

As of December 31, 2007, Doral Financial and its bank-
ing subsidiaries were in compliance with all the regulatory
capital requirements that were applicable to them as a
financial holding company, siate non-member bank and
federal savings bank [i.e., fofal capital and Tier 1 capital
fo risk-weighted assets of af least 8% and 4%, respective-
lv, and Tier 1 capital to average assets of af least 4%). I
addition to the above requirements, Doral Financial has
agreed with the FDIC to maintain Doral Bank-New York's
ratio of Tier 1 capitcl to average assets at not less than
8% during s first three vears of operations which ends on
October 31, 2002. Set forth below are Doral Financial’s
and its banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital ratios as
of December 31, 2001, based on existing Federal
Reserve, FDIC and OTS guidelines.

Tier 1 capital ratio [Tier 1 capital to riskweighted assefs)
Total capifal [Totel capital o risk-weighted assets)
leverage ratio

Doral Financial
Banking Subsidiaries

Dordl Well
Doral Doral Bank Capitalized
Financial Bank PR NY! Minimum
18.1% 12.7% 28.9% 6.0%
18.4% 13.0% 29.2% 10.0%
11.6% 7.6% 12.9% 5.0%

[V} In connection with the charfering of Doral Bank-NY in October 1999, the FDIC required that it be initially capitalized with $25 million. As Doral Bank-NY continues to

increase its assefs, its capital ratios can be expected fo decline.

[2) Tier 1 capital 1o average assets in the case of Doral Financial and Doral BankPR and Tier 1 copital to adjusted fotal assets in the case of Doral Bank-NY.

As of December 31, 2001, Doral Financial's banking subsidiaries were considered well capitalized banks for pur-
ooses of the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the FDIC pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation Improvement Act of 1991, To be considered a well capitalized institution under the FDIC's regulations, an
institution must maintain a leverage ratio of at least 5%, a Tier 1 capital ratio of of least ©% and a total capital ratio of
af least 10% and not be subject to any written agreement or directive to meet a specific capital ratio.

Failure to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements could result in the initiation of certain mandatory and addi-
tional discrefionary actions by banking regulators against Doral Financial and its banking subsidiaries that, if
undertaken, could have a material adverse sffect on Doral Financial.

On November 29, 2001, the federal banking and thrift regulatory agencies adopted a final rule that changes the reg-
ulatory capital treatment of recourse obligations, residual interests and direct credit substitutes. The new rules are
effective on January 1, 2002, for transactions sefiled on or after January 1, 2002. For transactions entered into before
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January 1, 2002, Doral Financial is not required to imple-
ment the rule until December 31, 2002. The new rule
cttempts to more consistently freat recourse obligations for
the regulatory agencies’ risk-based capital requirements.
The rule also imposes a new dollar-fordollar capital
requirement on residual inferests refained in sale or securi-
tization transactions and a 25% limit on the amount of Tier
1 capital that may consist of creditenhancing, interestonly
strips, @ subset of residual interests.

The rule clarifies that, subject fo certain exceptions, the entire
amount of assets sold with recourse, not just the confractual
amount of the recourse obligation, is converted info an on-
balance sheet credit equivalent amount. The credit equivalent
amount, less any recourse liability reflected on the balance
sheet, is then risk weighted for purposes of applying
the applicable capital requirement. The risk weighting for
most residential mortgage loans is currently 50%. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial's outstanding balance
of loans sold with recourse was $2.1 billion.

While Doral Financial its still examining the new capital
requirements regarding residuals and creditenhancing,

Table W - Pro forma Capital Retios

inferestonly strips, it currently understands that its 1Os cre-
ated in connection with the sale of non-conforming loans
will generally be treated as creditenhancing, interestonly
strips and thus will be subject to @ dollarfordollar capital
requirement for risk-based capital purposes and fo the
25% concentretion limit for Tier 1 capital purposes.

Substantially all of Doral Financial's recourse obligations
and 1Os are recorded af the parent company level and,
accordingly, the new rule will only directly impact the reg-
ulatory requirements applicable to Doral Financial os a
financial holding company. While the full implementation
of the new rule effective on December 31, 2002 is
expected fo reduce Doral Financial’s regulatory capital
ratios at the holding company level, Doral Financial antic-
ipates that it will continue to comply with all applicable
capital requirements following the implementation of the
rule. Set forth below, are Doral Financial’s pro forma cap-
ital ratios for riskbosed capital purposes as of Decem-
ber 31, 2001 assuming the new rule had been in effect
on such date and that all of Doral Financial’s 1Os will
be treated as creditenhancing, interestonly strips for
purposes of the rule.

Doral Financial

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 13.24%
Total Capital Ratio 13.57%
leverage Ratio 11.00%

Doral Securities is subject to regulatory capital require-
ments imposed by the SEC. At December 31, 2007,
Doral Securities was in compliance with its applicable
capital requirement.

Assels and Licbilities

At December 31, 2001, Doral Financial’s total assets
were $6.7 billion, compared to $5.5 billion at
December 31, 2000. The increase in assefs was due
orimarily to an increase in the loan portfolios of $838.8
million, an increase of $149.1 million in Doral
Financicl's money market investments offset in part by @
net decrease of $38.2 million in investment securities

and other instruments.  Total lichilities were $5.9 billion
at December 31, 2001, compared to $5.0 billion at
December 31, 2000. The increase in lichilities was
largely the result of an increase in securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, deposit accounts and FHLB
advances that were used to fund Doral Financial’s
increase in assets. Af December 31, 2001, Doral
Financial's deposit accounts totaled $1.7 billion, com-
pared to $1.3 billion at December 31, 2000. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial's banking sub-
sidiaries had $3.7 billion in assets, compared to $2.7
billion ot December 31, 2000.
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Coniractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments
The tables below summarize Doral Financial’s contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of

December 31, 2001.

Table X - Contraciual Obligations

[Dollars in thousands)

Payment Due by Period

Less than After 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Repurchase and warehousing lines of credit $2,734873 $ 1,783,049 § - $ 255000 § 696,824
Deposits 1,669 909 1,358,573 252,572 58,076 688
Other Borrowed Funds 1,147,043 170,975 274,371 261,470 440,227
Non-cancellable Leases 43,8972 4,707 6,848 5,467 26,870
Totat Contractual Cash Obligations $ 5595717 $3317.304 § 533791 § 580013 § 1164609
Table Y - Other Commercial Commitments
[Dollars in thousands) Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Total
Other Commercial Amounts Less than After 5
Commitments Committed 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Standby Repurchase (Recourse] Obligations $1,022449 $ 143522 § 2787164 $ 233290 $§ 577,434
Putback opfions 18,396 18,396 - - -
Total Commercial Commitments $1040845 § 161918 § 278,164 $ 23,329 § 577434

Interest Rate Risk Monagement

General. Interest rate fluctuations are the primary market
risk affecting Doral Financial. Changes in interest rates
can affect the volume of mortgage loan originations, the
net interest income eamed by Doral Financial on its port-
folio of loans and mortgage-backed securities, the
amount of gain on sale of loans, and the valve of Doral
Financial’s mortgage-servicing assets and securities

holdings.

Lower interest rates tend to increcse demand for morigage
loons for home purchases as well as the demand for refi-
nancing of existing mortgages. Higher inferest rates make
it more difficult for potential borrowers to purchase resi-
dential properties and to qualify for mortgage loans.
Increases in rates could also reduce demand for refinance
loans. A substantial portion of Doral Financial’s total mort-
gage loan originations have consistently been composed
of refinance loans. For the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, refinance loans represented
approximately 56%, 38% and 61%, respectively, of Doral
Financial's total dollar volume of morigage loans originat-
ed [excluding purchases from third parfies). As a resul,
higher interest rates may adversely offect the volume of
loan originations and income related to mortgage loan
sales. Although @ significant portion of Doral Financial’s
refinance loans are for debt consolidation purposes and,
therefore, not as sensitive to increases in interest rates, a

significant future increase in morigage inferest rafes in
Puerto Rico may adversely affect Doral Financial's busi-
ness if it results in @ significant decrease in refinancing of
mortgage loans.

If long-term inferest rates increase between the time Dorcl
Financial commits to or establishes an inferest rate on a
mortgage loan and the time commitments fo purchase the
mortgage loan are obtained or the loan is sold, Doral
Financial may reclize a reduced gain or incur a loss on
such sale. This risk is sometimes referred to as “lag risk.”
Doral Finoncial generally does not hedge the lag risk
associated with conventional loans in the pipeline or in
the process of origination because Doral Financial gener-
ally does not permit customers 1o lock in an interest rate
prior fo closing. Instead, the inferest rates on these loans
are generally fixed ot closing based on a cerfain spread
over a prevailing rate that adjusts weekly, based on the
FHUMC auction for residential mortgages. For FINMA and
FHUMC conforming loans and mortgage-backed securi-
ties, Doral Financial seeks o sell or to obtain commitments
for the sale of such loans or mortgage-backed securities
as soon as practicable following the funding of such
loans. Conforming loans are normally sold 1o insfitutioncl
investors or to FNMA and FHIMC. To the extent that
Doral Financial does engage in offerings of morigage
products that lock in the interest rate until the closing date,
it attempts to enter info forward commitments fo sell such
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loans at the fime it fixes the rates for the loans. As of
December 31, 2001, Doral Financial had $481.4 mil
lion of commitments to sell morigage loans and
morigage-backed securities to third party investors.

Non-conforming conventional loans are normally sold in
bulk to local financial institutions. The sale of non-conform-
ing conventional loans normally takes longer than the sale
of conforming mortgage loans. Accordingly, Doral
Financial atfempts to manage this market risk through the
purchase of listed options on U.S. Treasury fuiures con-
tracts as well as through the purchase of option coniracts
in the overthe-counter market on other interest rate sensi-
tive instruments, which tend to increase in value when
interest rates increase. Options are confracts that grant the
purchaser the right to buy or sell the underlying osset by o
certain date for a specified price. Futures are commit-
ments to either purchase or sell designated instruments
[such as U.S. Treasury Note contracts or Eurodollar certifi-
cates of deposit) at a future date for a specified price.
Futures contracts are generally traded on an exchange,
are markedHormarket daily and are subject to initial and
maintenance margin requirements.

In the case of Puerto Rico taxexempt GNMA securities,
which Doral Financial normally holds for longer periods
prior fo sale, prices tend to be more stable than for U.S.
taxable GNMA securities because their taxexempt status
under Puerto Rico law makes them more attractive to refall
investors. This relafive stability of prices for Puerfo Rico
GNMA securities allows Doral Financial to carry out a
less aggressive hedging strategy to attempt to protect the
value of these assets than what might otherwise be
required for U.S. GNMA securities. Doral Financial seeks
to protect itself from the market risk associated with ifs
inventory of GNMA securities by purchasing listed
options on U.S. Treasury bond futures contracts and other
inferest rate sensitive instruments, as well as purchasing
options on U.S. GNMA securities in the overthecounter
market.

With respect to Puerto Rico GNMA securities that are
originated by Doral Financial and no longer qualify for
Puerto Rico tox exemption, Doral Financial implements o
less aggressive hedging strategy because it intends 1o sell
such securities in the United States market as soon as
practicable following completion of the securitization
process, fypically through forward commitments.

Declines in interest rates can adversely affect Doral
Financial's revenues by increasing prepayment rates and
causing an increase of the amortization of servicing assets
and |Os, or causing an impairment to be recognized with
respect fo such assets. Moreover, increased prepayment
rates can reduce Doral Financial’s servicing income by
decreasing the size of Doral Financial’s servicing portfo-

lio. Traditionally, Doral Financial has not actively used syn-
thetic hedge devices to protect ifs servicing income or the
value of its servicing assets or IOs from the risks presented
by inferest rate declines. The structure of Doral Financial’s
balance sheet serves to hedge in part the sensitivity of its
servicing income and 10s 1o decreases in inferest rates
because the market value of Doral Financial’s large port-
folio of fixed-rate residentiol mortgage loans and
mortgage-backed securities tends fo increase in value
when interest rates decline. Doral Financial also seeks to
reduce the sensitivity of its servicing income and the value
of its servicing asset by maintaining a strong refail origi-
nation network that has allowed Doral Financia! to
increase or maintain the size of its servicing portfolio even
during periods of high prepayments, such as those experi-
enced during 1993, 1998 and 2001,

The net interest income of Doral Financial is also subject to
interest rate risk because its interesteaming assets and
interestbearing liabiliies reprice at different times and at
varying amounts. Most of Doral Financial’s interestearn-
ing assefs, including its mortgage loans and
mortgage-backed securities, are fixed rate, long-term,
inferest-earning assets that are not subject to repricing
[except for the replacement of assets through repayments,
sales and new originations| while the shortterm borrow-
ings used fo finance these positions normally reprice on a
periodic basis [e.g., daily, monthly, quarterly, efc.). Doral
Financial manages the risk to its net inferest income
through a combination of the infernal mancgement of the
composition of its assets and liabilities and through the
use of hedging instruments. Internal asset/liability man-
agement practices include the atfraction of longerterm
funds through the use of longferm repurchase agreements
and other borrowings such as senior notes, term notes,
FHLB-NY advances and longterm certificates of deposit,
including brokered certificates of deposit. Doral Financial
also seeks to negotiate interest rate floors on the floating
rate loans it originates.

In addition to the use of the internal assetliability manage-
ment practices discussed above, Doral Financial has used
interest rate swap agreements fo effectively fix the cost of
shortterm funding sources, which are used to finance the
funding and holding of interesteaming assets with longer
maturities. An interest rate swap is an agreement where
one party (in this case, Doral Financial] agrees to pay a
fixed rate of interest on @ notional principal amount o @
second party in exchange for receiving a varicble rate of
inferest on the same notional amount for a predetermined
period of time. No actual assefs are exchanged in a
swap of this type and inferest payments are generally net
ted. As of December 31, 2001, Doral Financial, through
Doral Bank-PR, had in place two inferest rate swap agree-
ments with an aggregate nofional amount of $100
million. Doral Financial also purchases options on futures
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contracts for Eurodollar instruments in an attempt to man-
age the risk to ifs net inferest income components. For a
detail of the Doral Financial's derivative instruments used
o manage interest rate risk, see Note 30 to Dordl
Financial's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Doral Financial maintains a substantial portfolio of mort
gage-backed securities [primarily fixed-rate GNMA
certificates) and other investment securities. Generally,
the value of fixed-rate securities declines when interest
rates rise, and conversely, increases when inferest rates
fall. At December 31, 2001, Doral Financial held
$293.3 million of mortigage-backed and other invest-
ment securities {most of which carried fixed interest rates)
that were classified as held for trading and reported at
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in
earnings. In addition, at December 31, 2001, Doral
Financial held $628.2 million of investment securities {all
of which carried fixed interest rates) that were classified
as available for sale and reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains or losses reported as a segregated
component of stockholders’ equity. Accordingly, declines
in the value of Doral Financial's securities held for trading
and available for sale could have a negative impact on
Doral Financial's earnings or financial condition. In order
to hedge the interest rate risk associated with Doral
Financial's portfolio of securities held for trading and
available for sale, Doral Financial may use a variety of

hedging instruments including listed put and call options
and futures contracts on financial instruments (primarily
Eurodollar certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury note
confracts). In determining the amount of its portfolio to
hedge, Doral Financial will consider, among other
things, the volatility of prices of its securities and the
direction of interest rates. As noted above, the prices for
Puerto Rico tax-exempt GNMA securities tend to be more
stable than their U.S. counterparts.

In the future, Doral Financial may use alternative hedging
technigues including futures, opticns, interest rate swap
agreements or other hedge instruments to help mitigate
interest rate and market risk. However, there can be no
assurance that any of the above hedging techniques will
be successful. To the extent they are not successful, Doral
Financial's profitability may be adversely affected. For
additional information on the use of derivatives to man-
age interest rate risk, see "Derivatives” below.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following table sum-
marizes the expected maturities or repricing of Doral
Financial's interestearning assets and interestbearing lia-
bilities as of December 31, 2001. Condensed
information as of December 31, 2000, is also shown.
Inferest rate swap agreements are presented on the basis
of the nofional amounts used to calculate the contractual
amounts to be exchanged under the swap agreements.
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Table Z - Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

{Dollars in thousands)

As cf December 31, 2001 1 Year 1to3 3t 5 Over 5 Non-Interest
or Less Years Years Years Rate Bearing Total
Assels
Cash and Money Market Instruments $ 594,385  § - % - 3% -3 - $ 504,385
Tofal Loans 210,568 379,676 138,545 1,862,818 - 2,591,607
Securities Held for Trading 198,502 827 165 793,834 - 093,328
Securities Available for Sale - - 1,724 926,455 - 928,179
Securities Held to Maturity - 7109 3,055 856,171 - 866,335
FHLB Stock - - - 56,005 - 56,095
Cther Assets - - - - 664,354 664,354
Total Assets $1,003,455 § 387612 $ 143,489 $4,495373 § 664,354 $ 6,694,283
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
loans Payable $ 161,101 $ - ¢ -3 - 3% - % 161,100
Repurchase Agreements 1,621,948 - 255,000 696,824 - 2,573,772
Deposits 1,134,691 252,572 58,077 688 223,881 1,669,909
Other Borrowed Funds 170,975 274,371 261,470 440,227 - 1,147,043
Other liabilities - - - - 380,338 380,338
Stockholders” Equity - - - ~ 762120 762,120
Total lichilities and Stockholders’
Equity $ 3088715 § 5260943 § 574,547 $ 1,137,739 $§ 1,366,339 $ 6,694,283
Notional amount of -
Interest Rate Swaps $ 50,000 $ (50,000 $ -3 -
Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap {2,035,260)  (189,331) (431,058) 3,357,634
Cumulative Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap  (2,035,260) (2,224,591} (2,655,649) 701,985
Cumulative Gap
fo InterestEarning Assets 133.75%) 136.89%) (44.04%) 11.64%
Condensed Inferest Rate Sensitivity
Andlysis as of December 31, 2000
Notional amounts of -
Interest Rate Swaps $ 100,000 $ {100,000) $ - % -
Interests Rate Sensitivity Gap (1,854,019 (243,848) (409,771 2,914,463
Cumulative Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap  {1,854,019) (2,097,867 (2,507,638 406,825
Cumulative Gap
to InferestEaming Assets {36.62%) {41.43%) (49.53%) 8.03%
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Cap analysis measures the volume of assets and liabili-
fies af a point in time ond their repricing during future
periods. The Company prepared ifs gap analysis on @
contractual maturity basis. The net balance of assefs and
liabilities {the “gap") repricing during future periods is an
indicator of the degree of inferest rate risk being assumed
by Doral Financial. A positive gap generally denotes
asset sensitivity and it also denofes that increases in infer-
est rates would have a positive effect on net interest
income while a decrease in inferest rates would have a
negative effect on nef interest income. A negative gap
denotes liability sensifivity and means that an increase in
inferest rates would have a negative effect on net interest
income while a decrecse in rates would have a positive
effect on net interest income. As of December 31, 20071,
Doral Financial had a one-year negative gap of approxi-
mately $2.0 billion compared to a negative gap of
$1.9 billicn as of December 31, 2000. While static
gap analysis is a useful measure for determining short-
term risk fo future net interest income, it has certain
shortcomings. For example, since the static gap analysis
is presented on the basis of contractual maturities, it does
not take into account that a large portion of Doral
Financial's loans held for sale and trading securities will
be sold before their contractual maturities. Static gop
analysis does not measure the sensitivity of the market
value of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates.

For a hypothetical example of the possible impact of
changes in inferest rafe assumptions on the values of
Doral Financial's mortgage servicing assets and Os refer
io Note 12 to Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Derivatives. As described above, Doral Financial uses
derivatives fo manage s interest rafe risk. Derivatives
include interest rate swaps, futures, forward sale contracts
and options. Derivatives are generally either privately
negofiated overthe-counter ("OTC") or standard contracts
transacted through regulated exchanges. OTC contracts
generally consist of swaps, forwards and options.
Exchange traded derivatives include futures and options.

The fair values of Doral Financial’s derivatives are reflect
ed on Doral Financial's Consolidated Financial
Statements. Fair values for derivatives such as interest
rate futures contracts or options are defermined by refer-
ence to market prices. Any changes in fair values of
these derivatives occurring during a reporting period
must be recorded as gains or losses on Doral Financial's
income statement and may, therefore, increase the volatil
ity of Doral Financial's future earnings. Fair values for
derivatives purchased in the overthe-counter market are
determined by prices provided by external sources or val-
uation models.

The table below summarizes the fair values of Doral Financial’s derivatives as well the source of the fair values.

Toble AA - Fair Value Reconciliation

{Dollars in thousands)

Fair value of contracts outstanding af the beginning of the period
Contracts realized or otherwise seftled during the period
Fair value of new confracts when entered inio during the period

$ 3,032
(2,122)
8,276

Changes in fair values attributable to changes in valuation techniques and assumptions -

Other changes in fair values
Fair value of confracts outstanding af the end of the period

Table BB - Source of Fair Value

652
1,534

$ 1,534

[Dollars in thousands)

Payment Due by Period

Maturity Maturity
Source of Fair Valye less than Maturity Maturity in excess Total Fair
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years of 5 years Value
Prices acfively quoted $ 4,444 % 205 § -3 - % 4,739
Prices provided by other external sources (1,648) (1,557) _ {3,205}
Prices based on models and other valuation methods - - - - -
$ 2796 $ (1,262 $ - $ -3 1,534
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The use of derivatives involves market and credit risk. The
market risk of derivatives arises principally from the poten-
tial for changes in the value of derivative confracts based
on changes in inferest rates. Doral Financial generally
manages iis risks by taking risk-offsetiing  positions.

The credit risk of derivatives arises from the potential of @
counterparty to default on its contractual obligations.
Credit risk related to derivatives depends on the follow-
ing: the current fair value of outstanding contracts with an
entity; the pofential credit exposure on the derivative over
time; the extent to which legally enforceable netting
arrangements allow the offsetiing of contracts with the
same entity to be netted against each other; the extent to
which collateral held against the confract reduces credit
risk; and the likelihood of defaults by the counterparty.

To manage this credit risk, the Company deals with coun-
terparties of good credit standing, enters into master
netting agreements whenever possible and, when appro-
priate, obtains collateral. Master netfing agreements
incorporate rights of setoff that provide for the net seftle-
ment of contracts with the same counterparty in the event
of default. The credit risk associated with futures contracts
is also limited due to daily cash sefflement of the net
change in the value of open contracts with the exchange
on which the confract is traded.

Inflation

Cenercl and administrative expenses generally increase
with inflation. However, the increase in real estate values
in Puerto Rico in recent years has been a positive factor
for Doral Financial's morigoge banking business. The
average size of loans originated tends to increase as
home values appreciate, which serves to increase loan
origination fees and servicing income faster than the cost
of providing such services. Additionally, appreciation in
real estate property values reduces the loantovalue ratic
of existing loans. Inferest rates normally increase during
periods of high inflation and decrease during periods of
low inflation. See “Interest Rate Risk Management” for a
discussion of the effects of changes of interest rates on
Doral Financial’s operations.

Reclassification

Certain amounts reflected in the Company’s Consclidated
Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,
2000 and 1999, have been reclassified to conform to
the presentation for 2001.

Changes in Accounting Standards Adopled in the 2001
Financial Statements

SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” was
issued in September 2000 and replaces SFAS No. 125
of the same fille. This statement revises the standards for

accounting for securitizations and other transfers of finan-
cial assefs and collateral, and requires certain disclosures,
but carries over most of SFAS No. 125's provisions with-
out reconsideration. This statement is effective for transfers
and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of
liabilities occurring after March 31, 2001 and is effective
for recognition and reclassification of collateral and for
disclosures relating to securitization fransactions and col-
lateral for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000.
Doral Financial's adoption of this statement did not materi-
ally affect its results of operations or financial condition for

the year ended December 31, 2001.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities. Doral Financial adopt-
ed SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities,” as amended, on January 1,
2001, This statement establishes accounting and report-
ing standards for derivative instruments, including
derivative instruments that are embedded in other con-
fracts, and for hedging activities.

Although Doral Financial enters into derivative transac-
tions for hedging purposes, it generally does not
designate derivatives as hedges for accounting purposes
and, effective January 1, 2001, records all derivatives at
fair values with changes in fair values recorded as gains
or losses on its Consclidated Statement of Income as a
component of Trading Activities. Prior o the adoption of
SFAS No. 133, Doral Financial followed a similar policy
except in the case of interest rate swap agreements held
in its banking subsidiaries. At December 31, 2001, none
of Doral Financial's derivatives were designated as
hedges.

As part of the implementation of SFAS No. 133, Doral
Financial reclossified $110 million of its held to maturity
securities as available for sale and $130 million as trad-
ing securities. As a result of this reclassification, Doral
Financial recognized an oftertax gain of $1.6 million in
other comprehensive income and an aftertax gain of
$5.9 million in the income statement as cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principles. Under the provi-
sions of SFAS No. 133, such a reclassification does not
compromise Doral Financials intent to hold current or
future debt securities until their maturity.

In connection with the adoption of the SFAS No. 133,
Doral Financial also recognized in earnings the fair value
of $100 million of interest rate swaps previcusly excluded
from the financial statements, valued at an after tax loss of
$196,000. All other derivative instruments were previous-
ly recorded at fair value and remained classified as
securities held for trading.

Recently lssued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted
Business Combinations. In June 2001, the FASB issued
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SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations” which address-
es financial accounting and reporting for business
combinations. SFAS No. 141 requires the use of the pur
chase method of accounting for all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001 and requires the recognition
of infangible assets apart from goodwill if they meet cer
fain criteria. SFAS No. 141 also adds certain disclosure
requirements. Doral Financial was not a party to any busi-
ness combination during 2001,

Goodwill and Infangible Assets: In june 2001, the FASR
issued SFAS No. 142, “Coodwill and other Intangible
Assets,” which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible
assefs. It addresses how intangible assefs that are
acquired individually, or with a group of other assets
fbut not those acquired in o business combination)
should be accounted for in financial statements upon
their acquisition. SFAS No. 142 also addresses how
goodwill and other intangible assets should be account-
ed for after they have been initially recognized in the
financicl statements.

Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives will not be amortized but
rather will be tested at least annually for impairment.
Intangible assets that have finite useful lives will continue
to be amortized over their useful lives, but without the con-
straint of an arbitrary ceiling. SFAS No. 142 provides
specific guidance for testing goodwill for impairment.

The provisions of SFAS No. 142 are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. As of

December 31, 2001, Doral Financial carried goodwill of
approximately $9.1 million that is presented within "Other
Assets” in its Statement of Financicl Condition. Doral
Financial's goodwill amortization for 2001 was approxi-
mately $621,000. The Company odopted SFAS Ne.
142 on January 1, 2002 ond discontinued the amortiza-
tion of goodwill because its fair value exceeds the
carrying amount.

Accounting for Asset Refirement Obligations. In June
2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143 “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associ-
ated with the retirement of longlived assets and the
associated asset refirement costs. This siatement is effec-
tive for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning affer June 15, 2002. Doral Financial's man-
agement believe that the adopfion of this stafement will
not have a material effect on the Consclidated Financial
Statements of Doral Financial.

Accountiing for the Impairment or Disposal of long-ived
Assefs. In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of long-Lived
Assets.” This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121 and
portions of APB 30 and develops one accounting model
for longlived assets that are to be disposed of by sale.
SFAS No. 144 is effective for financial statements issued
for years beginning cler December 15, 2001, but earli-
er application is encouraged. Doral Financial's
management does not believe that the adoption of this
statement will have a material effect on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Doral Financial,
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PRICEAATERHOUSH,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PO Box 363566

San Juan PR 00936-3566
Telephone (787) 754-9090
Facsimile (787) 766 1094

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Doral Financial Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows present fairly, in all respects, the financial position of Doral Financial Corporation and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management, our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the
Company adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” as amended, which effect was
accounted for as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

WS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Juan, Puerto Rico

February 15, 2002

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
(OF PUERTO RICO)

License No. 216 Expires Dec. 1, 2004
Stamp 1767166 of the P.R. Society of
Certified Public Accountants has been
affixed to the fib copy of this report
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v@(@NS@MDAﬁED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION - DECEMBER 31,

[Dellars in thousands, except share information) 2001 2000
Assels
Cash and due from banks $§ 45970 $ 28,999
Money market investments:
Securities purchased under agreements fo resell 54,866 59,025
Time deposits with other banks 240,146 214,480
Other short term investments, at cost 253,403 125,815
Total money market investments 548,415 399,320
Pledged investment securities:
Trading securities, at fair value 756,499 926,091
Securities available for sale, at fair value 702,136 168,210
Securifies held to maturity, at amortized cost 762,247 1,427,361
Tofal pledged investment securities 2,220,882 2,521,662
Investment securities and other instruments not pledged:
Trading securities, af fair value 236,829 175,847
Securities available for sale, at fair value 226,043 14,164
Securities held 1o mofurihﬁ, at amortized cost 104,088 130,952
Federal Home Loan Bank of NY {FHLB) stock, at cost 56,095 39,505
Tolal invesiment securifies and other insiruments not pledged 623,055 360,468
Total investment securities and other instruments 2,843,937 2,882,130
loans:
Mortgage loans held for sale, at lower of cost or market, net 1,047,494 1,354,605
loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $6,000 (2000 - $4,838) 644,113 398,191
Total loans 2,591,607 1,752,796
Receivables and mortgage servicing advances 43,725 56,951
Broker-decler's operations receivable 274,422 43,111
Accrued interest receivable 47,039 49,733
Servicing assets, net 154,340 139,795
Premises and equipment, net 90 935 67,469
Real estate held for sale, net 8,414 6,258
Other assets 36,479 36,824
Total assets $ 6,694,283 § 5,463,386
Liabilities
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 2,573,772 $ 2,275,855
loans payable 161,101 372,620
Deposits 1,669,909 1,303,525
Notes payable 459,543 444,746
Advances from FHLIB 687,500 389,000
Brokerdecler's operations payable 245,573 43,512
Accrued expenses and other Kobihﬁes 134,765 128,418
Total liabilities 5,932,163 4,957 676
Commitments and confingencies {Nofe 23]
Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $1 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized af aggregate liquidation preference value 124,750 124,750
Common stock, $1 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized; 47,866,334 and 42,449,134
shares issued in 2001 and 2000, respectively; 47,810,334 and 42,393,134 shares
outstanding in 2001 and 2000, respectively 47,866 42,449
Paidkin capital 217,594 64,319
Legal surplus 8,423 5,082
Retained earnings 375,855 265,396
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income tax (benefit) of ($509) - (2000 - $581) (12,312} 2,870
Treasury sfock af par value, 56,000 shares held (56) [56)]
Total stockholders' equity 762 120 505,710
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 6,694,283 § 5,463,386

The accompanying noles are an iniegral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{In thousandss, except per share mformoﬂoﬂ 2001 2000 1999
[nferest income:
Loans $ 162532 § 124,184 § 78,258
Morigagebocked securities 96,839 78,075 58,756
Invesiment securities 70,940 101,852 60,235
Other inferest earning assets 25,784 21,434 14,430
Total interest income 356,095 325,545 211,679
Interest expense:
loans payable 14,270 34,159 24,292
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 121,050 136,346 72,726
Deposits 70,399 62,002 35,784
Other borrowed funds 65,949 50,734 28,993
Tofal interest expense 71,668 283,241 161,795
Net interest income 84,427 42,304 49,884
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2.626
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 79,982 38,226 47,258
Norrinterest income:
Net gain on morigage loon sales and fees 187,221 134,339 80,184
Trading activities {1 9,770] {2,393 12914
Gain on sale of investment securities 5315 3,360 3,068
Serwcmg income, net of amortization of $29,728, $14,268,
and $10,988, in 2007, 2000, and 1999, respectively 389 12,150 13,048
Comnmissions, fees and other income 17,977 9,861 5,809
Total nonintarest income 91,132 150,31/ 115,923
Norrinterest expenses:
Compensation and employee benefits 47,759 40,514 44,838
Taxes, other than payroll and income taxes 4,423 3,974 2.610
Advertising 0379 794 5875
Professional services 5,804 4,549 5,473
Communication and information systems 10, 248 7,824 6,573
Occupancy and other office expenses 17 14,060 10,849
Depreciation and amortization 1O 325 7179 4,534
Other 7,746 6,380 5816
Total norvinterest expenses 2,854 92,391 86,568
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle 158,260 96,152 76,613
Income taxes 20,338 11,496 8,687
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 137,922 84,656 67,926
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax 5,929 ~ -
Net income $ 143,851 § 84,656 $ 67,926
Net income per common share:
Basic:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 287 % 1.86 ¢ 1.55
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.13 - -
Net income $ 3.00 % 1.86 § 1.55
Diluted:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 282 % 1.85 § 1.50
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.13 - -
Net income $ 295 % 1.85 § 1.50
Dividends per common share $ 0475 § 0.38 § 0.30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONECUDATED STAEWENTS CF CHANEES (N SICTKCIDERS EGUTY
YEARS ENDED DECEVIBER 31,

{In thousands] 2001 2000 1999
Preferred stock:
Balonce at beginning of year $ 124750 $ 83210 § 8,460
Shares converted (8% convertible) - (8,460) -
Shares issued {7% noncumulative monthly income) - - 74,750
Shares issued {8.35% noncumulative monthly income) - 50,000 -
Balance at end of year 124,750 124,750 83,210
Commen stock:
Bolance at beginning of year 42 449 40,485 40,485
Common stock converted - 1,934 -
Commen stock issued 5,061 - -
Common sfock issued under Stock Option Plan 356 30 -
Balance at end of year 47 866 42 449 40,485
Paid-in capital:
Balance af beginning of vear 64,319 5@.115 61,800
Shares converted - 6,526 -
Issuance cost of preferred stock - (1,756) (2,685)
Common stock issued 148,384 - -
Shares issued under Stock Option Plan 4,889 434 -
Balance af end of year 217,594 64,319 59,115
Legal surplus:
Balance at beginning of year 5982 3,596 2,499
Transfer from refained earnings 2441 2,386 1,097
Balance af end of year 8,423 5,982 3,596
Retained earnings:
Balance of beginning of year 265,396 205,875 156,315
Net income 143,851 84,656 67,926
Cash dividends declared on common stock (21,543) (15,943 (12,129
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock (2,408) (6,8006) (5,140)
Transfer to legal surplus (2,441) 12,386) 11,097
Balance at end of vear 375,855 265,396 205,875
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes:
Balance at beginning of year 2870 (7,243) 56
Net change in the fair value of investment securities
available for sale, net of deferred toxes (15,182} 10,113 17,299}
Balance af end of year 12,312 2,870 [7,243)
Treasury stock at par: [56) {56} 156}
Tofal stockholders' equity $ 762,120 $ 505710 $ 384,982

The accomponying nofes are an integral part of these financiol sialements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (NCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Net income $ 143,851 § 84656 § 67926

Other comprehensive {loss} income, net of tax:
Unrealized net (losses) gains on securities arising during the period

(nef of foxes of $2,686 - 2001, $(3,972) - 2000, and $4,958 - 1999) (8,212) 10,626 [7,756)
Amortization of unrealized loss on securities reclassified to held to maturity
(net of taxes of $(614)- 2001 and ${105) - 2000} 1,842 316 -
Reclassification adjusiment for {gains) losses included in net income
(net of taxes of ${982)- 2001, $2,531 - 2000 and $(292) - 1999) {10,412) (829) 457
Other comprehensive (loss} income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle {(16,782) 10,113 (7,299)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes 1,600 - -
Other comprehensive [loss) income 15,182) 10,113 7.,299)
Comprehensive income, net of faxes $ 128669 § 94769 § 60,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.
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v CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{Continued)

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements.

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 143,851 84,656 $ 67,926
Ad{usrmems fo reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (5,929 - -
Depreciation and amortization 10,325 7179 4,534
Amortization of interestonly strips 31,859 13,588 6,897
Amortization of servicing assets 29,728 14,268 10,9088
Deferred tax provision 1,686 4,882 2017
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2,626
Provision for losses on real estate held for sale 6@ 765 620
Origination and purchases of morigage loans held for sale 13,663,659} (2,795,573 (2,574,959
Principal repayments and sales of morigage loans held for sole 2,021,071 1,599,912 1,131,161
Purchases of securifies held for trading (3,799,035} (1,673,421} {1,559,411)
Principal repayments and sales of trading securities 4,802,583  2,375956 2,651,802
Increase in interestonly strips, net (113,055 (66,947 {48,988)
Increase in servicing assets (44,273) (44,342) (48,141)
Decrease lincrease) in receivables and morlgage servicing advances 13,226 (230) {23,453)
(Increase] decrease in brokerdealer's operations receivable [231,317) 115,687 (14,312)
Decrease lincrease) in accrued inferest receivable 2,694 7,712) (18,451]
{Decrease} increase in payable related to short sales (4,063 49 363 -
[Decrease] increase in interest payable [7,449) 8,137 18,875
Increase {decrease) in brokerdealer's operations payable 202,061 {110,698) 12,208
Increase (decrease] in accrued expenses and other ligbilities 11,506 609 {23,235)
Increase in other assets (276) (10,312) (7.863)
Total adjustments (646,897) (515,511) {476,185)
Net cash used in operating aclivities (503,046} (430,855) (408,259)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securities held o maturity (666,923) [282,540) 819,499)
Principal repayments and maturities of securities held to maturity 1,119,005 144,834 73,703
Origination of loans receivable {552,329 {384,124) (150,551)
Principal repayments of loans receivable 304,616 213,847 85,400
Purchases of securities available for sale [2,941,805) 612,144} (699,455)
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 2,562,233 552,826 437,314
Principal repayments of securities available for sale 1,615 6,951 19,9046
Purchase of FHIB stock (16,590} (17,860] (14,731)
Purchase of premises and equipment {42.170] (36,932] (22,266)
Purchase of net assefs of subsidiary - - (4,928)
Proceeds from sales of real estate held for scle 3,577 2,838 1,848
Net cash used in investing activities 228 771) [412,304) (1,093,219
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in deposits $ 360384 $ 293101 $ 477,311
Increase in securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase 207 Q17 347 899 730,628
Decrease in loans payable {207 456} {30,203 (73,244)
{ssuance of common stock, net 158,692 464 -
Issuance of preferred stock, nef - 48,244 72,065
Proceeds from FHLB advances 298,500 255,000 102,000
Increase [decrease) in notes payable 14,797 (16,307 261,320
Dividends declared and paid (30,951} (22,749) (17,269)
Net cash provided by financing activities 897,883 875449 1,552,811
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 166,066 32,290 51,333
Caosh and cash equivclents at beginning of year 428,319 396,029 344,694
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of year $ 594385 § 428319 § 396,029
Cash and cash equivalents include:
Cash and due from banks $ 45970 § 28699 § 25793
Money market investments 548 415 399,320 370,236
§ 594385 § 428319 § 396,029
Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Activities:
Loan securitizations $ 1,049,070 § 844,182 $ 1,306,609
Reclassification of securifies held to maiurity to rading category $ 130000 § -~ § -
Reclassification of securities available for sale to held to maturity category $ -9 - $ 592,200
Reclassification of securities held to maturity fo available for sale category $_ 110,000 $ -3 -
Conversion of preferred stock $ ) 8,460 § -
Supplemental Cash Flows Informaticn:
Cash used to pay inferest $ 293073 % 275104 $ 142920
Cash used fo pay income taxes $ 10,263 § 65069 § 2,470

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial stafements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

1. Reporiing Enfit

Doral Financial Corporation ['DFC" or the "Company") is
o financial holding company (see Note 3) engoged in
mortgage banking, banking, insurance agency and bro-
kerdealer activities through its wholly owned subsidiaries
Doral  Morigage Corporation, SANA  Investment
Mortgage Bankers, Inc., Cenfro Hipotecario de Puerto
Rico, Inc., Doral Bank {"Doral Bank-PR"}, Doral Bank, FSB
['Doral Bank-NY"), Doral Insurance Agency, Inc., Doral

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Securities, Inc., Doral Money, Inc., Doral International,
Inc. and Doral Properties, Inc. {'Doral Properties’).

The Company operates primarily in Puerfo Rico, but it
also has morigage banking offices in Florida and New
York, and three branches of a Federally chartered sav-
ings bank in New York.

The accompanying Consclidated Financial Statements
include the accounts of Doral Financial Corporation and
its wholly owned subsidiaries. Accounting and reporting
policies conform with generally accepted accounting
orinciples. All significant intercompany accounts and
fransactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company is primarily engaged in the origination,
purchase, securitization and sale of FHA, VA, conven-
tional and non-conforming first and second morfgage
loans, and in providing and/or arranging for interim
financing for the construction of residential and other
types of real estate developments and permanent financ-
ing on multifamily and commercial real estate. The
Company services FHAnsured, VA-guaranteed and con-
ventional mortgage loans pooled for issuance of
Govermnment National Mortgage Association ('GNMA'],
Federal National Mortgage Association ["FNMA') and
Federal Home loan Mortgage Corporation {"FHIMC"|
mortgoged-backed securities and collateralized mort-
gage obligation certificates issued by granfor trusts
established by the Company ['CMO Certificates’). The
Company also services loans for private investors, origi-
nates loans for investment and provides banking services
through a Puerio Rico commercial bank and a federal
savings bank in New York, and provides insurance, and
securities brokerage and investment banking services
through Doral Insurance Agency, Inc. and Doral
Securities, Inc., respectively.

On December 13, 2001, the Company enfered info an
agreement with UBS/PaineWebber Incorporated of
Puerto Rico whereby the Company will sell the retail secu-
rities brokerage operations of Doral Securities to UBS
/PaineVWebber. The fransaction is expected to close dur-
ing the first quarter of 2002. Doral Securities will
continue offering institutional and investment banking
services. This fransaction also establishes an alliance
whereby UBS/PaineWebber will lease certain premises
of the Company that would serve as sales offices for cer
tain securities products of UBS/PaineWebber. This
fransaction did not have a material effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of

December 31, 2001 and for the year then ended.

The following summarizes the most significant accounting
policies followed in the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements:

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with generclly accepted accounting princi-
ples requires management to moke esfimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabili
ties at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reporfed amounts of revenues and expenses dur-
ing the reporting period. Because of uncertainties
inherent in the estimation process, it is possible that actu-
al results could differ from those estimates.

Money Market Investments

Money market invesiments consist of fixed income securi-
fies with original maturities of less than one year. These
investments are carried at cost which approximates fair
value due fo their shortHerm nature. In the case of securi-
ties purchased under agreements to resell, it is the
Company's policy to require and take possession of col-
lateral whose fair value exceeds the balance of the
related receivable. The securities underlying the agree-
ments are not recorded in the asset accounts of the
Company, since the counterparties retain effective control
of such securities.

Securities Held for Trading

Securities that are bought and held principally for the pur
pose of selling them in the near term are classified as
securifies held for trading and reported at fair value gener-
ally based on quoted market prices. For securities without
quoted prices, fair values represent quoted market prices
for comparable instruments. In a few other cases, fair val-
ves have been estimafed based on assumptions
concerning the amount and fiming of estimated future cash
lows and assumed discount rates reflecting varying
degrees of risk. Realized and unrealized changes in mar
ket value are recorded in the securities trading activities in
the period in which the changes occur. Interest income and
expense arising from trading instruments are included in the
income statement as part of net inferest income.
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In connection with securitization fransactions and the sales
of loans, the Company recognizes as inferestonly strips
["IOs"} the rights to cash flows remaining after the payment
of the servicing fees and the contractual payments fo the
buyers of the loans. The contractual payments to the buyers
are generally based on a spread over LUIBOR. The contrac-
tual payments are either fixed over the life of the loans or
variable with quarterly resetting. These |Os are carried ot
fair value, which is generally determined based on deal-
ers’ quotes or market prices for sales of similar assefs. The
Company also evaluates the fair value of I0s based on the
present value of the estimated future excess cash flows
using management’s best estimate of current prepayment
speed assumptions and a discount rafe commensurate with
the risk involved.

Securities Held to Maturity

Securities which the Company has the ability and intent
to hold until their maturity are classified as held to maturi-
ty and reported at amortized cost. Premiums and
discounts are amortized as an adjustiment to interest
income over the life of the related securities using a
method that approximates the interest method.

Securities Available for Sale

Securities not classified as either securities held to maturi-
fy or trading securifies are classified as available for sale
and reported at fair value based on quoted market
prices, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from
earnings and reported, net of taxes, in other comprehen-
sive income. Premiums and discounts ore amortized as
an adjustment to inferest income over the life of the relat-
ed securities using a method that approximates the
interest method. Cost of securities sold is determined on
the specific identification method.

VWhen securities are transferred from available for sale to
held to maturity, any unrealized gain or loss at the time of
fransfer remains in accumuloted other comprehensive
income and is amortized over the remaining term of the
securifies.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of
net cost or fair value computed on an aggregate portfolio
basis. The amount by which cost exceeds fair value, if
any, is accounted for as a loss. Changes in the valuation
allowance are included in the determination of income in
the period in which the change occurs. Lloan originafion
fees and direct loan origination costs related to loans held
for sale are deferred as an adjusiment to the carrying
basis of such loans until these are sold or securitized. The
securifization of mortgage loans held for sale is recorded
as a sale of mortgage loans and the purchase of o mort-
gage-backed security, and are classified as trading,
available for sale or held 1o maturity.

Loans Receivable

loans receivable are held principally for investment pur-
poses. These consist mainly of construction, residential
first and second mortgages, commercial real estate, land
and consumer loans,

Loans receivable are stated at their unpaid balance, less
unearned interest, net deferred loan fees or costs, undis-
bursed portion of construction loans and allowance for
loan losses. Unearned interest on consumer loans is
amortized using a method that results in a uniform level
rate of return over the term of the loan. loan origination
fees and cosfs incurred in the origination of loans held
for investment are deferred and amortized using the
interest method throughout the term of the loan as a yield
adjustment.

Recognition of inferest on loans receivable is discontin-
ved at the banking subsidiaries when loans are more
than Q0 days in arrears. At that time, any inferest
accrued is reversed against inferest income. Such inter-
est, if ultimately collected, is credited fo income in the
period of the recovery. Recognition of inferest on residen-
tiol mortgage loans held by the Company's mortgege
banking units is discontinued when other factors indicate
that the collection of interest and principal is doubtful.
loans for which the recognition of interest has been dis-
continved are designated as non-accruing. Such loans
are not reinsiated fo accrual status uniil principal and
inferest payments are brought up fo date or when condi-
fions indicate that the Company will collect the principal
and interest.

Allowance for Loan Losses

An cllowance for losses is provided for probable losses
on loans receivable and mortgage loans held for sale.
The allowance for loan losses is established based upon
a review of the loan portfolio, loss experience, economic
conditions and other pertinent factors. Loan losses are
charged and recoveries are credited to the allowance for
loan losses while increases to the allowance are charged
fo cperations.

The Company measures impairment of a loan based on
the present value of expected future cash flows discount-
ed at the loan's effective interest rate or, as a practical
expedient, at the loan's observable market price or the
fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral
dependent. The Company performs impairment evalua-
tion for smallbalance homogeneous loans on a group
basis. Commercial loans over $1,000,000 are evaluat-
ed individually for impairment. Lloans that are measured
at the lower of cost or fair value are excluded. loans are
considered impaired when, based on management's
evaluation, a borrower will not be able to fulfill its obli-
gation under the original terms of the loan.

DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT 67




Broker-Dealer Transactions

Securities transactions of the Company’s broker-dealer
operation are recorded on the frade date basis. Af the end
of the period, unsetiled purchase transactions are recorded
as part of the Company's position and as a payable, while
unsetled sales transactions cre deducted from the
Company's position and recorded as a receivable.

Insurance Agency Commissions

Commissions of the Company's insurance agency opera-
fion are recarded when earned. The Company's
insurance agency earns commissions on the sale of insur-
ance policies issued by unaffiliated insurance
companies.

Servicing Assefs and Servicing Activities

The Company pocls FHA\nsured and VA-guaranteed mort
gages for issuance of GNMA mortgage-backed securities.
Conventional loans are pooled and issued as FINMA or
FHUMC mortgage-backed securities and CMO certificates
as well as sold in bulk to investors with servicing retained.
The servicing rignts entitle the Company to annual servic-
ing fees based on the outstanding principal balance of the
morigage loans and the contractual servicing rate. The
annual servicing fees generally fluctuate between 25 and
50 basis points, net of guarantee fees. The servicing fees
are credited o income on a monthly basis.

Servicing rights refained in a sale or securitization are
measured by cllocating the carrying value of the loans
between the assets sold and the interest refained, if any,
based on their relative fair values, if practicable, at the
date of sale or securitization and are presented in the
accompanying statements of financial condifion as servic-
ing assefs. The fair value of the servicing rights is generally
determined based on market prices for sales of similar
assets. Purchased servicing assefs are initially recorded at
their fair value, which equals the amount paid.

The servicing assets are amortized in proportion o, and
over the period of, estimated net servicing income.
Amortization is adjusted prospectively to reflect changes
in prepayment experience. Servicing assets are evaluat-
ed for impairment. In defermining impairment, servicing
assefs are stratified based on their predominant risks
characteristics, which have been determined to be the
types of loans {conventional, conforming and non-con-
forming) and interest rates. Impairment is recognized
whenever the prepayment pattern of a particular strata
indicates that the fair value of the related servicing assets
is fess than ifs carrying amount. Impairment is recognized
by charging such excess to income.

Under most of the servicing agreements, the Company is
required to advance funds to make scheduled payments
fo investors, if payments due have not been received from

the mortgagors. The Company is also required to fore-
close on loans in the event of default by the mortgagor.
At December 31, 2001, accounts receivable include
advances to invesfors of approximately $5,939,000
(2000 - $10,534,000).

Real Estate Held for Sale

The Company acquires real estate through foreclosure
proceedings. These properties are held for sale and are
stated at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated
costs to sell.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation
and amortization are provided on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the
terms of the leases, if shorter, for leasehold improvements.
Useful lives range from three to ten years for leasehold
improvements and equipment, and forty vears for office
facilities.

The Company measures impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If identified,
an impairment loss is recognized through a charge fo
earnings based on the fair value of the property.

Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishment of Liabilities

The Company recognizes the financial and servicing
assefs it controls and the liabilities it has incurred, derecogr
nizes financial assets when control has been surrendered,
and derecognizes liabilities when extinguished.

From time to time, the Company may sell mortgage loans
and mortgage-backed securities subject to put arange-
ments and/or other recourse provisions. Pursuant to
recourse arrangements, the Company agrees to retain or
share the credit risk with the purchaser of such morigage
foans for a specified period or up to a certain percent
age of the amount of loans sold. Pursuant to put
arrangements, the Company grants the buyer an option,
for a specified period, that allows the buyer to sell the
loans or securities back to the Company at a negofiated
price but does not resfrict the purchaser from selling such
securities to a third party at any time. The Company esti-
mates the fair value of the refained recourse obligation or
any liability incurred at the time of sale and allocates a
portion of the proceeds of the sale fo such obligation. Put
options are recorded at fair value at the time of sale as @
liability on the Company's consolidated siatements of
financial condition, and subsequently carried at fair
value.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase
As part of ifs financing activities the Company enters info
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sales of securifies under agreements fo repurchase the
same or substantially similar securities. The Company
retains control over such securities, accordingly, the
amounts received under these agreements represent
shortterm borrowings and the securities underlying the
agreements remain in the assef accounts. These fransac-
tions are carried at the amounts at which transactions
will be settled. The counterparties to the contracts gener-
ally have the right to repledge the securities received as
collateral. Those securities are presented in the consoli-
dated statements of financial condition as pledged
investment securities.

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs

Costs related fo the issuance of debt are amortized 1o inter-
est expense under a method that approximates the inferest
method, and are included in the other assets caption.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company has various mechanisms fo reduce iis
exposure fo interest rate fluctuations including, among
others, entering into transactions dealing with financial
derivatives such as futures contracts, options and interest
rafe swaps. Such instruments are purchased or entered
info as hedges against future fluctuations in inferest rates
and/or market values of specifically identified assets or
liabilities. For financial reporting purposes, it is the
Company's general policy to mark such insfruments to
market with gains or losses included in the results of
operations as part of the frading activities.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and
assefs for the expecied future jax consequences of fem-
oorary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance
is recognized for any deferred tax assef which, based on
management's evaluation, is more likely than not [a likeli-
hood of mare than 50%) that some portion or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Legal Surplus

The Banking Act of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
requires that a minimum of 10% of Doral Bank-PR's net
income for the year be transferred to a legal surplus
account until such surplus equals paid-in capital. The sur-
plus account is not available for payment of dividends.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from
banks, securities purchased under agreements fo resell,
time deposits and other shorterm investments with matu-
rities of three months or less when purchased.

Earnings per Share
Basic net income per share is defermined by dividing net

income, cfter deducting any dividends on preferred
stock, by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted net income per share has been computed based
on the assumption that all of the shares of converiible
instruments will be converted info common stock and con-
siders the dilutive effect of stock options using the treasury
stock method.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The reported fair values of financial instruments are
based on a variely of factors. For a substantial portion of
financial instruments, fair values represent quoted market
prices for identical or comparable instruments. In other
cases, fair values have been estimated based con
assumptions concerning the amount and timing of esti-
mated future cash flows and assumed discount rates
reflecting varying degrees of risk. Accordingly, the fair
values may not represent actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been redlized as of year end
or that may be reclized in the future.

Stock Option Plan

The Company uses the infrinsic value method o account
for ifs stock option plan. Under the intrinsic value-based
method, compensation expense is recognized for the
excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock on
the measurement date over the amount an employee must
pay o acquire the stock. The measurement date is gener-
ally the date when both the number of opfions to be
received and their exercise price is first known. Note 26
provides certain required disclosures related to the effect
of using the fair value method.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income and other
fransactions, except those with stockholders, which are
recorded directly in equity. In the Company's case, in
addition fo net income, other comprehensive income
results exclusively from the changes in the unrealized
gains and losses on securities that are classified as avail
able for sale.

Disclosures about Segments Information of an Enterprise
and Related Information

The Company reports financial and descriptive informa-
tion about its reportable segments [see Note 31).
Operating segments are components of an enferprise
about which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision
maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. DFC's management defermined
that the segregation that best fuffills the segment definition
described above is by line of business.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts reflected in the 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified
to conform to the presentation for 2001, The reclassifica-
fions made include the presentation of the servicing income
nef of the amortization of servicing assets. See Note 11 for
a disclosure of the components of net servicing income pre-
sented in the consolidated statements of income.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

Derivatives and Hedging Activities. The Company adopt
ed Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS”)
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended, on January 1, 2001.
This statement establishes accounting and reporting stan-
dards for derivative instruments, including derivative
instruments that are embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities.

Although the Company enters into derivative transactions
for hedging purposes, it generally does not designate
derivatives as hedges for accounting purposes. At
December 31, 2001, none of the Company’s derivatives
were designated as hedges, and, accordingly, they are
carried at fair value with changes therein reported in
eamings for the period.

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, the Company
reclassified $110 million of its held to maturity securifies
as available for sale and $130 million as trading securi-
fies. As a result of this reclassification, the Company
recognized a gain of $1.6 million (net of tax) in other
comprehensive income and a gain of $5.9 million (net of
tax) in the income statement as cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle.

In connection with the adoption of the SFAS No. 133,
the Company also recognized in the Consolidated
Financial Statements the fair value of $100 million of
interest rafe swaps previously excluded, valued at o loss
of $196,000. All other derivative instruments were previ-
ously recorded at fair value and remained classified as
securities held for frading.

Business Combinations. In June 2001, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”| issued SFAS No.
141, "Business Combinations.” This pronouncement
addresses financial accounting and reporting for busi-
ness combinations. SFAS No. 141 requires the use of
the purchase method of accounting for all business com-
binations initiated after June 30, 2001 and requires the
recognition of intangible assets apart from goodwill if
they meet certain criteria.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. In June 2001, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and other Intangible
Assefs.” This pronouncement addresses financial
accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and
other intangible assefs. SFAS No. 142 addresses how
infangible assets that are acquired individually or with a
group of other assets {but not those acquired in a busi-
ness combination] should be accounted for in financial
statements upon their acquisition and how those assets
should be accounted for after they have been initially
recognized in the financial statements. Under SFAS No.
142, goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives will not be amortized but rather will be tested
at least annually for impairment. Intangible assets that
have finite usefu! lives will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives, but without the constraint of an arbitrary
ceiling.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a good-
will of $9.1 million that is presented within ofher assefs in
the consolidated statements of financial condition. The
Company's goodwill amortization for 2001 was
$621,000. The Company will adopt the SFAS No. 142
on January 1, 2002 and will discontinue the amortiza-
tion of the goodwill because its fair value exceeds its
book value.

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. In June
2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses
financial occounting and reporting for obligations associ-
ated with the retirement of tangible longlived assets and
the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2002. Management believes
that the adoption of this statement will not have a materi-
al effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company.

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of longlived
Assets. In August 2001, the FASR issued SFAS No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of long-Lived
Assets.” This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121 and
portions of APB 30 and develops an accounting model
for longlived assefs that are to be disposed of by sale.
SFAS No. 144 is effective for financial statements issued
for years beginning after December 15, 2001, but earli-
er application is encouraged. Management believes that
the adoption of this stofement will not have a material
effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company.
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3. Regulatory Requirements

Holding Company Requirements

On March 11, 2000, the Company became a financial
holding company subject to the provisions of the Gramm-
leachBliley Act [the "Act’). Under the Act, bank holding
companies, such as DFC, all of whose subsidiary deposi-
fory insfitutions are "wellcapitalized" and "wellmanoged,”
as defined in the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956
(the "BHCA"), and which obtain satisfactory Community
Reinvestment Act ratings, may elect to be treated as finan-
cial holding companies ('FHCs"). FHCs cre permitted o
engage in a broader spectrum of acfivities than those cur-
rently permitted to bank holding companies. FHCs can
engage in any aclivities that are "financial" in nature,
including insurance underwriting and brokerage, and
underwriting and decling in securities without o revenue
limit or a limit on underwriting and dealing in equity secu-
rities applicable to foreign securities affiliates [which
include Puerto Rico securities affiliates for these purposes).
Subject to certain limitations, under new merchant bank-
ing rules, FHCs will also be allowed to make investments
in companies that engage in activities that are nof finan-
cial in nature without regard fo the existing 5% limit for
domestic investments and 20% limit for overseas invest-
ments (including Puerto Rico).

Under the Act, if the Company later fails to meet the
requirements for being a FHC and is unable to correct
such deficiencies within cerfain prescribed time periods,
the Federal Reserve Board could require the Company to
divest confrol of its depository institution: subsidiaries or
clternatively to cease conducting activities that are nof per-
missible to bank holding companies that are not FHC:s.

Banking Charters

Doral Bank-PR is a commercial bank chartered under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. lts deposits
are insured by the FDIC through the Savings Association
Insurance Fund "SAIF").

Doral Bank-NY is a federally chariered savings bank reg-
ulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision. Its deposit
accounts are also insured by the FDIC through SAIF.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agen-
cies. Failure 1o meet minimum capitol requirements can
inificte certain mandatory and possibly additional discre-
fionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company. Under cap-
ital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
orompt corrective action, the Company and its banking
subsidiaries must meet specific capital guidelines that

involve quantitative measures of ifs assefs, liabilities, and
cerain off balance sheet items as calculated under regu-
latory accounting practices. The Company's and its
banking subsidiories’ capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to
ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its
banking subsidiaries to maintain minimum amounts and
rafios [set forth in the following table] of Total and Tier |
capital [as defined in the regulations) to risk weighted
assefs |as defined), and of Tier | capital {as defined) fo
average assefs (as defined]. Management believes, as of
December 31, 2001, that the Company and oll of its
banking subsidicries meet all capital adequacy require-
ments to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2001, the most recent notification
from the FDIC, dated as of September 17, 2001, cate-
gorized Doral Bank-PR as well-capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well-capitalized, Doral Bank-PR must
maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and
Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the following table.
There are no conditions or events since the FDIC nofifica-
fion that management believes have changed Doral
BankFR's category.

Savings Bank Requirements

Doral BankNY is a Federally chartered savings bank sub-
ject fo regulation and supervision by the Cffice of Thrift
Supervision and the FDIC. Doral Bank-NY is subject to
substantially the same regulotory capital requirements of
Doral BankPR as set forth above. Additionally, as a con-
dition for FDIC insurance of accounts, the Company has
agreed with the FDIC to maintain Doral Bank-NY's ratio of
Tier 1 capital fo average assefs at not less than 8.0%
throughout ifs first three years of operations which ends on
October 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2001, Doral
Bank-NY was in compliance with the capital requirements
for a well capitalized institution and the Tier 1 capital to
average assels rotio imposed by the FDIC.

DFC's, Doral Bank-PR's and Doral Bank-NY's actual capi-
tal amounfs and ratios are presented in the following
table. Totals of $9,112,000 (2000 - $9,757,000,
$404,000 {2000 - $138,000), and $764,000 repre-
senting non-allowable assets, such as goodwill and other
intangible assets, were deducted from the capital of
DFC, Doral Bank-PR and Doral BankNY, respectively
There were no non-allowable assets in Doral Bank-NY as

of December 31, 2000,
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To be well capitalized

For capital under prompt corrective
[Dollars in thousands) Actual adequacy purposes action provisions
Amount  Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)  Amount  Ratio (%)
As of December 31, 2001:
Total capital fto riskweighted assefs):
DFC Consolidated $ 777,792 184 $ 338,375 >8.0 N/A N/A
Doral Bank-PR $ 242,068 130 $ 138,240 >80 $ 172,800 =100
Doral Bank-NY $ 30,418 202 % 8,347 >80 § 10,434 >10.0
Tier | capital {to risk-weighted assefs):
DFC Consolidated $ 765,320 181 $ 169,188 >4.0 N/A N/A
Doral Bank-PR $ 235940 127 % 69,120 240 $§ 103,680 >6.0
Doral Bank-NY $ 30,169 289 % 4,174 240 $ 6,260 26.0
teverage Ratio (1}:
DFC Consolidated $ 765,320 M6 $ 263,855 >4.0 N/A N/A
Doral Bank-PR $ 235940 76 % 121,251 240 § 151,564 >50
Doral Bank-NY $ 30,169 129 $ 0327 240 $ 11,659 25.0
To be well capitalized
For capital under prompt corrective
[Dollars in thousands) Actual adequacy purposes action provisions
Amount  Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
As of December 31, 2000:
Total capifal (o riskweighted assefs):
DFC Consolidated $ 502,526 183 $§ 219,424 >80 N/A N/A
Doral Bank-PR $ 157,713 147 $ 85552 280 $ 106,940 2100
Doral Bank-NY $ 25220 454 % 4 440 >80 $ 5,550 >10.0
Tier | capital (o risk-weighted assets):
DFC Consolidated $ 493,139 180 $ 109712 40 N/A N/A
Deral Bank-PR $ 152,664 143§ 42776 240 $ 64,164 6.0
Doral Bank-NY $ 25,091 452 % 2,220 240 $ 3,330 6.0
leverage Ratio {1}:
DFC Consolidated $§ 493,139 92 § 215458 >40 N/A N/A
Doral Bank-PR $ 152,664 75 $ 81,454 240 $ 101,817 250
Doral Bank-NY $ 25091 175 % 5,750 240 $ 7,187 250

{1) Tier 1 capital to average assefs in the case of Doral Financial and Doral Bank-PR, and Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets in the

case of Doral Bank-NY.

Housing and Urban Development Requirements

The Company's mortgage operation is a U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development approved, non-super-
vised mortgagee, and is required fo maintain an excess of current assets over current liabilities and minimum net worth,
as defined by the various regulatory agencies. The Company is also required to maintain fidelity bonds and errors and
omissions insurance coverage, based on the balance of its servicing portfolio. The Company is in compliance with
these regulatory requirements.

Registered Broker-Dealer Requirements

Doral Securities is registered as o broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and the Puerto
Rico Office of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions {the "CFI"}). Doral Securities is also a member of the National
Association of Securifies Dealers (the "NASD'). As a registered broker-dealer, it is subject fo regulation by the SEC, the
NASD and the CFl in matters relafing to the conduct of ifs securities business, including record keeping and reporting
requirements, supervision and licensing of employees and obligations to customers. In particular, Doral Securities is sub-
ject to net capital rules, which specify minimum net capital requirements for registered brokerdealers. These are
designed to ensure that such institutions maintain adequate regulatory capital in relation to their liabilities and the size
of their customer business. The Company is in compliance with these regulatory capital requirements.
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4. Money Market Investments

5. Securities Held for Trading

At December 31, 2001, the Company has $266.8 mik
lion on time deposits and other shortterm money markets
pledged as collateral of securities sold under agreement
fo repurchase.

At December 31, 2001, the carrying value of securities
purchased under agreements to resell included in money
markef invesiments and the estimated collateral value of
the underlying securities is summarized as follows:

(In thousands) Collateral
Carrying Estimated
Type of Collateral Pledged Value Market Value

Morlgage-backed securities $ 7775 % 8,687
U.S. Government securities 45,113 49 078
Other securities 1978 1,978

$ 54866 % 59743

These securities were held on behalf of the Company by
the dealers that arranged the transaciions. At December
31, 2001, the Company has repledged approximately
$6.7 million of the underlying securities.

&. Securities Available for Sale

Securities held for frading consisted of:

December 31,
{In thousands) 2001 2000

Morigage-backed securities:

GINMA exempt § 692409 $ 856,781
GNMA taxable 11,440 18 953
CMO certificates 12,743 14,051
FHUMC and FNMA 24,205 47712
Inferestonly strips 236,468 157,986
PR. Govemnment and Agencies 4,728 1,397
Derivatives and swap
cgreements 1,534 3,032
Cther ?.801 1,126

$ 993,328 $ 1,101,938

Net unrealized gain on trading securities included in eamn-
ings for the vear ended December 31, 2001, amounted
to approximately $3,163,000. For the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999, earnings included net
unrealized holding gains/(losses) on trading securities of
$6,981,000 and [$13,309,000), respectively.

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, approximate market value, weighted average vield and coniractual
maturities of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 (1999 - only market value and weight-

ed average yield are presented) were as follows:

{Dollars in thousands) 2001
Weighted
Amortized  Unredlized ~ Unreclized Market Average
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
Morigoge-Backed Securities
GNMA
Due from one to five years $ 1,712 % 12 % - % 1,724 4.50%
Due over ten years 60,069 136 1,064 50141 6.38%
FHLMC and FNMA
Due over ten years 424 990 712 4,733 420,969 6.31%
Debt Securities
FHLB Notes
Due over ten years 45,000 675 - 45675 6.75%
FHLMC Zero coupon
Due over ten years 62,001 39 - 62,100 7.65%
US Treasury
Due from five fo fen years 49,520 - 145 49,375 5.00%
Due over fen years 294,040 85 4,930 289 195 5.37%
§ 937,392 % 1,659 § 10872 § 928179 6.06%
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{Dollars in thousands) 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized ~ Market Average Market Average
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield Value Yield
Mortgage-Backed Securities
GNMA
Due within a year $ 10,394 § 103 § 86 % 10,411 720% $ - -
FHLMC and FNMA
Due within a year 66,195 1,181 - 67 376 7 .55% - -
Debt Securities
FHLE Notes
Due over fen years 22,081 1,081 - 24,062 6.32% - -
US Treasury
Due within a year 10,565 610 - 11,175 6.25% - -
Due from five fo ten years ~ - - - - 66,325 5.50%
Due over ten years 63,826 5,524 - 52,350 6.25% - -
$ 1739061 § 8493 § 86 § 182,374 6.80% % 66,325 5.50%

The weighted average yield is computed based on amortized cost and, therefore, does not give effect to changes in

fair value.

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale during 2001 were approximately $2,562,000,000 (2000 -
$552,826,000 and 1999 - $437,314,000). For 2001, gross gains of $12,083,000 {2000 - $8,672,000 and
1999 - $3,648,000] were redlized on those sales. For 2001, gross losses of $6,768,000 (2000 - $5,312,000
and 1999 - $580,000] were realized on those sales.

Expected maturities of mortgage-backed securities and certain debt securities might differ from confractuol maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment pendlties.
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7. Securities Held to Maturity

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, approximate market value, weighted average yield and contractual
maturifies of held to maturity securities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 {1999 - only amortized cost and weight
ed average vyield) were as follows:

{Dollars in thousands] 2001
Weighted
Amortized  Unredlized  Unrealized =~ Market Average
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
Mortgage-Backed Securities
GNMA
Due from five to ten years $ 2,878 § 52 % -3 2,930 6.75%
Due over ten years 15,429 368 - 15797 6.99%
CMO Certificates
Due from one fo five years 3,13¢ - 15 3,124 6.08%
Due from five to ten years 1,836 - Q 1,827 6.50%
Due over ten years 100,236 420 1,598 0Q 758 5.89%
N Debt Securities
FHLB Nofes
Due from five to ten years 5,000 100 - 5,100 7 .89%
Due over ten years 336,492 10,202 - 346,694 6.46%
FHLB Zero Coupon
Due over ten years 320,862 - 10,816 310,046 7. 16%
PR, Housing Bank
Due from five 1o ten years 5,000 - - 5,000 6.00%
Due over ten years 3,305 17 - 3,322 6.20%
U.3. Treasury
Due over ten years 61,088 1,084 1,764 60,408 5.36%
PR. Economic Develepment Bank Notes
Due from one to five years 2,000 10 - 2010 6.60%
Other
Due from one to five years 5,025 - - 5,025 4.09%
Due from five to fen years 1,345 10 - 1,355 6.68%
Due over ten years 2,000 15 - 2015 7.00%
$ 866,335 % 12,278 § 14,202 § 864,41) 6.58%
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{Dollars in thousands) 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized ~ Market Average  Amortized  Average
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield Cost Yield
| Mortgage-Backed Securities
GNMA
Due from five 1o ten years $ 2,510 % 66 % -3 2,576 660% $ 2,295 6.50%
Due over ten years 21,239 754 - 21,993 6.99% 24,294 6.9%%
CMO Certificates
Due from one fo five years 3,205 - 15 3,190 6.12% 5,227 6.06%
Due from five 1o fen years 5,288 - 26 5,262 6.23% 5,944 6.71%
Due over fen years 123,299 582 Q79 122,902 5.95% 127,764 5.89%
Debt Securities
Federal Farm Credit Notes
Due from one fo five years 4,906 169 - 5075 6.22% 4,904 6.22%
Due from five 1o ten years Q,0%6 141 - 10,137 641% 2,885 6.42%
FHLB Notes
Due within @ year 34,380 - 63 34,317 6.94% - -
Due from one 1o five years 26,909 49 38 27,010 7.97% 26,53¢% 7.31%
Due from five fo fen years 70,595 350 138 70,807 7.69% 72,592 7.30%
Due over ten years 591,553 5,219 5,559 501,213 6.78% 538,031 6.84%
FHLB Zero Coupon ‘
Due from five to fen years 196,922 - 8,222 188,700 7.50% 182,944 7.50%
Due over ten years 158,591 20,748 45 179,294 7.85% 146,823 7.86%
P.R. Housing Bank Notes
Due over ten years 3,390 - - 3,390 6.20% 5,000 6.20%
U.S. Treasury
Due within a year 5,035 1,102 1,097 5,040 5.68% 1,597 5.03%
Due from five to fen years 70,031 3,819 - 73,850 6.00% 70,061 65.00%
Due over fen years 225,029 4,024 2,314 226,739 5.51% 225,070 5.48%
F.R. Economic Development
Bank Nofes
Due from one fo five years 2,000 - - 2,000 6.60% - -
Due from five fo ten years 1,345 - - 1,345 6.68% - -
Due over ten years 2.000 - - 2,000 7.00% - -

$1,558,313 $37,023 $18,496 $§ 1,576,840 674% $ 1,509,060 6./71%

The weighted average vield is computed based on amortized cost and, therefore, does not give effect to changes in
fair value. Expected maturities of mortgage-backed securities and certain debt securities might differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right 1o call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment
penalties.
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8. Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

At December 31, morigage loans held for sale consisted of the following:

(In thousands) 2001 2000

Conventionat single family residential loans $ 1,530,601 § 937,386
FHA/VA loans 8,207 131,169
Mortgage loans on residential multifamily 178,372 165,133
Construction and commercial real estate loans 140,169 118,257
Consumer loans secured by mortgages 145 2,660

$ 1,947 494 % 1,354,605

At Decemper 31, the aggregate amortized cost and approximate market value of these loans were as follows:

Gross Gross Approximate

Amortized Unreadlized  Unrealized Market

{In thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
2001 $ 1,947,494 § 26,415 § 2794 $ 1,264,115
2000 $ 1,354,605 § 15513 § 2,049 $ 1,368,069

9. loans Receivable

loans receivable are related to the Company's banking
and construction loan operations and consisted of:

December 31,

[In thousands) 2001 2000
Construction loans $ 368961 $§ 238,393
Residential morigage loans 63,546 74,862
Commercial redl estate 72,397 38,353
Consumer-secured by real esfate 870 2,107
Consumer-other 39,109 16,652
Commercial non-real estate 67,891 32,501
loans on savings deposits - 10,523 10,8306
land secured 46,602 26,935
Loans receivoble, gross 663 899 440,639
less:
Undisbursed portion of loans
in process (10,302) [35,134)
Unearned interest and
deferred loan fees, net (2,484) (2,476)
Allowance for loan losses {6,000 {4,838)
(25,786} (42,448]
Loans receivable, net $ 644113 § 398,191

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had loans
receivable and mortgage loans held for sale amounting to
approximately $13,509,000 {2000 - $9,152,000) on
which the accrual of interest income had been discontin-
ved. If these loans had been accruing interest, the
additional interest income realized would have been

approximately $ 1,995,000 (2000 - $911,000).

The adjusiable rate loans, mostly composed of construc-
fion and commercial real estate loans, hove inferest rate
adjustiment limitations and are generally tied fo various
markef indexes. Future market faciors may affect the cor
relation of the inferest rate adjustiment with the rate the
Company pays on the shortierm deposits that have pri-
marily funded these loans,

At December 31, 2001, fixed rate loans and adjustable
rate loans were approximately $207,185,000 and
$452,412,000, respectively.

The Company evaluates loans receivable for impairment.
impaired loans as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
amounted to $2,049,000 and $1,084,000, respec-
tively. The Company determined that, given the fair value
of the loans” collateral, no impairment allowance was

necessary at December 31, 2001 and 20C0.
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10. Allowences for Losses
Changes in the allowances for losses were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Allowance for real estate held for sdle:
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,530 $ 910 § 1,011
Provision for losses Q69 765 620
losses charged to the allowance {1,134) 1145) (721)
Balance af the end of period $ 1,365 § 1,530 § 910
Allowance for loan losses:
Balance at beginning of period $ 9387 $ 6,136 § 5,166
Provision for loan losses 4,445 4,078 2,626
Recoveries 198 288 358
Other adjustments (147) - -
losses charged to the allowance (1,411 (1,115) 2,014)
Balance at the end of period $ 12472 % 9,387 $ 6136

The Company allocates the allowance for loan losses between loans held for sale and loans receivable. At December
’ 31, 2001, aporoximately $6,472,000 and $6,000,000 (2000 - $4,549,000 and $4,838,000), respectively of

the total allowance for loan losses was allocated fo loans held for sale and loans receivable, respectively.

11. Servicing Activities
The components of net servicing income are shown below: ?

Year ended December 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Servicing fees $ 233507 $ 21248 § 20,227
late charges 5,875 4,949 4,510
Other 735 221 199

Servicing income, gross 30,117 26,418 24,936

Amortization of servicing assets [29./28) {(14,268] (10,988)
Servicing income, net $ 389 $ 12150 § 13,948
The changes in servicing assets are shown below:

Year ended December 31,

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Balance at beginning of period $ 139795 % 109721 % 72,568
Capifalization of rights 44,273 44,342 48,148
Rights sold - - 17)
Amortization: ’

Scheduled (20,884 (14,268) (10,988)

Unscheduled [including impairment) [8,844) - -
Balance at the end of period $ 154340 $ 139795 § 109,721
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The Company's servicing portfolic amounted to approximately $10.0 billion, $8.8 billion and $7.6 billion at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, including $ 1.4 billion, $867 million and $1.1 billion, respec-

tively, of the Company’s loans.

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company purchased servicing rights to approxi-
mately $388.4 million, $184.3 million and $238.3 million respectively, in principal amount of morigage loans. As of
December 31, 2001, $627.8 million of the Company's servicing portfolio was internally originated prior to April 1,
1995, for which servicing assefs have nof been capitalized in the Company's financial statements.

12, Sales of Mortgage Loans

As disclosed in Note 2, the Company routinely originates, securitizes and sells morigage loans info the secondary mar-
kef. As a result of this process, the Company typically retains the servicing rights and may retain inferest only strips. The
Company's retained interests are subject fo prepayment and interest rate risks.

In 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Company recognized pretax gains of $187.2 million, $134.3 million, and $80.2

million, respectively, on the securitization and sales of residential mortgage loans.

Values used in measuring the retained inferests at the date of the sales of the loans resulting from transactions complet-
ed during the year were as follows:

e Servicing Assets from Loan Scles — The Company measures the servicing assefs af the date of the sales based on
current market rafes in similar fransactions ranging from 1.50% to 2.30% per annum, depending on the type of
loan, including the recognition of retained beneficial inferest in the servicing assets and interestonly strips.

o InterestOnly Strips — The Company measures the inferest-only strips af the date of the transaction based on market
values computed from the difference in inferest rate spreads multiplied by the principal amount of loans sold by o
market factor. These market factors ranged from 3.75 to 5.50 during 2001 (2000 - 4.50 to 5.50).

At December 31, 2001, fair values of the Company's retained interests were based on prices by dealers and sup-
ported by the Company’s historical sales to third parties and internal valuation models. The key economic assumptions
used by the Company in its internal valuation models and the sensitivity of the current fair value of residual cash flows
to immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions for mortgage loans at December 31,
2001 are os follows:

Servicing Assets

[Dollars in thousands) From Loans Sold Interest-Only Strips
Carrying amount/fair value of refained interests: $ 154,340 § 236,468
Weighted-average life [in vears): 7.00 7.40
Prepayment speed assumption (annual rate) 14.65% 13.50%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ 6,774 $ 6,398
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $ 12,973 $ 12,130
Residual cash flows discount rate (annual) 11.00% 12.00%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ 5146 $ 8,219
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change g 9923 $ 15,672

These sensitivities are hypothefical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair volue based
on a 10 percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in
assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, in this table, the effect of a variation in a particular assump-
fion on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption; in reality, changes in one
factor may result in changes in another {for example, increases in market inferest rates may result in lower prepayments and
increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.
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The following table presents quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses, and components of loans
sold with recourse and/or put back options:

Principal
Amount of Principal Amount of Loans Net Credit
{In thousands) Loans 60 days or More Past Due' Losses?
Type of Loan
Residential Mortgage Loans sold with recourse
agreements and,/or put back options $ 2,082,577 $ 81477 $ 584

Notes: 1 Loans 60 days or more past due are based on end of period total loans. 2 Net credit losses are chargeoffs and are based on tofal loans outstanding.

Recourse sales generally involve the sale of non-conforming loans fo local financial instituions and to FNMA and
FHLMC. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company's confractual recourse obligations relating to its mort
gage servicing portfolio were approximately $1.0 billion and $770.8 million, respectively. Recourse obligations at
December 31, 2001 includes $402 million expiring at various dates commencing in the first quarter of 2002 and
ending in December 2003. As of December 31, 2001, the Company has an allowance for recourse provisions of
$2.2 million {2000 - $1.7 million). Historical losses on recourse obligations have not been significant.

From time to time the Company may sell loans with put options. At December 31, the changes in the amounts of loans
sold under these arrangements were as follows:

[In thousands) 2001 2000

Beginning balance $ 43,524 § 53,577
Puts expired (14,814] -
Principal repayment of underlying loans and mortgage-backed securities {10,314 (10,053
Ending balance $ 18,396 § 43,524

These put arrangements expire between March and August of 2002. If o put option is exercised, the Company would
nave to buy back these loans. At December 31, 20071 and 2000, the market value of the instruments under put options
exceeded the put option exercise price.

13. Premises and Equipment 14. Securities Sold Under Agreements fo Repurchase
Premises and equipment consisted of: The following summarizes significant data about securi-
December 31, fies sold under agreements fo repurchase for the years
[in thousands) 2001 2000 ended December 31, 20071 and 2000.
{Dollars in thousands) 2001 2000
Office fumniture and equipment  $ 34,684 $ 23,251
Leasehold improvements 25,982 13,935 Carrying amount as of
Automobiles 281 268 December 31, $ 2,573,772 $ 2275855
Office building 7,976 6,387
68,923 43,841 Average monthly aggregate
less - Accumulated depreciation balance outstanding $ 2,449,394 $ 2,229 536
and amortization (23,540} 115,572]
45,383 28,269 Maximum balance outstanding
land 8,865 8,720 at any month-end $ 2762755 $2417,870
Construction in progress 45,687 30,480
g 00935 § 67,469 Weighted average interest rate
during the year 4.94% 6.12%
For informetion regarding the capitalization of costs
incurred in the consfruction of the Company's new head-  Weighted average interest rate
quarters, please refer to Note 32. at year end 4.00% 6.32%
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The carrying and market values of securities available for sale and securities held 1o maturity pledged as collateral at
December 31, shown by maturity of the repurchase agreement, were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2001 ‘ 2000
Carrying Market  Repurchase Repo  Carrying Market  Repurchase  Repo
Value Value Liability Rate Value Value Liability Rate
Mertgage-Backed Securities
GNMA
Term up to 30 days $ 25602 % 25469 % 24,708 194% § -3 -3 - -
Term of 30 to 90 days - - - - 10,3%4 10,411 10012 670%
Term over 90 days 12,284 12,262 11,150  505% - - - -
FHLMC ond FNMA
Term up to 30 days 330,873 328,784 323,401 1.89% - - - -
Term over 90 days - - - - 52,467 53,212 51,355  6.60%
CMO Certificates
Term up 1o 30 days 65,728 64,531 42,004 227% 28,906 28,764 25472  687%
Term of 30 to 90 daoys 28,315 28,099 27,525  2.64% 21,327 21,801 18,367 7.11%
Term over 90 days 15,428 15,331 14,834  265% 50,713 50,206 50,200  677%
Debt Securities
Federal Farm Credit Notes
Term over 90 days - - - - 11,102 11,330 Q504  577%
FHLB Notes
Term up to 30 days 19,493 20,300 18072  567% 12,900 12,513 12,485  6.64%
Term of 30 1o 90 days 47,537 49 563 44,900  583% 578,777 579,982 530,737  579%
Term over Q0 days 204 992 302,113 287,005 5.53% - - - -
FHLB and FHUMC
Zerc Coupons
Term over 90 days 382922 372,146 361,475  546% 282,657 296,500 240,649  594%

U.S. Treasury Securities
Term up fo 30 days 134,398 132,147 133,580 4.66% 177,613 185713 178767  o6.11%
Term of 30 to 90 days 50,000 49,078 48,621  590% 138,088 139,050 127,082  577%
Term over 90 days 83,945 80,760 81,374 _ 517% - - = -
$1491,517 $1480,583 $1419549 4.33% $1364944 $1382482 §1,254630 _ 599%

Y T Y L T

15, Loans Payable

At December 31, 20071 and 2000, the Company had several morigage warehousing lines of credit and gestation or
presale facilities totaling approximately $1.5 billion and $1.9 billion, respectively. Advances under these faciliies are
secured by mortgage loans.

loans payable consisted of the following:

December 31,
[In thousands) 2001 2000
loans payable resulting from the use of warehousing lines of credit and gestation or presale facilities due
in 2002, of various variable rates averaging 3.01% and 7.65% at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, and other financing arrangements. $ 115801 $ 323,257
Securities sold short at 5.38% and 6.25% due in January 2002 and January 2001, respectively. 45,300 49,363

$ 161,101 § 372,620
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Maximum borrowings outstanding af any month-end during 2001 and 2000 were $304 million and $510 million,

respectively. The approximate average outstanding borrowings during the periods were $250 million and $447 million,
respectively. The weighted average inferest rate of such borrowings, computed on a monthly basis, was 5.70% in

2001 and 7.64% in 2000.

The existing warehousing credit facilities and other financing arrangements require the Company to mainiain certain
capital ratios and to comply with other requirements. At December 31, 20071, the Company was in compliance with
these requirements.

16. Peposit Accounts
At December 31, deposits and their weighted average inferest rates are summarized as follows:

2001 2000

] (Dollars in thousands) Amount % Amount %

Certificates of deposit $ 946,935 478 $ 880,035 6.57

f Regulor savings 149,252 430 78,745 475

5 NOW accounts 349,838 2.64 215,412 474

j Non inferest bearing deposits 223,884 - 129,333 -
$ 1,669,909 3.65 $ 1,303,525 5.50

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, cerfificates of deposit over $100,000 amounted to approximately
$639,340,000 and $534,986,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, the banking subsidiaries had deposits from officers, directors, employees and principal stock-
holders of the Company amounting to approximately $3,072,000 (2000 - $6,343,000).

The Company, as a servicer of loans, is required fo maintain certain balances on behalf of the borrowers called
escrow funds. At December 31, 2001, escrow funds amounted to approximately $95,084,000 (2000 -
$73,670,000), of which $90,802,000 was deposited with Doral Bank-PR {2000 - $69,837,000). The remaining
escrow funds were deposited with other banks and therefore excluded from the Company's assets and liabilities.

A summary of cerfificates of deposit by maturity as of At December 31, 2001, the banking subsidiaries had

December 31, 2001 follows: brokered certificates of deposit maturing as follows:
{In thousands) {In thousands)
2002 $ 635,600 2002 $ 166,472
2003 174,172 2003 151,107
2004 78,400 2004 56,836
2005 23,100 2005 17,576
2006 34,076 2006 26,000
2007 and theredfter 687 2007 and thereafter 145
§ 946,935 § 418,136
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17, Notes Poyable
Notes payable consisted of the following:

December 31,
{In thousands) 2001 2000

8.50% medium term notes due in July 2004, paying interest semiannually on January 8 and July 8 $ 200,000 $ 200,000

$100 million notes, net of discount, bearing interest at 7.65%, due on March 26, 2016, paying
interest monthly 97,939 -

7.84% Senior nofes due on Ociober 10, 2006, paying interest semiannually on April 10 and October 10 75,000 75,000

Senior term nofes at fixed rates ranging from 8.35% to 8.55% with maturifies ranging from August 2004
to August 2007, paying interest semiannually on February 28 and August 31 22,000 22,000

Bonds payable secured by mortgage on building of fixed rates ranging from 6.10% to 6.90%, with
maturities ranging from June 2003 to December 2029, paying interest monthly 44,765 44,765

Termnotes due in 2007, collaleralized by stand-by letters of credit issued by the FHLB, paying interest
semiannually - 35,000

Notes payable collateralized by mortgage servicing rights held by the Company at variable interest
rates ranging from 8.20% to 8.35%, due on June 22, 2001, paying interest monthly - 38,000

Nofes payable at variable interest rates [8.30% at December 31, 2000), due on December 31, 2001,
paying interest monthly - 10,000

Nates payable to bank, collateralized by CAMO certificates af variable interest rates {5.33% and 8.55%
af December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively), due on June 30, 2002, paying interest monthly 7 851 8,886

9% Demand note collateralized by CMO certificates, paying inferest monthly 1,000

Zero Coupon Senior Notes [effective rate of 6.50%] due on April 30, 2007 1,793 -
Notes payable at fixed rates ranging frem 7.00% o 8.50%, with maturities ranging from February

2002 to August 2004, paying interest monthly 3,095 3,095
$ 459,543 § 444746

At December 31, 2001, the scheduled aggregate annual maturities of notes payable were approximately as follows:

{In thousands)
Year ending December 31

2002 $ 0,075
2003 1,601
2004 205,770
2005 8710
2006 82,760
2007 and thereafter 150,727

$ 459543
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18. Advences from the Federal Home Loan Bank

Advances from the FHLB consisted of the following:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2001 2000

1.850% due on January 2, 2002 $ 50,000 % -
7.440% due on May 31, 2002 6,000 6,000
6.445% due on July 17, 2002 5,000 5,000
2.450% due on December 23, 2002 100,000 -
5.959% due on January 29, 2003 5,000 5,000
3.340% due on October 23, 2003 50,000 -
4.795% due on February 3, 2004 12,000 12,000
6.190% due on August 22, 2005 50,000 50,000
6.310% due on August 31, 2005 80,000 80,000
6.090% due on September 11, 2005 30,000 30,000
5.850% due on November 2, 2005 10,000 10,000
6.454% due on October 10, 2007 10,000 10,000
6.380% due on December 31, 2007 7 000 7,000
5.2709% due on July 21, 2009 25,000 25,000
6.220% due on June 21, 2010 30,000 30,000
5.740% due on September 28, 2010 30,000 30,000
5.840% due on October 12, 2010 39,000 39,000
5.360% due on December 1, 2010 50,000 50,000
5.050% due on January 2, 2011 50,000 -
4.930% due on January 3, 2011 13,500 -
4.685% due on January 10, 2011 35,000 -

$ 687,500 § 389000

At December 31, 2001, the Company had pledged qualified collateral, in the form of first morigage notes, invest-
ments and mortgage-backed securities with a market value of $906,747,000 1o secure the above advances from the

FHLB.

19. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabiliies consisted of the
following:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2001 2000
Amounts retained on morigage

loans, generally paid within 5

days $ 13,423 § 4,588
Customer mortgages and closing

expenses payable Q,869 2,068
Deferred compensation plan 1,845 1,495
Incentive compensation payable 3,445 3,177
Accrued inferest payable 33,408 40,857
Accrued expenses and other

payables 57,580 59,229
Deferred tax liability 15,195 16,110

§ 134765 § 128418

20. Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from the payment of Puerto Rico
income taxes on the inferest ecrned on mortgage loans
on residential properties located in Puerto Rico that are
insured or guaranteed pursuant to the provisions of the
National Housing Act of June 27, 1934, as amended
[referred to as "FHA loans'], or pursuant to the provisions
of the Servicemen's Readjustment Act of 1944, as
amended [referred to as "VA loans'}, and that were exe-
cuted after June 30, 1983, and prior to August 1,
1997, After that date, only those FHA and VA loans used
fo finance the original acquisition of newly constructed
housing in Puerto Rico and morigage-backed securities
backed by such loans qualify for taxexempt treatment.
The amendment grandfathered the taxexempt status of
FHA and VA loans originated prior to August 1, 1997,
and morigage-backed securities backed by such loans.

Given the beneficial tax characteristics of these assets,
the Company holds such loans and morigage-backed
securities for longer periods of time prior to sale in order
fo maximize the tox exempt interest produced by these
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securifies and loans. Therefore, net inferest income has
generally represented a greater proportion of the
Company's tofal net income than that of a typical mort-
gage banking institution.

Those operations of the Company conducted through
Puerto Rico subsidiaries are subject to Puerto Rico income
fax on income derived from alf sources. The Company’s
Puerto Rico subsidiaries are also subject to United Stotes
income faxes on certain fypes of investment income from
U.S. sources and also on income effectively connected
with any trade or business from U.S. sources. However,
any federal income fax, subject fo certain condifions and
limitations, is creditable as a foreign tax credit against
the Puerto Rico income fax liability.

Except for the operations of Doral Bank-NY and Doral

Money, substantially alt of the Company's operations are
conducted through Puerto Rico subsidiaries in Puerto Rico;
therefore, the amount of U.S. income taxes is not signifi-
cant. Doral BankNY and Doral Money are U.S.
corporations and are subject to U.S. income fax on their
income derived from all sources.

Consolidated tax returns are not permitted under the
Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code; therefore, income tax
returns are filed individually by each enfity that conducts
business as a Puerto Rico corporation.

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The provision for income taxes of the Company differs
from amounts computed by applying the applicable
Puerto Rico statutory rate fo income before taxes. A rec-
onciliation of the difference follows:

{Dollars in thousands) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Income before income taxes $ 158,260 $ 96,152 $ 76613
% of % of % of
Pre-tax Pre-tax Pre-tax
Amount Income Amount Income Amount Income
Tax at stalutory rates $ 61,721 39.0 % 37,499 390 $ 29879 39.0
Tax effect of exempt interest income,
net of disallowance 138,175} (24.7) (18,289) 119.0) [13,764) (18.0)

Tax effect of capital gains (7.845) 5.0) (8,433) (8.8) (1,072 (1.4)
Other, net 4,637 3.0 719 0.8 (6,35¢) {8.3]
Provision for income taxes $ 20,338 126 % 11,496 120 % 8 687 11.3
The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, are summarized below:
(In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Current income fax expense $ 18,652 § 6614 % 5,770
Deferred income fax expense 1,686 4,882 2917
Total income tax expense $§ 20338 § 11,496 § 8,687
At December 31, the components of the net deferred tax liability were:
{In thousands) 2001 2000
Deferred tax liabilities resulting from:
Deferred income for tax purposes $ (439420 % (31,5571)
Deferred income for book purposes 3,678 1,634

{40,264) (29,217)
Deferred tax assets resulting from:
Unrealized losses on securities 27,745 12,796
Deferred expenses (642) 787
Others (2,034 224

25,069 13,807
Net deferred tax liability $ 15,1958 (16,110
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21. Related Party Transaciions

At December 31, 2001, the Company had
$6,549,000 of loans outstanding to officers, directors
and principal stockholders of which $6,188,000 are
secured by mortgage loans. Furthermore, the Company
had construction loans receivable and commitments to
extend credit to related parties of $25,834,000 and
$36,130,000, respectively.

22. Financial Instruments with O Balance Sheet Risk

The Company paid o computer service bureau, in which
it holds a 33% interest, $1,581,000, $1,404,000 and
$1,319,000 for services rendered during the vears
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 ond 1999, respec-
tively. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the value of
the Company's equity interest in this service bureau was
nof significant.

The Company is a parly to financial instruments with off
balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments may include commitments to extend credit
and sell mortgage-backed securities and loans. Those
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of cred-
it and inferest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The contractual amounts of those instruments reflect the
extent of involvement the Company has in particular
classes of financial instruments. The Company's expo-
sure to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the financial instrument for commit-
ments to extend credit or for forward sales is
represented by the contractual amount of those instru-
ments. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making these commitments as it does for on-balance
sheet instruments. At December 31, 20071, commit-
ments fo extend credit amounied to approximately
$456,138,000 and commitments to sell mortgage-
backed securities and loans amounted  to
approximately $481,402,000. Management believes
that the Company has the ability to meet these commit-
ments and that no loss will result from the same.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements fo lend to
a customer as long as the conditions established in the

23. Commitments end Contingencies

contract are met. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses.

The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthi-
ness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral, if
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of
credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the
counterparty.

A geographic conceniration exists within the Company's
loan portfolios since approximately 84% of the
Company's lending activity is with customers located in
Puerto Rico and most of its loans are secured by proper-
fies located in Puerto Rico.

The Company controls the credit risk of its future contracts
through credit approvals, limits and monitoring proce-
dures. Options on future contracts confer the right from
sellers to buyers to take a future position at a stated price.
Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to
meet the terms of their coniracts and from movements in
securities values and interest rafes.

Collateral for securities purchased under agreements to
resell is kept by the Company under cusfody agreements.
Collateral for securities sold under agreements to repur-
chase is kept by the counterparty.

The Company has several noncancelable opercting leas-
es for office facilities expiring from 2002 through 2007
and thereafter. Total minimum rental commitments for leas-
es in effect at December 31, 2001, are as follows:

(In thousands)

Year Amount
2002 i $ 4,707
2003 3,573
2004 3,275
2005 2,212
2006 2,555
2007 and thereafter 26,870

$ 43,892

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, amounted to approximately
$7,200,000, $6,200,000, ond $4,500,000,
respectively.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims
that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and
nave not been adjudicated. Management believes that
these actions, when finally concluded, will not have
material adverse effect upon the financial position, results
of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In connection with its mortgage securitization activities, the
Company has entered into Insurance and  Indemnity
Agreements [the "Agreements”) with insurance companies
providing for the issuance of financial guaranty insurance

86 DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT




policies. The insurance policies cover the payment of
amounts due with respect fo senior certificates issued by
CMO grantor’s frusts established by the Company, and pro-
vide, among other things, thot the Company cannot sell,

24, Retirement and Compensation Plans

trensfer or pledge the residual certificates issued by the frusts,
{emounting fo approximately $5.4 million), without the insur-
ance company’s approval because the residual certificates
are pledged as collateral 1o the insurance company.

Prior to March 1, 20C1 the Company maintained a non-
coniributory farget benefit pension plan (the “Old Plan”)
for its Puerto Rico based employees. Under the Old Plan,
the Company’s annual contribution was the amount esti-
mated necessary to fund the targeted benefit. The target
benefits were based on years of service and employees’
compensation, as defined in the Plan. Effective March 1,
2001, the Old Plan was converted info a profitsharing
plan with a cash or deferred arrangement and renamed
the Doral Financial Corporation Refirement Savings ond
Incentive Plan (the “New Plan”}. The New Plan is avail-
able to all employees of Doral Financial who have
aftained age 18. Participants in the New Plan will have
the option of making pretax or aftertax contributions. The
Company will make a matching confrioution with its com-
mon stock equal to $0.50 for every dollar of pretax
contribution made by participants fo the New Plan up to
5% of the participant's basic compensation, as defined.
The Company will also be able o make fully discrefionary
profitsharing confributions to the New Plan. All other sav-
ings plans maintained by the Company's Puerto Rico
affilictes will be merged into the New Plan. Effective
March 1 20071 the company amended and restated ifs
401K plan for U.S. based employees to conform it with
the benefits available under the new plan. The Company’s

25. Capital Stock and Paid-In Capital

expense related 1o the refirement plans during the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, amount-
ed to approximately $956,000, $1,860,000, and
$1,090,000, respeciively.

The Company has unfunded deferred incentive compen-
safion arrangements {the “Deferred Compensation”| with
certain employees. The Deferred Compensation is deter-
mined as a percentage of net income arising from the
mortgage-banking activities, as defined, and is paycble
to participants after a five-year vesting period. The
expense for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2000, and 1999, amounted fo approximately
$453,000, $350,000 and $200,000, respectively.

The Company also has incentive compensation arrange:
ments payable currently with certain officers. The
incentive payments are based on the amount of consoli-
dated net income {adjusted for certain amounts such as
extraordinary gains or losses) in excess of an estab-
lished return on stockholders’ equity, as defined in the
agreements. The expense under these arrangements for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and
1999, amounted to approximately $3,684,000,
$3,436,000 and $6,844,000, respectively.

On August 1, 2001, the Company issued 5,060,000
shares of common stock at a price of $32.00 per share.
The net proceeds to the Company amounted to $153.4
million.

On August 31, 2000, the Company issued 2,000,000
shares of its 8.35% Non-Cumulative Monthly Income
Preferred Stock, Series B (the “8.35% Preferred Stock”) af a
orice of $25 per share, ifs liquidation preference. As of
December 31, 2001, there were 2,000,000 shares
issued and outstanding. The 8.35% Preferred Stock may be
redeemed at the option of the Company beginning on
September 30, 2005, at varying redemption prices that
start at $25.50 per share.

On February 22, 1999, the Company issued 1,495,000
shares of its 7% Non-Cumulative Monthly Income Preferred
Stock, Series A (the “7% Preferred Stock”) of o price of $50
per share, its liquidation preference. As of December 31,
2001, there were 1,495,000 shares issued and outstand-
ing. The 7% Preferred Stock may be redesmed at the option
of the Company beginning on February 28, 2004, af vary-
ing redemption prices that start at $51.00 per share.

The 8.35% Preferred Stock and the 7% Preferred Stock
[the “Preferred Stocks”) are not convertible into shares of
common stock or any other equity securities and have
equal rank as to the payment of dividends and rights on
liquidation. The holders of the Preferred Stocks are entifled
to receive non-cumulative cash dividends on their liquider
fion preference when declared by the Board of Directors
af the annual rate established for each series, payable
monthly. The terms of the Preferred Stocks prohibit the
Company from declaring or paying any dividends on the
common stock (1) unless all accrued and unpaid divi-
dends on the Preferred Stocks for the preceding 12
dividend periods have been paid and the full dividend on
the Preferred Stocks for the current monthly dividend peri-
od is contemporaneously declared and paid or set aside
for payment or (2] if the Company has defaulted in the
payment of the redemption price of any shares of the
Preferred Stocks called for redempfion. The terms of the
Preferred Stocks provide that if the Company is unable to
pay in full dividends on a series of Preferred Stock, all div-
idends will be distributed pro rata among the outstanding
series of Preferred Stock.
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On March 31, 2000, all of the 8,460 shares of the
Company’s 8% Converiible Preferred Stock (liquidation pref
erence $1,000 per share) were converted into 1,933,714
shares of common stock at a conversion price of $4.375.

The ability of the Company to pay dividends in the future
is limited by various restrictive covenants contained in the
debt agreements of the Company, the earnings, cash
position and capital needs of the Company, general busi-
ness conditions and other factors deemed relevant by the
Company's Board of Direciors. The Company is prohibit-
ed under the Indenture of its 7.84% Senior Notes from
paying dividends on capital stock (other than dividends
payable in the form of capital stock or stock rights) if an
event of default under any such agreements exists at such
time, or if the amount of dividends payable by the
Company together with the aggregate amount of divi-
dends paid and other copital distributions made since

26. Stock Option Plans

specified dates exceed o defined amount. In addition,
under the Syndicated Credit Agreement, the Senior Notes
Indenture and other debt agreements of the Company, the
Company is prohibited from paying dividends if it fails to
maintain specified minimum levels of net worth and divi-
dend ratios, and certain other financial ratios.

As discussed in Note 3, present banking regulations limit
the amount of dividends that Doral BankPR and Doral
BankNY may pay. Payment of such dividends is prohibit-
ed if, among other things, the effect of such payment
would cause the capital of Doral Bank-PR or Doral Bank-
NY to fall below the regulatory capital requirements. In
addition, the Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy
statement that provides that insured banks and financial
holding companies should generally pay dividends only

out of current operating earnings.

The Company has a Restricted Stock Plan and a Stock
Cption Plan. The Restricted Stock Plan provides for the
granting of up fo 1,000,000 shares of common stock to
selected officers. Up to 1994, a total of 711,224 shares
were awarded and issued under the Restricted Stock Plan.
No shares have been awarded since 1994, The terms of
the Restricied Stock Plan permit the imposition of restric-
fions ranging from one to five years on the sale or
disposition of the shares issued.

On April 16, 1997, the Company adopted a new
employee stock option plan. This plan, as amended in
2001, allows for the granting of up to 3,000,000 pur-
chase options on shares of the Company’s common stock
to employees, including officers and directors who are
clso employees of the Company. The Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors has the authority and
absolute discretion to determine the number of stock
options to be granted, their vesting rights, and the option
exercise price. The vesting rights, however, cannot
exceed ten years and the exercise price may not be lower
than the market value at the date of the grant.

The activity of stock options during 2001, 2000 and 1999

The stock option plan clso permits the Compensation
Committee to grant rights o optionees (“stock apprecic-
tion rights”] under which an opfionee may surrender any
exercisable stock optfion in retumn for cash equal to the
excess of the fair value of the common stock to which the
option is related atf the time of exercise over the option
price of the commoen stock af grant date. The stock option
plan provides for a proportional adjustment in the exercise
price and the number of shares that can be purchased in
the event of a stock split, reclassifications of stock and a
merger of reorganization.

During 2000 and 1999 the Company granted sfock
opfions to buy shares of the Company's stock that will be
exercisable over a period ranging from one to ten years.
The options granted do not confain sfock appreciation
rights. Fifty percent [50%) of the options granted vest on
the first anniversary of the grant date and the remaining
50% vest on the second anniversary. The options prices
equaled the quoted market price of the sfock of the grant
date; therefore, no compensation cost was recognized.

is set forth below:

2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Beginning of year 1,482,900 $ 1229 1,346,300 % 12 48 444,200 § 15.22
Options granted - - 195,000 11.90 ©30,000 11.25
Options exercised (356,200) 14.68 (30,500) 15.22 - -
Options forfeited {600) 15,22 {27 900) 15.22 {27 900) 15.22
End of year 1,126,100 § 11.54 1,482,900 % 12.29 1,346,300 $ 12.48
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The following table summarizes the weighted average exercise price and the weighted average remaining confractual
life of the options outstanding at December 31, 2001.

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Outstanding Remaining Contract
Exercise Price Options Life {years)
$ 15.22 57,850 6.25
§ 1125 933,000 8.00
$ 11.94 135,250 8.25

—_— e

As described in Note 2, the Company uses the intrinsic value-based method fo account for stock options. Had the
Company implemented the fair value method described in SFAS No. 123, it would have recognized compensation
expense over the options’ expected life, based on their fair market value, thus the Company's net income and earnings
per common share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

[In thousands, except per share information) 2001 2000 1999
Compensation and Benefits:
Reported $ 47759 § 40514 $ 44,838
Pro forma $ 40075 $ 43,450 § 45,578
Net Income:
Reported $ 143851 § 84,656 § 67,926
Pro forma $ 141,635 § 81,720 § 67,200
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Reported $ 300 § 1.86 % 1.55
Pro forma $ 205 % 179 § 1.54
Diluted Eamings Per Share:
Reported $ 295 % 1.85 % 1.50
Pro forma $ 291 % 1.78 $ 1.48

The fair value of the options granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode! with the following
assumptions:

2000 1999
Stock Price and Exercise Price $ 11.90 $ 11.25
Stack Option Estimated Fair Volue $ 370 ¢ 3.50
Expected Stock Option Term {years) 4 4
Expected Volatlity 40% 37%
Expected Dividend Yield 3.20% 2.67%
Risk-Free Interest Rate 6.28% 6.35%
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27. Supplemental Income Statement Information

Employee costs and other expenses are shown in the Consolidated Statements of Income net of direct loan origination
Cosfs.

Set forth below is a reconciliation of the application of SFAS No. 91 to employee costs and other expenses:

Year ended December 31,
{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Employee costs, gross $ 76016 $ 463060 $§ 68566
Deferred cosfs pursuant to SFAS No. 91 28,257 23,446 23,728
Employee cost, net $ 47759 % 40514 § 44838
Other expenses, gross $ 15,254 % 13,595 § 11,728
Deferred cosfs pursuant to SFAS No. 91 7,508 7215 5912
Other expenses, nef $ 7746 § 6,380 $ 5816
28. Earnings per Shoare
The reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted eamings-pershare follows:
Income Shares Per Share

[In thousands, except share data) _[numerator)  [denominator) Amount
As of December 31, 2001:
income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 137,922
Less: Non-convertible preferred stock dividend 9.408)
Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders 128,514 44,794,192 $ 2.87
Effect of dilutive securities

Incremenial Shares - Opfions 708,747
Diluted EPS

Income available to common shareholders $ 128514 45,502.93% § 2.82
As of December 31, 2000:
Net Income $ 84,656
less: Convertible preferred stock dividend [169)
Less: Non-converfible preferred stock dividend 6.637)
Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders /7,850 41,887,708 § 1.86
Effect of dilutive securities

Incremental Shares - Options 205,801
Diluted EPS

Income available to common shareholders $ 77850 42,093,509 $ 1.85
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Income Shares Per Share
{In thousands, except share data) _(numerator)  {denominator) Amount

As of December 31, 1999:

Net Income $ 67,926
less: Convertible preferred stock dividend {677)
less: Non-convertible preferred stock dividend 4,463)
Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders 62,786 40,428920 $ 1.55
Effect of dilutive securities

Convertible Preferred Stock 677 1,933,714

Incremental Shares - Opfions - 58,843
Diluted EPS

Income available fo common shareholders plus assumed

conversions $ 63463 42421477 § 1.50

In 2001 and 1999, all stock options outstanding during the year have been included in the computation of cutstand-
ing shares. In 2000, 357,900 stock options were not included in the computation because they were antidilutive.

29, Disclosures about Fair Valve of Finencial Instruments

The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair  willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.
values of the Company's financial instruments af  Significant differences can arise between the fair value
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The fair value of finen-  and carrying amount of financial instruments that are rec-
cial instruments is the amount at which the instruments  ognized at historical costs.

could be exchanged in a current fransaction between

2001 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(In thousands) Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assels:
Cash and due from banks $ 45970 $ 45970 § 28,999 § 28,999
Money market investments 548,415 548,415 399,320 392,320
Securifies held for trading 0Q3,328 993,328 1,101,938 1,101,938
Securities available for sale 028,179 228,179 182,374 182,374
Securities held to maturity 866,335 864,411 1,558,313 1,576,840
Mortgage loans held for sale 1,947 494 1,964,115 1,354,605 1,368,069
loans receivable 644113 645,216 398,191 400,199
Servicing assefs 154,340 171,858 130,795 159,535
Financial liabilities:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 2573772 $ 2,575,070 $ 2,275,855 $ 2272177
Loans payable 161,101 161,101 372,620 372,620
Deposits 1,669 909 1,682,945 1,303,525 1,306,361
Notes payable 459,543 462,440 444,746 458,169
Advances from FHLB 687,500 685,921 389,000 387,592
Off balance sheet financial instruments-
Inferest rate swap agreements {1} $ -3 -3 -3 (196)

{1} As disclosed in Nofe 2, with the adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001, the Company recognized the fair value of the swaps in the financial statements.
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The following nofes summarize the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments:

Cash and due from banks, money market investments
and loans payable: valued af the carrying amounts in the
consolidated sfatements of financial condition. The carry-
ing amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value due to
the relatively short period to maturity.

Mortgage loans held for sale, securities held for irading,
securities held to maturity and securities available for
sale: valued at quoted market prices, if availeble. For
securities without quoted prices, fair values represent
quoted market prices for comparable instruments. In a
few other cases, fair values have been estimated based
on assumptions concerning the amount and timing of esti-
mated future cash flows and assumed discount rates
reflecting varying degrees of risk.

Derivatives: The fair volue of derivative financial instru-
ments is estimated as the amounts that the Company
would receive or pay fo ferminate the contracts ot the
reporting date, taking into account the current unrealized
gains or losses of open confracts. Market or dealer quotes
are available for many derivatives; otherwise, pricing or
valuation models are applied to current market information
fo estimate fair value.

loans receivable: valued on the basis of estimated future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted af rates
commensurate with the loan characteristics. loan prepay-
ments are assumed to occur af speeds experienced in
previous periods when interest rates were at levels similar
to current levels, adjusted for any differences in the infer-
est rate scenario. Future cash flows for homogeneous
categories of loans, such as residential mortgage loans,
are estimated on a porifolio basis and discounted at cur

30, Risk Meanagement Activities

rent rates offered for similar loan terms to new borrowers
with similar credit profiles. In certain circumstances, quot-
ed market prices for securities backed by similar loans,
adjusted for different loan characteristics, are also used
in estimating fair value.

Servicing assets: valued based on the market prices for
comparable servicing sales confracts based on similar
types of groups of loans. To further evaluate the estimated
fair value of such servicing rights, the Company utilizes
independent valuations based on present value calcule-
fions of the expected future cash flows associated with the
servicing rights. Such valuations are based on assump-
fions that market participants would use in estimating
future servicing income and expense, such as: discount
rates, prepayment speeds, estimates of servicing cost,
ancillary income per loan and default rates. The fair value
of servicing assets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
includes the portion of the Company's mortgage servicing
porffalio consisting of loans internally originated by Doral
Financial prior fo the adoption of SFAS No. 122 on April
1, 1995 amounting fo approximately $627.8 million
and $1.4 billion, respeciively, for which a servicing asset
has not been recognized in the financial statements.

Deposits: for demand deposits and deposits with no
defined maturities, fair value is taken to be the amount
payable on demand of the reporting date. The fair values
of fixed-maturity deposits, including certificates of
deposit, are estimated using rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining meturities. The value of
long-term relationships with depositors is not taken inio
account in estimating the fair values disclosed.

Notes payable, advances from FHIB and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase: valued utilizing dis-
counted cash flow analysis over the remaining term of the
obligation using market rates for similar instruments.

The Company's principal objective in holding derivatives
and cerfain other financial instruments is the management
of interest rate risk arising out of its portfolio holdings and
related borrowings. Risk management activities are
aimed at optimizing realization on sales of morigage
loans and/or morigage-backed securities and net interest
income, given levels of interest rate risk consistent with
the Company's business strategies.

Asset/liability risk management activities are conducted
in the context of Company's sensitivity to inferest rate
changes. This sensitivity arises due fo changes in inferest
rates since most of the Company's assets are of a fixed
rate nature. Changes in inferest rates affect the value of
mortgage loans held for sale and mortgage-backed secu-

rities held for trading from the time such assets cre origi-
nated fo the time these assefs are sold. Interestbearing
liabilities reprice more frequently than interest-earning
assets and, therefore, the Company's nef interest income
is affected by changes in interest rates and the relation of
longterm and shortferm inferest rates.

To achieve ifs risk management objectives, the Company
uses a combination of derivative financial instruments,
particularly futures and options, as well as other types of
contracts such as forward sales commitments and inferest
rafe swaps.

The following table summarizes the activity in derivative
transactions, other than interest rate swaps, for the year:
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{In thousands) Notional Amount

Fair Value

At December 31

Assets Liabilities

At December 31 Average Net
For the Period gains
Assets Liobilities Assets Liabilities {losses)

2001

Options on Futures $ 1,750,000 $1,030,000

10,518 $ 8,085 $ 6,009 § 4,676 § 8,032

Opﬂons on Eurodollars 30,470,000 27,366,000 19,405 19,382 6,654 5,509 2,672
Forward Contracts - ~ - ~ - ~ 4,095
Options on Bonds and

N\OHgOge—BOCked Securities 035,000 100,000 5,746 1,898 3,416 3,257 (3,757)
Futures on U.S. Treasury bonds

and notes 69,000 - 253 24 62 1,426 (18,195
Futures on Eurodollars - 334,000 - 1,795 - 1,844 (260)

$33,224,000 $28,830,000

35922 § 31,184 §_ 16141 § - 16802 § {7,413

2000

Options on Futures $ 3,119,500 $1,899,700

4,808 $ 4,300 $ 3,555 % 2,588 § (5,043

Optlions on Eurodollars 10,100,000 225,000 1,397 305 2,038 1,292 1,591
Forward Confracts - - - - - - 309
Options on Bonds and
Mortgage-Backed Securities 535,000 450,000 4,740 1,526 1,835 2,442 3,237
Futures on U.S. Treasury bonds 9700 425,000 277 2059 56 498 (8,148]
and nofes $13,764,200 $ 2,999,700 11,222 % 8,190 § 7,484 § 6,820 § (8,054}

Options are contracts that grant the purchaser the right
to buy or sell the underlying asset by a certain date at o
specified price. The risk involved with purchased option
contracts is normally limited to the price of the options.
Inferest rate futures contracts are commitments to either
purchase or sell designated insfruments, such as U.S.
Treasury securifies, ot a fulure date for a specified price.
Futures contracts are generally traded on an exchange,
are markedto-market daily, and are subject to margin
requirements. Forward contracts are generally overthe-
counter or privately negotiated contracts fo sell a
specified amount of certain instruments such as mort-
gage-backed securities at a specified price af a
specified future date. Because these coniracts are not
traded on an exchange and are not generally marked-
to-market on a daily basis, they are generally subject to
greater credit risks than futures contracts.

The risk that counterparties to both, derivatives and cash
instruments might defauli on their obligations is moni-
tored on an ongoing basis. To manage the level of
credit risk the Company deals with counterparties of
good credit standing, enters info master netting agree-
ments whenever possible and, when appropriate,
obtains collateral. Masfer nefting agreements incorpo-
rafe rights of setoff that provide for the nef sefflement of
subject contracts with the same counterparty in the event
of default.

All derivative financial insiruments are subject to market
risk, the risk that future changes in market conditions may
make an instrument less valuable or more onerous. For
example, fluctuations in market prices and interest rates
change the market value of the insiruments. Exposure to
markef risk is managed in accordance with risk limits sef
by senior management by buying or selling instruments
or entering into offsetting positions.

Doral Bank-PR enters info interest rate swap agreements
in managing its inferest rafe exposure. Inferest rate swap
agreements generally involve the exchange of fixed and
floating rate interest payment obligations without the
exchange of the underlying principal. Non-performance
by the counterparty will expose Doral Bank-PR to interest
rate risk. Af December 31, 2007, Doral BankPR had
two interest rate swaps agreements with notional
amounts of $50 million each, designated to protect
Doral BankPR from the repricing of its shortterm liabili-
ties. These agreements end on November 5, 2002,
and January 16, 2003, respectively. The interest rate to
be received on the swap agreements is 100% of the
three-months LIBOR rate (2.46% and 2.21% at
December 31, 2001, and 6.75% and 6.80% at
December 31, 2000} and the fixed interest rate fo be
paid is 6.13% and 5.50%, respectively. At December
31, 2001, the agreements had a negative fair value of
$3.2 million that has been recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition.
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31. Segment Information

The Company has four reportable segments identified by
line of business: mortgage banking, banking (including
thrift operations), broker-dealer operations and insurance
sales activities which commenced during December,
2000. The segments are managed separately since
each one fargets different customers and requires differ-
ent strategies. The majority of the Company's operations
are conducted in Puerto Rico.

The Company monitors the performance of its reportable
segments based on pre-established goals for different

financial parameters such as net income, inferest rate
spread, loan production and increcse in market share.

The accounting policies followed by the segments are the
same as those described in the Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (see Note 2).

The information that follows presents net interest income
{loss], non-interest income, net income and identifiable
assets for the Company's reportable segments.

{In thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Net interest income {loss)
Reportable segments:
Mortgage banking $ 23,853 % (7.740) $ 17,536
Banking 60,391 47133 29,110
Broker-dealer 2,486 2,164 2,366
Insurance 572 - -
Consclidating eliminations (2,875) 747 872

Consolidated net inferast income

Non-interest income
Reportable segments:
Mortgage banking
Banking
Broker-decler
Insurance
Consalidating eliminations
Consolidated norvinterest income

Net income
Reportable segments:
Morigage banking
Banking
Broker-degler
Insurance
Consolidating eliminations
Consclidated net income

Identifiable assets
Reporiable segments:
Marigage banking
Banking
Broker-dealer
Insurance
Consolidating eliminations
Consolidated tolal identifiable assets

$ 84427 $ 42304 $ 49,884

$ 145164 $ 142715 § 101,866

36,788 16,230 3,220
8,859 7,038 6,838
4,057 144 -
(3,736) {15810 (2,001}

$ 191132 § 150317 § 115923

$ 96744 $ 72,565 % 52,009

49,332 26,889 15,737
2,073 226 1,307
2,287 39 -
16,585) (15,063) (1,127)

$ 143,851 $ 84656 $ 67,926

$ 2,775,039 $ 2708152 $ 2,464,389
3,715,588 2,719,551 1,935,572
584,933 713,617 825,099
28,875 158 -
(410,152) _ [678,092)  687.717)

$ 6,694,283 $ 5,463,386 $ 4,537,343
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32. Doral Properties, Ing. {a subsidiary of DFEC) Financial Information

Doral Properties, Inc., was organized on October 1999, to
own, develop and operate the Doral Financial Center,
which will be the new headquarters of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Doral Financial Center building is under
construction and should be completed in the first quarter of
2002. The following condensed financial information pres-
ents the financial position of Doral Properties, Inc., as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the statements of
changes in stockholder's equity and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. All costs being

incurred during the construction period are capitalized and

Doral Properties, Inc.
Statements of Financial Condition

{In thousands)

will be amortized when the assefs are ready for their infend-
ed use. Thus, there are no activities recorded that need o
be reported in a separate statement of income.

At December 31, 2001, premises under consiruction
includes approximately $4.9 million of capitalized interest
costs. The financial statements of Doral Properties, Inc., as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

Assets:

Cash

investment contract

Unamortized debt issue cost

Other assets

Premises under construction
Total assets

Liabilities:
Construction refainage payable
Accounts payable, principally to affiliates
Bonds payable

Total liabilities

Stockholder's equity:

Common stock and paid-in capital

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity

Doral Properties, Inc.
Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity

(in thousands)

Common stock and paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of vear

Capital confribution

Total stockholder's equity at end of year

December 31,
2001 2000
$ 669 $ 409
4,280 19,215
2 046 2,046
4 15
42,701 26,240
$ 49700 $ 47,925
$ 1,769 % 1,675
1,696 15
44,765 44 765
48,230 46,455
1,470 1,470
$ 49700 § 47,925
December 31,
2001 2000
$ 1,470 $ 500
- 970
$ 1,470 $ 1,470

DORAL FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2001 ANNUAL REPORT 95




<

Doral Properties, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

December 31,
[In thousands) 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ -$ -
Adjusiments to reconcile net income fo net cash provided by
operating activities:
Decrease in other assets 11 121
Increase in debt issue cost - {3
Increase in accounts payable, principally to affiliates 1,775 439
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,786 557
Cash flows from investing activifies:

Addilions o premises under construction (16,461) (12,428)

Decrease in investment contract 14,935 11,283

Net cash used in investing activities 11,526) [1,145)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Capital centribution - 970
Net increase in cash 260 382
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of year 409 27
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year $ 669 $ 409
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COMPANY HEADQUARTERS

Doral Financial Plaza
1451 FD Roosevelt Avenue
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920:2717

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
General inquiries from
stockholders and the investment
community may be directed fo:

Richard F. Bonini

Senior Executive Vice President,
Invesior Relations

Telephone: (212] 329-3729
Doral Financial Corporation
387 Park Avenue South

New York, New York 10016
or,

Mario Samuel tevis

Executive Vice President and
Treasurer

Telephone: (787) 7497108
Doral Financial Corporation
1159 FD. Roosevelt Avenue
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920
Visit us online at
www.doralfinancial.com

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR

Telephone: 1-800-851-9677
[201) 329-8660

Mellon Investor Services, LLC
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660

www. melloninvestor.com

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LIP
BBVA Tower

P.O. Box 363566

San Juan, Puero Rico 009363566

CORPORAVTE DIRECTORY

SPECIAL COUNSEL

Piefrantoni Méndez & Alvarez LLP
Banco Popular Center,

Suite 1Q01

209 Mufioz Rivera Avenue
Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00918

STOCK LISTING
Common: NASDAQ
[National Association of
Securities Dealers)

National Market S%srem
Stack Symbol: DORL

7.00% Preferred: NASDAQ
National Market System
Stock Symbol: DORLP

8 35% Preferred: NASDAQ
National Market System
Stock Symbol: DORLO
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